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continue to be at the center
of Providian’s success.




Every day, more than 3,000 individuals make
Providian Financial their choice of a place to
work; a place to grow and a place to embrace
the Providian customer service values of
respect and recognition. Every day, millions

of Americans make Providian Financial their
choice in credit cards. And whether that

choice is based on a specific rewards or affinity
program that appeals to them or our commit-
ment to customer service, behind their decision
stands a group of individuals dedicated to mak-
ing their customer experience a positive one.
Each of our employees serves as an ambas-
sador for the Company. Their mandate: Treat
each of our customers as we would expect to be
treated, with respect and recognition.

Respect and recognition also describe how we
interact with each other. We have developed
Providian Values — a set of five core values to
serve as the foundation of our ethics standards
and our corporate identity. Each employee lives
the Providian Values each day through integ-
rity, respect, excellence, clarity, and teamwork.

Integrity means doing the right thing by
acting responsibly, with trustworthiness and
accountability.

Respect means recognizing that the people we
interact with are individuals just like ourselves
and acting accordingly. It drives us to treat

our customers with friendliness, fairness and
professionalism, and to draw strength from the
diversity of our workplace, our customers, our
business partners, and our communities.

Excellence means setting high standards
and striving to achieve them. It means taking
ownership and delivering results. It means
encouraging innovation and creativity, hav-
ing the courage to address and resolve tough
issues, and to embrace change.

Clarity means communicating openly, hon-
estly, and accurately. It means sharing plans
and objectives and then reporting our progress.
We take care to avoid confusion and choose our
words thoughtfully so that those who hear and
read them understand our meaning.

Teamwork means working side by side to
achieve greater results than we can achieve
separately. We recognize our responsibility
to our stakeholders, to each other, and to our
families and communities.

The culture at Providian has indeed evolved
over the past few years. We've created an orga-
nizational structure to support this evolution
and, despite enormous changes, our employees
have remained focused and flexible and have
embraced new opportunities. Qur new training
program, “CARE”, emphasizes respect and rec-
ognition when conducting business and inter-
acting with our stakeholders — our customers,
our shareholders, our business partners, and
our communities,

We depend on each employee to move our busi-
ness forward with the Providian Values and

to make a positive impact in each customer
experience. We strive to recruit intelligent, cus-
tomer-oriented, and loyal employees. In turn,
we invest in their growth and take pride in
their accomplishments. Together, we will con-
tinue to build Providian in 2005 and beyond.



Dear Shareholder,

We began our turnaround effort at Providian
three years ago, and in that time, through the
extraordinary work of individuals too numer-
ous to mention, have rebuilt a Company that
1s in a strong financizl position, has enhanced
its credit and collections functions, has rebuilt
a successful marketing program, has greatly
increased the efficiency of its operations, has
a refined and focused strategy, and today

sits among the top credit card lenders in the
United States.

This year played a significant role in closing on
the goals we first laid out at the end of 2001. At
the beginning of 2004 we undertook what we
said at the time would be the final leg in our
turnaround plan; that was to begin growing
the business again after two years of necessary
downsizing. Predicated on new marketing and
customer service initiatives aimed at main-
stream Americans, and on our ability to lever-
age distinctive capabilities built around several
core competitive advantages, we were success-
ful in this goal, growing our managed receiv-
ables base over the course of the year by 9.5%.
In 2005, we have a similarly ambitious plan,
which will continue to be based on a variety

of proven product offerings all geared toward
this same mainstream American market. We
will continue to focus on our brand values of
respect and recognition — treating our custom-
ers the same way we would want to be treated.
One of our goals is to ensure that every inter-
action with our customers and with each other
reflects our commitment to excellence.

In addition to the success we enjoyed on the
marketing front, we furthered our goals of
driving down credit losses and expenses in
2004. Our managed net credit losses declined
by approximately $800 million year over year
to end 2004 at $2 billion and we have targeted
an additional improvement in 2005. In 2004 we
further reduced our operating costs while con-
tinuing to improve our customer service and
rationalizing our infrastructure. We continued

to successfully access the capital markets
through convertible bond and asset-backed
securities issuances. We also invested more in
building our unique franchise and promoting
our new marketing programs, including the
first full year of marketing under our partner-
ship initiatives. We will continue to focus on
driving further efficiencies in every aspect of
our business in 2005.

But we still have much to do if we are to re-
main in a strong position and if we are to con-
tinue growing the business and realizing solid
shareholder returns. The competitive environ-
ment remains flerce, and the economy and
other external events always present a chal-
lenge. Yet I know that we can continue to build
on our successes, and I believe this because we
have rebuilt a solid foundation for Providian.
We have the people, the products, and the per-
severance to continue the successful journey
we began three years ago. Moreover, we have
developed a culture of excellence, nimbleness
in execution, and an ability to select customers
that will allow us to further our growth.

I, my management team, and all of Providian’s
employees realize that our accomplishments
in 2004 were the result of hard work, a shared
vision for reestablishing Providian as a
premier credit card lender, and some positive
economic tailwinds. We thank each of you for
your support in this endeavor, we appreciate
your investment in Providian, and we look
forward to the continuation of our partnership
as we advance through 2005 and beyond.

;Lﬂ//ﬁmw

Joseph W. Saunders
Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief
Executive Officer




What makes our future
clear and focused?



are mainstream Americans E.Ookmg for
a better kind of credit card company.




At Providian, we are focused on becoming a
better kind of credit card company for main-
stream, hardworking Americans. To begin
making this vision a reality, we started out
by listening to what our customers and other
consumers had to say.

Mainstream Americans told us that they often
feel that their credit card issuers do not treat
them with respect, and often fail to recognize
and reward them for responsibly managing
their finances. They told us that they want to
be communicated with in a clear and straight-
forward manner. Many of them asked us to
provide them with better information about
their use of credit — so they could better under-
stand their credit behavior, and make better
decisions. They also asked us to create a better
kind of rewards program — with more ways to
earn points and more ways to redeem points.

We listened and we are responding by creating
some of the most unique product and service
features offered by any American card issuer:

We have expanded our product line to
include an array of offerings tailored for
mainstream Americans, including: rewards,
cash rebates, finance charge rebates, and
airpoints — and a variety of co-branded offer-
ings including: eBay® (through our relation-
ship with MBNA America®), Home Shopping
Network® (HSN), Bookspan® and PayPal®.

We are providing our customers with “Real
Information” — a credit card industry first

— which includes free online access to their
FICO? credit score, plus a mini snapshot of
their credit bureau reports as well as other
valuable information regarding their per-
sonal use of credit and their Providian cards.

We have created “Providian Real Rewards™
— a unique customer-friendly rewards pro-
gram in which our customers earn points
fast by using their card, opting to carry a

balance, and even for paying their monthly
bill on time.

We are enhancing our customer service
with our new “CARE” program and
training — designed to provide friendlier,
more responsive service at every point of
interaction.

We have re-engineered our marketing pro-
grams to reflect the principles of “clear com-
munication” and “fair credit” — with the goal
of providing both prospective and existing
customers with an appropriate amount of
credit at an appropriate price, based on their
responsible management of their finances,
communicated in a concise, straightforward
manner so they can make logical, informed
choices.

Our strategic focus and our commitment to
innovate products for mainstream Americans
have driven our solid results. Since launching
the ‘new’ Providian in mid-2002, we have estab-
lished almost five million new customer rela-
tionships and generated more than $7 billion
in new credit card loans. And in the process,
we have deepened the relationship we have
with our customers.

We believe that there are tens of millions of
mainstream Americans who are good candi-
dates for a better type of credit card experi-
ence. They reside across the credit spectrum,
but in other ways they have a lot in common.
They're responsible and hardworking. They
have realistic expectations about the future.
They’re concerned about their families and
their friends — and they want their children
to have a better life.

At Providian, we're focused on serving main-
stream Americans, and we believe that we can
succeed if we excel at meeting their needs.







What is behind amn
1nformed consumer?




are increasingly creating a recognizable brand through
our strategic efforts and innovative rewards programs.




Our two-pronged marketing strategy has
allowed us to expand and better serve the
mainstream American market by offering our
customers a variety of card options. Whether
it’s a Providian-branded offering or one of

our co-branded and affinity partnerships, we
have a card that fits the individual customer’s
lifestyle.

Proprietary Marketing: We market a broad
array of products and services under the Pro-
vidian brand mark to mainstream American
consumers across the credit spectrum. These
programs leverage highly targeted direct mar-
keting and the information in our databases to
get the right products to the right customers at
the right time.

Endorsed Partnerships: We market a variety
of co-branded and affinity partnership prod-
ucts in conjunction with business partners

to reach consumers with common interests.
Whether that interest is an organization

like the Democratic National Committee or
the Cooking Club of America®, a preferred
retailer like HSN, eBay (through our relation-
ship with MBNA America) or PayPal — these
endorsements help us reach our target market,
providing our cardmembers with powerful
value-added products that are in sync with
their specific needs and interests.

The combination of our marketing and part-
nership programs and customer feedback has
led us to create powerful rewards platforms.
Providian Real Rewards remains one of the
industry’s most innovative rewards programs,
with more ways to earn and redeem points
than are offered by any other card issuer.
With the Providian Real Rewards program,
card members can earn points faster, because
they'll be rewarded for more of the ways that
they already use their card: making purchases,
maintaining a balance, and making payments
on time.

Whether it’s a free tank of gas, discounts at
retailers, or dinner at great restaurants, Pro-
vidian Real Rewards lets customers select
rewards that fit their individual interests and
lifestyles. Providian Real Rewards points can
also be redeemed for cash back in the form of
statement credits. And unlike other rewards
programs, Providian Real Rewards customers
can use points to manage their account, includ-
ing lowering their purchase APR, or to get a
late or overlimit fee credit.

Also unique to Providian customers is “Real
Information”, a program that allows our
customers who access their account online to
obtain a free monthly FICO score, along with
educational information on what a FICO score
is, what’s in their credit report, and what
factors determine a FICO score. Additionally,
every month our customers can see a profile of
how they are spending their money, a barom-
eter of their rewards points earned to date, and
other unique features to help them understand
and manage their use of credit.

Providian is positioned well to continue our
strategic growth initiatives while building
valuable products for mainstream Americans.
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Caring for Cur Communities

Along with Clarity, Excellence, Respect, and
Integrity, Teamwork is a core value at Provid-
ian. Through Providian Cares, our community
relations program, Teamwork transcends our
working environment and extends into the
communities in which we live and work.

In 2004, Providian partnered with and sup-
ported the hard work of a variety of nonprofit
agencies that share our focus on the issues

of childcare and financial literacy. We joined
with the Children’s Council of San Francisco to
sponsor the Fifth Annual Shining Star Awards
honoring outstanding contributions to child
care. And for the successful launch of Providian
Building Blocks, our new employee volunteer
program, we teamed up with a variety of local
organizations to improve the lives of more than
3,500 children in three states.

Providian also kicked off its fourth season of
Touchdowns for Tots, an innovative program in
which the Company taps football fever to sup-
port children and families in the communities
where Providian employees live and work. This
season Providian teamed up with tight end
Teyo Johnson of the Oakland Raiders, Jason
Witten, tight end for the Dallas Cowboys,

and Brandon Lloyd, wide receiver for the San
Francisco 49ers. Every time the teams scored a
regular season touchdown, Providian donated
$500 to a local child care center.

But perhaps most important, we partnered
with our employees, supporting organizations
they choose because they are committed to
making a difference. Through our educational,
nonprofit, and volunteer service matching gift
programs, we matched $334,279 in employee
donations to more than 400 organizations — a
44% increase over 2003. And through programs
ranging from walkathons to Junior Achieve-
ment, Providian employees volunteered more
than 17,000 hours. We also sponsored selected
events in the communities where we operate
that met our criteria of helping low- to moder-
ate income children and families. Working
together, we are making a visible, measurable
difference in our communities.

Our employees gave generously of their time
and effort to make their communities a better
place. By teaming up — with our community
partners and with each other — we demon-
strated that, together, we can make a bigger
difference than any of us could separately. And
making a difference is what it’s all about.
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DESCRIPTION OF OUR BUSINESS .-
General

Providian Financial Corporation, a Delaware corporation based in San Francisco, California,
was incorporated as-a subsidiary of Providian Corporation in 1984 under the name First Deposit
Corporation. Our name was changed from First Deposit Corporation to Providian Bancorp, Inc. in
1994 and to Providian Financial Corporation in 1997. We conducted our operations as a wholly owned
subsidiary of Providian Corporation until June 10, 1997, when all of the then outstanding shares of
common stock of Providian Flnanmal Corporation were spun off to the stockholders of Prov1d1an
Corporation.

Our mailing address is 201 Mission Street, San Francisco; California 94105. We are listed on
the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) and the Pacific Exchange under the symbol PVN. Our
Internet address is www.providian.com. Through our Internet Web site, we make available free of
charge our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on
Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material
with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). Our Code of Business
Conduct and Corporate Governance Guidelines and the charters of our Board of Directors’ Audit and
Compliance Committee, Human Resources and Compensation Committee, and Nominating and -
Corporate Governance Committee are available in the “Corporate Governance” section of our Web
site, and you can also obtain, without charge, copies of these documents by writing to us at Providian
Financial Corporation, 201 Mission Street, San-Francisco, CA 94105, Attention: Corporate Secretary.
We filed our CEO Certification with the NYSE in May 2004, as required by the NYSE’s Corporate
Governance Standards. The chief executive officer and chief financial officer certifications required to
be filed with the SEC regarding the quality of our public dlsclosures are attached to our Annual Report
on Form 10-X as. Exhibit 31 1 and Exhibit 31 2.. :

Through our subsidiaries we provide credit card and deposit products to customers throughout
the United States. Qur lending and deposit taking activities are currently conducted through Providian
National Bank (“PNB”). PNB is among the top ten bankcard issuers in the United States (based on
managed credit card loans outstanding as of December 31, 2004).

Business Strategy and Marketing

Our primary line of business is our credit card business, which generates consumer loans
primarily through Visa credit cards and also through MasterCard credit cards. We target creditworthy
customers across the broad middle to prime market segments, with a particular focus on middle market
customers who are underserved by many large, prime-oriented card issuers. In originating new loans,
we focus on the parts of the middle and prime market segments that we expect to be the most
profitable and creditworthy. We expect to generate profitable customer relationships through our
proprietary marketing program, which emphasizes the portion of the market we refer to as
“mainstream America,” and through our partnership and co-branding marketing programs, which use
targeted criteria to market our credit card products to creditworthy individuals associated with various
groups and organizations with which we enter into arrangements to serve their members. “Mainstream
America” refers to a target market composed of creditworthy people throughout the United States
generally defined by our credit, income, demographic, and psychographic criteria.

To acquire new customers, we use proprietary targeting and analytics to identify the most
attractive credit card prospects and match them with our product offerings. Currently, we utilize




prescreened and non-prescreened direct mail as the primary new customer acquisition channel,
augmented by online and telemarketing activities and other channels.

Our “New Providian” marketing strategy, which we introduced in February 2004, emphasizes
delivery of products, services, and rewards specifically designed for mainstream American consumers,
both through proprietary marketing programs and marketing arrangements with co-branding and
affinity partners. We are committed to treating our customers with respect and to recognizing and
rewarding them for their loyalty and responsible use of credit. In keeping with our focus on
“mainstream America,” we offer a Providian Real Information program, which provides customers with
free online access to their credit score and other information to manage their credit, and a Providian
Real Rewards program, which provides rewards that are designed to be more meaningful to our
targeted customers than rewards offered by competing credit card products. For example, in return for
making payments on time over a specified period, we award points that can be redeemed for gift
certificates at restaurants and retail establishments or for credit on account fees. We also offer points
for making purchases and for carrying a balance.

In addition to credit cards, we market a variety of cardholder service products to our customer
base. These products, which we may originate ourselves or jointly market with others, include debt
suspension, auto- and health-related services, credit-related services, and selected insurance products. In
2005, we expect to expand the number and types of products that we offer to customers.

Credit and Collections

Our prescreened account solicitation process uses information from credit reporting agencies to
identify consumers who are likely to be interested in and eligible for an account. We also use a variety
of non-prescreened account solicitation processes in which potential consumers may be identified from
other sources including partnership arrangements and third party prospect lists.

Customers who respond are reviewed according to our credit and underwriting criteria. We use
internally generated risk technology and scoring models for new accounts, as well as widely accepted
scoring and analytical tools such as those devised by Fair Isaac Corporation. Under our current credit
criteria, we do not originate accounts to consumers with FICO® credit scores below 600, as derived
from information available in credit bureau reports. We establish pricing and credit limits based on the
customer’s credit profile and on our profitability and risk guidelines.

After an account is opened, we monitor the customer’s risk profile regularly and may adjust
product features or pricing, or both, as the relationship evolves, in order to strengthen profitability and
reduce loss exposure over time. To strengthen our relationships with our best customers, we upgrade
relationships by providing product upgrades and more competitive pricing and increasing credit lines. In
cases where the customer fails to comply with the account agreement or presents a higher credit risk,
we may increase the interest rate. For higher risk customers, we may also reduce the credit line or
close the account.

We charge late fees, returned check fees, and overlimit fees, and may charge other fees when
appropriate, in accordance with the terms. of the account agreement. Under our account agreements,
we reserve the right to change or terminate at any time, subject to applicable notice requirements, any
terms, conditions, services, or features of the account agreement (including increasing or decreasing
interest rates, other fees and charges, or minimum payment requirements).

Until the fourth quarter of 2001, we focused on three market segments: the standard market
segment (higher risk and generally underserved customers who might not ordinarily qualify for credit




cards, including customers with past credit problems or limited credit history); the middle market
segment (customers whose credit is typically superior to the standard market segment but inferior to
platinum and prime market segment customers); and the platinum market segment (customers with
generally good credit history). In the fourth quarter of 2001, we discontinued new account marketing to
the standard market segment. We also tightened credit line increases in all segments and selectively
repriced loans that exhibited increased risk levels.

An account is contractually delinquent if the minimum payment billed to the consumer is not
received by the next due date. We use a delinquency lifecycle strategy, in combination with event-driven
approaches, consumer counseling, and consumer debt management programs, to manage delinquent
accounts. Under the delinquency lifecycle strategy, we prioritize collections to focus on delinquency
status, with attention to customer events within each stage of delinquency. We believe this facilitates
management and collector accountability for, and ownership of, collection results.

After a loan becomes delinquent, we charge off the principal balance no later than the last day
of the calendar month in which the account becomes 180 days past due under the terms of the account
agreement. Loans that have been restructured under our consumer debt management program are
charged off no later than 120 days or 180 days after they become contractually past due, depending on
the account’s delinquency status at the time it entered the debt management program and its
subsequent payment history. We recognize charge-offs for bankrupt and deceased customers generally
within 30 days after notification of the bankruptcy and 60 days after verification of death. Fraud losses
(losses due to the unauthorized use of credit cards, including credit cards obtained through fraudulent
applications) are not included in credit losses and are charged to non-interest expense after an
investigation period of up to 90 days.

We do not include in our loan balances or other assets, and do not recognize as income—that
is, we “suppress”—the portion of interest and fees that we estimate to be uncollectible. When the
principal amount of a loan is charged off, related accrued interest and fees included in loans receivable,
interest receivable, and due from securitizations, to the extent not previously suppressed, are reversed
against income. The suppressed amount related to such loans is never recognized. For a more detailed
discussion of our charge-off and revenue recognition policies, see “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Asset Quality” and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Overview of Critical
Accounting Policies—Interest and Fee Income Recognition.”

Funding and Liquidity

Our primary sources of funding are customer deposits, asset securitizations, a portfolio of cash
and liquid investment securities, and debt issuances. We maintain a substantial liquidity portfolio, which
consists of federal funds sold, securities purchased under resale agreements, available-for-sale
investment securities, and cash and cash equivalents. In 2004, our aggregate level of deposits, as well as
our liquidity position, continued to decrease. However, we expect to continue to maintain a significant
level of liquidity in accordance with the Capital Plan that PNB submitted to its primary regulator in
February 2002, which is now a rolling two-year plan that PNB updates on a quarterly basis. For a
discussion of our funding and liquidity, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations—Funding and Liquidity.”

Competition

We compete against the full spectrum of credit card issuers, including issuers whose core
business is credit cards, issuers . who are subsidiaries of larger diversified financial services companies,




and issuers who are regional or local banks. In addition to competition from issuers of Visa and
MasterCard credit cards, we face competition from issuers of other general purpose credit cards,
private label retail cards, and, to a lesser extent, debit cards, as well as from lenders who offer home
equity loans as an alternative to credit cards. Many of these institutions are substantially larger and
have more resources than we do. In addition, our competitors may pursue litigation strategies by filing
lawsuits against us, or the card associations to which we belong, under the antitrust laws. Competition
is more intense in the lower risk spectrum of the middie and prime market segments on which we are
focusing our current marketing efforts than in the higher risk market segments that were a source of
growth for us in 2000 and 2001. We compete opportunistically, leveraging our distinctive targeting,
analytics, underwriting, and marketing techniques, such as our marketing partnership programs, to
select and better serve our customer segments and manage our customer relationships.

Geographic Diversity

Our loan portfolios are geographically diverse, with no significant regional concentration of
credit risk. '

Employees

As of December 31, 2004, we had 3,263 employees and a total workforce, including temporary
and contract employees, of 3,285.

Organizational Structure

We operate principally through Providian National Bank, a wholly owned subsidiary
headquartered in Tilton, New Hampshire. PNB is a national banking association organized under the
laws of the United States and is a member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the
“FDIC”). PNB was originally organized as a state bank in 1853 and converted to a national bank
charter in 1865.




REGULATORY MATTERS

PNB is subject to extensive banking-related supervision and regulation and also to numerous
federal and state laws relating to consumer protection and privacy matters. See “—Supervision and
Regulation Generally.” After we announced our third quarter 2001 delinquency and credit loss
experience in the fall of 2001, we and our banking subsidiaries at the time, PNB and Providian Bank
(“PB”) (which was merged into PNB effective December 31, 2003), entered into written regulatory
agreements. As required by those agreements, PNB submitted a three-year capital plan (the “Capital
Plan”) to its primary regulator, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (the “Comptroller”),
which provided goals and strategies with respect to its capital and liquidity position. The Capital Plan is
now a rolling two-year plan that PNB updates on a quarterly basis pursuant to the terms of its written
agreement with its primary regulator. We expect the Capital Plan, as updated from time to time, will
continue to be consistent with our strategic objectives of measured and profitable receivables growth
and improving credit quality, while continuing our focus on maintaining strong, high-quality capital and
lquidity.

Our Regulatory Agreements

PNB entered into a written agreement with its primary regulator in November 2001. Under this
agreement, the board of directors of PNB created a written agreement compliance committee
responsible for ensuring, monitoring, and coordinating the bank’s compliance with and implementation
of the agreement. Under the agreement, PNB agreed that it would not declare or pay dividends, or
make any capital distributions, without obtaining the prior consent of its primary regulator. PNB also
agreed to cease originating new accounts in the market segment then identified as our standard market
segment, develop growth restriction plans, including limitations on credit line increases within the
standard market segment and appropriate restrictions on new accounts and credit line increases in
other market segments, and develop a capital plan. PNB also agreed, among other things, to review
credit loss allowances for the loans on its books and to ensure that it maintains allowances consistent
with regulatory requirements.

We also entered into a capital assurances and liquidity maintenance agreement with PNB,
Under this agreement, we agreed to provide certain capital and liquidity support to PNB, subject to
certain exemptions for near-term cash obligations. In particular, we agreed to provide such capital
support to PNB as may be necessary from time to time to ensure that PNB achieves and maintains the
capital ratios set forth in the Capital Plan. See “—The Capital Plan.” Our obligations under this
agreement will continue to remain in effect unless PNB and we terminate them by mutual agreement
and obtain regulatory consent to such termination. We can provide no assurances that, if we were to
seek regulatory consent to such termination, such consent would be forthcoming.

The Capital Plan

In February 2002, PNB submitted to its primary regulator a Capital Plan consistent with the
requirements of the written agreement, including capital, liquidity, and growth restrictions. The Capital
Plan provides a comprehensive strategy for maintaining a strong capital position and a high quality of
capital at PNB. The business and operational strategies reflected in the Capital Plan continue to
include a focus on maintaining strong levels of liquidity while reducing reliance on insured deposits as a
source of funding, reducing the levels of residual interests retained by PNB in its securitizations relative
to its level of capital, maintaining appropriate credit loss allowances, improving the overall risk profile
of the loan portfolio, maintaining an appropriate and measured level of growth, reducing overhead and
related operating expenses, and achieving a more stable level of long term profitability.




Under the Capital Plan, as updated in the third quarter of 2002, PNB committed to achieve by
June 30, 2003, and maintain thereafter, capital ratios associated with well capitalized status after
applying increased risk weightings consistent with the Expanded Guidance for Subprime Lending
Programs (“Subprime Guidance”) issued by the federal banking regulators in 2001. PNB’s commitment
to achieve such capital ratios was modified in connection with PNB’s December 2002 adoption of new
regulatory accounting and capital guidance regarding the accrued interest receivable asset related to
securitizations (“AIR”) such that the date for achieving capital ratios associated with well capitalized
status, including the impact of the AIR guidance, was extended to June 30, 2004. PNB achieved all of
the capital ratio goals it committed to achieve under the Capital Plan by the dates it committed to
achieve them, and subsequently has maintained capital ratios above those goals.

The Capital Plan identifies a number of strategies designed to meet the goals of the Plan,
including: ‘

Balance Sheet and Liquidity Management. In accordance with the Capital Plan, we continue our
commitment to maintaining a strong liquidity position at PNB. Consistent with the Capital Plan, we
improved the quality of the assets PNB holds on its balance sheet that are funded by deposits, such
that since December 31, 2003, PNB’s deposits have been covered by cash, liquid investments, and a
risk-adjusted portion of on-balance sheet loans. During 2005 we will continue, consistent with the
Capital Plan, to seek to further enhance the quality of assets at PNB that support insured deposits.
Subject to ongoing review and update of the Capital Plan and the impact of evolving regulatory
standards, we expect PNB to continue to maintain assets of sufficient quality on its balance sheet to
fully cover its deposits, as contemplated by the Capital Plan. However, there can be no assurance that
it will be successful in doing so.

Refocusing New Business. In 2002, PNB began implementing a strategy of originating new
accounts from both the middle and prime market segments in order to achieve a more stable loan
portfolio, more stable earnings, and lower, less volatile credit loss rates. In 2003 and 2004, PNB further
refined its strategy to focus on the parts of the middle and prime segments expected to be the most
profitable by recruiting higher quality customers through our proprietary marketing program, which
emphasizes the portion of the market we refer to as “mainstream America,” and through our
partnership and co-branding programs. ’ :

Capital Contributions. In 2004, we made no capital contributions to PNB, which relied on
internally-generated capital to increase its capital base and improve its capital ratios. In December 2004
PNB paid an in-kind dividend to us. See “—Dividends and Transfers of Funds.”

Other Matters

In June 2000, we reached settlements with the San Francisco District Attorney, the California
Attorney.General, and the Connecticut Attorney General, and PNB reached a settlement with the
Comptroller regarding certain alleged unfair and deceptive business practices. We and certain of our
subsidiaries stipulated to the entry of a judgment and the issuance of a permanent injunction, and PNB
stipulated to the issuance by the Comptroller of a Consent Order, both of which prohibit specified
practices. Those prohibitions remain in effect.

In January 2003, the Comptroller, in coordination with the Federal Financial Institutions
Examination Council issued new guidance to the industry on credit card account management and loss
allowance practices. We are working to achieve full compliance with the guidance, with a continuing
focus on minimum payment requirements and credit line management and the goal of achieving full
compliance by December 31, 2005. We believe that compliance with the guidance will have no material




impact on our business. However, we can make no assurance that our primary regulator will agree as
to our compliance with the guidance, nor can we estimate what financial impact, if any, could result
from future regulatory actions with respect to such guidance.

Supervision and Regulation Generally

Holding Company Status. We are the parent company of PNB, which is a national banking
association. However, we are not required to register as a bank holding company under the Bank
Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended (the “BHCA”). Before 1987, PNB was a so-called
“nonbank bank.” This means that it was not a “bank” under the BHCA because it did not both accept
demand deposits and make commercial loans. The Competitive Equality Banking Act of 1987
(“CEBA”) revised the definition of “bank” to include generally all FDIC-insured institutions. CEBA
grandfathered the rights of companies that owned “nonbank banks” on March 5, 1987. As a result,
subject to certain restrictions, these companies were able to retain ownership of their nonbank banks
without registering as bank holding companies.

The restrictions on CEBA-grandfathered banks were liberalized by the Gramm-Leach-Bliley
Act of 1999 (the “GLB Act”). The GLB Act repealed the Glass-Steagall Act of 1933, which separated
commercial and investment banking, and eliminated the BHCA's prohibition on insurance underwriting
by bank holding companies. Under the GLB Act, PNB is permitted to engage in new activities, which it
was not permitted to do under CEBA, so long as it does not both accept demand deposits and make
commercial loans. The GLB Act also eased CEBA restrictions on PNB’s ability to cross-market its
products and services with the products and services of its affiliates. In addition, the GLB Act increased
our ability to acquire the assets of additional insured depository institutions, effectively eliminating the
CEBA restriction that prevented us from acquiring more than 5% of the assets of another insured
depository institution. However, our ability to take advantage of these opportunities continues to be
significantly limited by the Capital Plan and the written agreement between PNB and its primary
regulator.

We could be required to register as a bank holding company under the BHCA if PNB ceases
to observe the CEBA restrictions, as modified by the GLB Act, or if we or any of our affiliates
acquires control of an additional insured depository institution (excluding exempt institutions such as
credit card banks). If we were required to register as a bank holding company, we would be subject to
the restrictions set forth in the BHCA. These restrictions would, among other things, limit our activities
to those the Federal Reserve Board deems to be closely related to banking and a proper incident
thereto. However, the restrictions, if they were to apply to us, would not be expected to have a material
adverse effect on our business as currently conducted. We could voluntarily elect to become a financial
holding company under the GLB Act if we met certain eligibility requirements; however, there can be
no assurance that we would meet such requirements. If we were to become a financial holding
company, we would be permitted to engage in a broader range of activities than would be permitted if
we were a bank holding company under the BHCA. We currently have no plans to become a bank
holding company under the BHCA or a financial holding company under the GLB Act.

Investment in Our Company and Our Subsidiary Bank. PNB is an “insured depository
institution” within the meaning of the Change in Bank Control Act of 1978 (the “CIBC Act”).
Accordingly, an individual or entity must obtain the prior written approval of the Comptroller before it
may acquire “control” (as defined in the CIBC Act) of PNB.

For purposes of the BHCA, an individual or entity may not acquire “control” of us, and a
bank holding company may not directly or indirectly acquire ownership or control of more than 5% of
our voting shares, without the prior written approval of the Federal Reserve Board. Our CEBA




grandfather rights are nontransferable. Thus, if an individual or entity acquired “control” of us or if a
bank holding company acquired ownership or control of more than 5% of our voting shares, we would
be required to limit our activities and our non-banking subsidiaries’” activities to those the Federal
Reserve Board deems to be closely related, and a proper incident, to banking. As noted above,
however, if we were to become a financial holding company under the GLB Act, we would be
permitted to engage in a more expansive range of activities than are permitted for bank holding
companies under the BHCA, subject to any continuing limitations imposed by the Capital Plan and the
written agreement between PNB and its primary regulator.

Dividends and Transfers of Funds. Prior to the fall of 2001, dividends from our banking
subsidiaries were a primary source of our funds. Federal law limits the extent to which PNB can supply
funds to us and our affiliates through dividends, loans, or otherwise. These limitations include
minimum regulatory capital requirements, restrictions concerning the payment of dividends, and
Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act of 1913, as amended, which govern transactions
between a banking organization and its affiliates. In addition, PNB is subject to federal regulatory
oversight to assure safety and soundness. In general, federal banking laws prohibit an insured
depository institution from making dividend distributions if such distributions are not paid out of
available earnings or would cause the institution to fail to meet applicable capital adequacy standards.
Under the Capital Plan and the written agreement between PNB and its primary regulator, PNB may
not declare or pay dividends without first receiving the consent of its primary regulator. In
December 2004, PNB received regulatory approval for, and paid, an in-kind dividend to us of certain
retained interests, which had a carrying value of $230.6 million, in PNB securitization transactions.
There can be no assurance that PNB will request regulatory consent to pay additional dividends to us,
or, if it were to make such a request, that such consent would be granted. See “—Capital
Requirements,” “—Qur Regulatory Agreements,” and “—The Capital Plan.”

Capital Requirements. PNB is subject to risk-based capital guidelines contained in regulations
adopted by the Comptroller. Risk-based capital ratios are determined by allocating assets and specified
off-balance sheet commitments to several risk weighted categories. Higher levels of capital are required
for the categories defined as representing greater risk.

Under current banking regulations, institutions generally are required to maintain a minimum
total risk-based capital ratio (total Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital to risk weighted assets) of 8%, and a Tier 1
risk-based capital ratio (Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets) of 4%, which correspond to the
minimum levels needed to be adequately capitalized. See “—Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
Improvement Act of 1991.” Risk-based capital guidelines are subject to change by the applicable
regulators and may be increased from time to time, generally or with respect to specific types of assets.
The Comptroller and the FDIC have established guidelines prescribing a minimum “leverage ratio”
(Tier 1 capital to adjusted total assets as specified in the guidelines) of 3% for institutions that have
the highest regulatory rating and meet certain other criteria, and a minimum leverage ratio of 4% for
institutions that do not meet the criteria.

The Comptroller and the FDIC may, however, set higher capital requirements when an
institution’s particular circumstances warrant. As described in detail under “—The Capital Plan,” PNB
committed to achieve and maintain capital ratios exceeding the regulatory minimums otherwise
applicable. The Comptroller may pursue a number of actions restricting PNB’s operations if it does not
achieve the required ratios. See “Risk Factors—PNB Is Required to Operate in Accordance with the
Capital Plan.” For information regarding PNB’s capital ratios as of December 31, 2004, please see
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Capital
Adequacy.”




The risk-based capital standards require risk-based capital to be maintained for assets
transferred with recourse, in an amount no greater than the maximum amount of recourse for which a
regulated entity is contractually liable. This rule, known as the low-level recourse rule, applies to
transactions accounted for as sales under GAAP in which a bank contractually limits its risk of loss or
recourse exposure to less than the full amount of regulatory risk-based capital that would be required if
the low-level recourse rule did not apply. Low-level recourse transactions include those in which a bank
securitizes assets and uses related retained interests as credit enhancements. PNB is required under this
rule to hold risk-based capital equivalent to the maximum contractual recourse exposure on the assets
transferred, not to exceed the amount of risk-based capital that would be required if the low-level
recourse rule did not apply.

Effective January 1, 2002, the federal banking agencies adopted a rule (the “residual interest
rule”) to revise their regulatory capital standards to address the treatment of recourse obligations,
residual interests, and direct credit substitutes in asset securitizations that expose banks to credit risk.
The residual interest rule added new standards for the treatment of retained interests related to
securitizations, including a concentration limit for credit-enhancing interest-only strips receivable. This
rule is intended to result in more consistent regulatory capital treatment for certain transactions
involving similar risk and capital requirements that more closely reflect a banking organization’s
exposure to credit risk. Specifically, the rule amended capital standards by: providing a more consistent
risk-based capital treatment for recourse obligations and direct credit substitutes; applying a ratings-
based approach that sets varying capital requirements for positions in securitized transactions according
to their relative risk exposure; deducting from Tier 1 capital the amount of credit-enhancing
interest-only strips receivable that exceeds 25% of Tier 1 capital (concentration limit); and requiring
“dollar-for-dollar” risk-based capital for certain residual interests not deducted from Tier 1 capital. As
of December 31, 2004, PNB’s interest-only strips receivable represented 9.57% of its Tier 1 capital,
which is below the 25% concentration limit. However, at December 31, 2004 PNB held
“dollar-for-dollar” risk-based capital (as defined in the regulations) against approximately $1.32 billion
in residual interests from its securitizations. .

Under the federal banking agencies’ clarifying guidance, issued in May 2002, on the regulatory
capital treatment of the accrued interest receivable (“AIR”), the AIR asset is defined as a subordinated
retained interest that requires “dollar-for-dollar” risk-based capital. The agencies provided guidance on
the accounting for the AIR asset in December 2002. We adopted the guidance for the capital treatment
and the accounting of the AIR in the fourth quarter of 2002. See “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Securitizations of Loans Receivable” for a
discussion of our AIR accounting practices.

In June 2004, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision published a proposal for a new
framework, widely known as Basel II, to replace the global risk-based capital rules set forth in the 1988
Basel Capital Accord. Basel II modifies the Basel Committee’s April 2003 proposal for a new capital
adequacy framework for banks. If implemented, the new rules, among other changes, would replace the
current risk weightings for most credit risks with a system based on external and internal ratings, and
expose banks that securitize assets to a capital system also based on external and internal ratings.
Changes in U.S. capital standards resulting from the Basel Committee’s proposal are expected no
earlier than 2006. It is not clear whether or how the new framework, if adopted, would affect our
business.

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991. Among other things, the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 (“FDICIA’) requires federal bank
regulatory authorities to take “prompt corrective action” when insured depository institutions do not
meet minimum capital requirements. For these purposes, FDICIA established five capital tiers: well
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capitalized, adequately capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized, and critically
undercapitalized. Under regulations adopted by the Comptroller and the FDIC, an institution is
generally classified as well capitalized or adequately capitalized according to its total risk based capital
ratio, Tier 1 risk based capital ratio, and leverage ratio, as follows:

Well Adequately
Capitalized  Capitalized
Capital Ratio - Calculation Ratios Ratios
Total risk-based. . .......... (Tier 1 + Tier 2)/Total
risk-based assets =10% =8%
Tier 1 risk-based .. ......... Tier 1/Total risk-based assets =6% 24%
Leverage ................ Tier 1/Adjusted average assets 25% 24%

An institution is classified as undercapitalized if it does not meet any of the adequately
capitalized tests, significantly undercapitalized if it has a total risk-based capital ratio under 3%, and
critically undercapitalized if it has a ratio of tangible equity (as defined in the regulations) to total
assets that is equal to or less than 2%.

An adequately capitalized institution is permitted to accept brokered deposits only if it receives
a waiver from the FDIC, and it must limit the interest it pays on deposits to a rate that is not more
than 75 basis points higher than the prevailing rate in its market for so long as it remains only
adequately capitalized. Undercapitalized institutions cannot accept brokered deposits, must limit the
interest they pay on all solicited deposits, and are subject to growth and other limitations and
requirements. Significantly undercapitalized institutions may be subject to a number of additional
requirements and restrictions. Critically undercapitalized institutions are subject to appointment of a
receiver or conservator and, beginning 60 days after becoming critically undercapitalized, may not make
any payment of principal or interest on their subordinated debt (subject to certain exceptions).

FDICIA also required federal banking agencies to revise their risk-based capital standards to
adequately address concentrations of credit risk, interest rate risk, and risk arising from non-traditional
activities. The Comptroller and the FDIC have identified these risks and an institution’s ability to
manage them as important factors in assessing overall capital adequacy, but have not quantified them
for use in formula-based capital calculations. The Comptroller and the FDIC have further revised their
risk-based capital rules to address market risk. Financial institutions with 10% or more of total assets in
trading activity or $1 billion or more in trading activity are required to use internal risk measurement
models to calculate their capital exposure for market risk and to hold capital in support of that
exposure. PNB holds “dollar-for-dollar” capital as defined in applicable regulatory guidance against its
retained interests in securitizations, which are measured at fair value like investments in debt securities
held for trading under GAAP, and its trading activity has been below the thresholds that would
otherwise require additional capital for market risk exposure. Accordingly, these market risk rules have
not affected PNB’s capital requirements.

Deposit Insurance Assessments. PNB’s deposits are insured up to applicable limits by the Bank
Insurance Fund (the “BIF”) of the FDIC. Accordingly, PNB is subject to assessment for deposit
insurance premiums. Under the FDIC’s risk-based insurance assessment system, each insured
institution is placed in one of nine risk categories, based on its level of capital, supervisory evaluations,
and other relevant information. The assessment rate applicable to PNB depends in part on the risk
assessment classification assigned to it by the FDIC and in part on the BIF assessment schedule
adopted by the FDIC. BIF-insured institutions such as PNB are currently assessed premiums at an
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annual rate between 0% and 0.27% of eligible deposits. PNB is also subject to assessments for payment
of Financing Corporation (“FiCo”) bonds issued in the 1980s as part of the resolution of the problems
of the savings and loan industry. The FiCo assessment rate applicable to BIF-insured deposits is
0.0144% per annum for the first quarter of 2005 and may be adjusted quarterly to reflect a change in
the assessment base for the BIF

Consumer Protection Laws. The relationship of PNB and its customers is extensively regulated
by federal and state consumer protection laws. The most significant laws include the Truth-in-Lending
Act of 1968, Bank Secrecy Act of 1970 and USA Patriot Act of 2001, Equal Credit Opportunity Act of
1974, Fair Credit Reporting Act of 1970 (the “FCRA”), Truth-in-Savings Act of 1991, Telemarketing
and Consumer Fraud and Abuse Prevention Act of 1994, Electronic Funds Transfer Act of 1978, the
GLB Act, Federal Trade Commission Act, and unfair and deceptive practices laws of the various states
in which we do business. These statutes, among other things, impose disclosure requirements when a
consumer credit loan is advertised, when the account is opened, and when monthly billing statements
are sent. They also limit the liability of credit card holders for unauthorized use, prohibit discriminatory
practices in extending credit, impose limitations on the types of charges that may be assessed and on
the use of consumer credit reports, regulate the privacy of consumer information, require disclosure of
privacy policies, impose restrictions on the sharing of customer information among companies, and
prohibit unfair and deceptive practices. In recent years, states have become increasingly active in
regulating areas such as privacy and predatory lending. In a number of lawsuits, the authority of states
to regulate national bank operations has been challenged, on grounds that the National Bank Act of
1864 preempts such state laws. In general, federal courts have supported the preemptive authority of
the National Bank Act, and in January 2004 the Comptroller published revisions to its rules to clarify
the preemptive effect of federal laws regulating activities of national banks and their operating
subsidiaries. We are unable to predict the outcome of these cases or the availability of federal
preemption as a defense to state law claims.

The National Bank Act authorizes national banks to charge customers interest at the rates
allowed by the laws of the state in which the bank is located, regardless of an inconsistent law of a
state in which the bank’s customers are located. PNB relies on this ability to “export” rates to facilitate
its nationwide credit card business. In 1996, the United States Supreme Court held that late payment
fees are “interest” and therefore can be “exported” under the National Bank Act, deferring to the
Comptroller’s interpretation that interest includes late payment fees, insufficient funds fees, overlimit
fees, and certain other fees and charges associated with consumer credit loans.

Privacy. We maintain policies that prohibit access to and disclosure of consumer information
without our authorization. In addition, our contracts with third parties that provide services in support
of our business, including servicing and data processing, require them to maintain the confidentiality of
consumer information. Under the GLB Act, a financial institution must disclose its privacy policy and
provide consumers with the opportunity to opt out of certain types of information sharing with
unaffiliated third parties. The GLB Act expressly permits states to adopt more stringent privacy
requirements. Some states have adopted laws or regulations imposing stricter limitations on information
sharing, and it is our policy to comply with them where applicable. Various states are considering
enacting enhanced privacy requirements. We cannot predict the nature and extent of any such
additional privacy requirements, as they might be adopted. Legislative consideration has also been
given to various proposals to limit the use of social security numbers by government and business. We
cannot predict the outcome of these proposals nor their impact on us, should they become law.

Legislative and Regulatory Developments. Over the last several years, members of Congress have

proposed legislation to substantially revise the laws governing consumer bankruptcy. The Senate passed
comprehensive bankruptcy reform legislation in March 2005, which contains provisions intended to curb
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abuse in the current bankruptcy system, including a means test for consumer bankruptcy filings, and
new requirements for consumer lending disclosures. Passage of the proposed bankruptcy reform
legislation in the House of Representatives is considered likely, but we are unable at this time to assess
its impact if it is enacted. If bankruptcy reform legislation is enacted that makes it more difficult for
consumers to avoid making payments on loans, there could be a significant increase in consumer
bankruptcy filings in the period prior to the date that such legislation becomes effective with a
corresponding increase in our credit losses.

The Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act of 2003 (the “FACT Act”), which was signed
into law in December 2003, amended the FCRA and permanently extended several provisions of the
FCRA that had been granted a temporary federal preemption in 1996 and were scheduled to expire on
January 1, 2004. These provisions, including those relating to prescreening, dispute resolution, and
affiliate information sharing practices, establish uniform national standards that cannot be changed by
state legislation. The FACT Act directed the Federal Trade Commission (the “FTC”) to adopt a rule to
improve the required notice to consumers regarding their right to opt out of prescreened solicitations
for credit or insurance. The FTC’s final rule on prescreen opt-out disclosures, issued in January 2005,
outlines the format, manner, and type size of these consumer notices to ensure that they are “simple
and easy to understand.” In addition, the rule requires companies to post a toll-free number for
consumers to opt out. We expect to be in compliance with the requirements of the FTC’s rule by the
August 1, 2005 effective date.

In September 2004, the Comptroller issued Advisory Letter 2004-10, which alerts national
banks to the Comptroller’s concerns regarding credit card marketing and account management
practices. Three practices that are specifically mentioned in the advisory letter are: certain advertising
of credit limits “up to” a maximum dollar amount; using promotional rates in credit card solicitations
without clearly disclosing significant restrictions; and increasing a cardholder’s annual percentage rate
or cost of credit when the circumstances triggering such an increase have not been fully or prominently
disclosed. While we believe that PNB’s practices are consistent with the guidance provided in the
advisory letter, there can be no assurance that the Comptroller will agree with our assessment.

From time to time, members of Congress have introduced proposals for the regulatory
restructuring of the financial services industry and the reform of the federal deposit insurance system,
as well as legislation to impose a statutory cap on credit card interest rates and fees, to require
additional disclosures, or to prohibit certain practices with respect to open-ended credit plans. In recent
years state legislatures have entertained similar proposals as well as others to expand consumer
protection laws, such as laws regulating information sharing, identity theft, and marketing and
underwriting practices. We cannot predict the outcome of these proposals nor their impact on us,
should they become law.

See “Risk Factors—PNB Is Required to Operate in Accordance with the Capital Plan,” “—We
Could Be Required to Provide Support to Our Banking Subsidiary,” “—PNB’s Regulators Can Impose
Restrictions on Its Operations,” and “—Changes in Government Policy and Regulation Can Negatively
Affect Our Results.”
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RISK FACTORS

Delinquencies and Credit Losses Affect Our Financial Performance.

We face the risk that our revenues will be reduced by losses incurred when customers do not
repay their credit card loans. A high credit loss rate (the rate at which we charge off uncollectible
loans) hurts our overall financial performance and increases our cost of funds, and a high delinquency
rate (the rate at which customers fail to make payments on their loans on time) may indicate a greater
risk that loans will become uncollectible. Both the delinquency rate and the credit loss rate on our
consumer loans increased significantly in 2001 and 2002. Although the delinquency and credit loss rates
generally improved in 2003 and continued to do so in 2004, they remain subject to fluctuation due to
portfolio “seasoning,” portfolio composition, general economic conditions, and other factors, which may
negatively affect our financial performance.

“Seasoning” refers to the average age of a loan portfolio. Credit card accounts tend to
experience increased delinquencies and credit losses as the loan balances “season,” or age, until they
reach a peak period following which, with appropriate portfolio management, losses may stabilize or
moderate. A significant portion of our portfolio was originated before we implemented our current
strategy of selectively recruiting higher quality customers. Although that portion of our portfolio is
declining as a percentage of the total and has in large part reached its expected peak loss period, the
relatively higher credit loss experience on such accounts continues to affect our financial performance.
At the same time, the accounts originated under our current marketing strategy are seasoning, and the
loss and delinquency rates on the portion of our portfolio originated under our current marketing
strategy can be expected to increase as accounts pass through their peak loss periods.

The composition of our portfolio has changed significantly since 2001. The sale in 2002 of our
interests in the Providian Master Trust, which generally had lower delinquency and credit loss rates,
resulted in an increase in the percentage of accounts in our remaining portfolio with higher
delinquency and credit loss rates. Although we have discontinued new account marketing to customers
in the standard market segment and refocused our business on higher credit quality customers in the
middle and prime market segments, the full impact of these changes will be realized only over time.
Although the loss and delinquency rates on our newer accounts have been significantly lower than
under our prior strategy, the loss and delinquency history on these newer accounts is limited and their
performance cannot be predicted with certainty. Moreover, the impact of an economic downturn on
our credit loss rate has been, and in the future could be, exacerbated by the higher risk loans in the
standard and middle market segments that remain in our loan portfolio.

We maintain an allowance for credit losses, which we believe to be adequate to cover credit
losses inherent in our reported loans, but we cannot assure you that the allowance will be sufficient to
cover actual credit losses.

Our Growth Rate Is Subject to Continued Uncertainty.

Before the fourth quarter of 2001, our credit card portfolios grew rapidly, and that growth was
a major contributor to growth in our earnings. Due to increased delinquencies and losses, in the fourth
quarter of 2001, we discontinued new account marketing to our standard market segment, reduced
lending to the highest risk customers within the middle market segment, and discontinued our
international operations. These changes, together with our strategic asset sales, resulted in a decrease in
the size of our loan portfolio. The size of our loan portfolio is expected to grow more slowly as a result
of the implementation of our current strategy of selectively recruiting higher credit quality customers.




We cannot assure you that we will be able to retain existing customers or attract new
customers, or that we will be able to increase account balances for new or existing customers. Many
factors could adversely affect our ability to retain or attract customers and our ability to grow account
balances. These factors include general economic factors, competition, the effectiveness of our
marketing initiatives, negative press reports regarding our industry or our company, the general interest
rate environment, our ability to recruit or replace experienced management and operations personnel,
the availability of funding, and delinquency and credit loss rates.

An important contributor to our growth and earnings in the past was the development and
expansion of new credit card products and related cardholder service products. Aggregate sales of our
cardholder service products have declined and remain lower than historical levels, reflecting reduced
rates of account growth and our changing asset mix. If we are unable to implement new cardholder
products and features, our ability to grow may be negatively affected. Declining sales of cardholder
service products has resulted, and may continue to result, in reduced income from fees associated with
those products.

We May Not be Able to Successfully Originate Profitable New Middle and Prime Market Loans.

Although we have made significant progress in our turnaround efforts, there can be no
assurance that we will continue to be successful in our efforts to refocus the business on the higher
credit quality segments of the market. Competition in the higher credit quality segments of the market
is particularly intense, which results in generally lower returns on assets because of lower interest rates,
fees, and sales of cardholder service products within those segments. If we are unable to execute our
strategy of originating new loans from the middle and prime market segments through our New
Providian and partnership marketing programs, we may be unable to achieve a more stable loan
portfolio with more stable earnings and lower, less volatile credit loss rates. Failure to execute on our
strategy could have a material adverse effect on our financial results and on our ability to achieve our
goals under the Capital Plan (see “—PNB Is Required to Operate in Accordance with the Capital
Plan”) and could resuit in deterioration of our asset quality and performance.

We Face Intense Competition.

We face intense and aggressive competition from other consumer lenders in all of our product
lines. As we have refocused our business on more creditworthy customers, we compete with a broader
set of competitors than we have in the past, many of which are larger and more diversified than we are
and have lower costs and greater resources than we have. Customer loyalty is often limited, particularly
among the higher credit quality customers we seek to attract through our current marketing strategy.
Affiliations among commercial banks, securities firms, and insurance companies may increase the
number of competitors in the banking industry and the level of competition for banking products,
including credit cards. In addition, competition has intensified due to continuing consolidations in the
banking and financial services mdustry, which has resulted in significantly larger institutions with
significantly greater resources.

Our competitors have taken and may in the future take competitive actions such as offering
lower interest rates and fees, larger credit lines, and other incentives to customers to use our
competitors’ credit cards and other products and/or transfer existing balances to our competitors’ credit
cards, and pursuing litigation strategies against us and other companies in an effort to increase their
market share. These and other competitive practices couid result in decreases in our account and
balance growth, the loss of existing customers and/or reductions in account balances, increased
customer acquisition costs, and reductions in the interest and fees that we charge.
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Fluctuations in Our Accounts and Account Balances Will Affect Our Financial Results.

Our accounts and account balances fluctuate from time to time. Among other things, the
strategic asset sales we executed in 2002 and, to a lesser extent, in 2003, substantially changed the
scope of our business and operations. In addition, our marketing initiatives, competition, the economy,
consumer payment and spending patterns, delinquencies and charge-offs, and the rate at which our
business grows contribute to fluctuations in accounts and balances.

Reduced loan balances will reduce interest income because the interest charges that accrue on
the loans we make to our customers are based on a percentage of the applicable outstanding loan
balance. In addition, lower loan balances and an increase in the percentage of higher quality loans in
our portfolio have resulted in, and will likely continue to result in, lower income from cardholder
service products and performance fees. This will likely result in reduced aggregate income from
interest, fees, and other charges.

Our Financial Results Could Be Hurt by the Performance of Securitized Loans and Changes in the
Valuation of Our Interests in Securitizations.

We retain certain interests in the assets created in our securitizations, including retained
subordinated securityholders’ interests, interest-only strips, and spread accounts. The income we earn
from these interests depends on many factors, including the performance of the securitized loans,
fluctuations in discount rate assumptions, interest paid to securityholders, and other expenses. The
performance of the securitized loans is subject to the same risks and uncertainties that affect the loans
that we have not securitized. These risks and uncertainties include, among others, delinquencies and
credit losses, economic downturns and social factors, interest rate fluctuations, changes in government
policies and regulations, changes in accounting rules and changes or differences in the interpretation
and application of such rules, competition, expenses, dependence on third party vendors, fluctuations in
accounts and account balances, and industry risks.

With the deterioration of the credit quality of our portfolio in 2001 and 2002, we retained
larger subordinated interests in securitizations than in prior years, due to the increased levels of credit
enhancement required in our securitization transactions. Although our required credit enhancement
levels have begun to decrease as credit quality has improved, retained subordinated interests continue
to represent a significant portion of our reported assets. In general, these interests are reported at fair
value. The value of the retained interests will fluctuate over time due to factors such as the amount of
loans securitized, the performance and credit risk of the securitized loans, and market interest rates
and other market conditions. Changes in the valuations of our retained subordinated interests and the
assumptions and methods used to calculate such valuations, and changes or differences in the
interpretation and application of accounting rules relating to such valuations, can have a material
impact on our income and our assets. Further, we must maintain additional regulatory capital with
respect to these retained subordinated interests. Increased capital levels can have a material impact on
our return on equity. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations—Overview of Critical Accounting Policies” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Securitizations of Loans Receivable.”

PNB Is Required to Operate in Accordance with the Capital Plan.
PNB continues to operate under the Capital Plan and its written agreement with its primary

regulator and is generally under close scrutiny by its regulators, who have broad authority to regulate
the operations and management of banks to assure safety and soundness. See “Regulatory Matters.”
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Among other things, beginning with the quarter ending June 30, 2004, the Capital Plan
requires PNB to maintain a total risk-based capital ratio of at least 10% after applying the Subprime
Guidance risk weightings and including in the calculation the impact of the AIR guidance. Although
PNB’s capital ratios satisfied the Capital Plan’s capital ratio requirements in 2004, they could fall below
the levels required under the Capital Plan if PNB’s assets grow faster than projected, or as a result of
other factors, such as greater than expected credit losses. In addition, PNB has committed under the
Capital Plan to maintaining substantial levels of liquidity while reducing the level of insured deposits,
improving the quality of the assets on its balance sheet that are funded by insured deposits, and
reducing the level of residual interests in securitizations. We cannot assure you that these goals will
continue to be met.

If PNB fails to adhere to the Capital Plan, its regulatory agreement, or other regulatory capital
requirements, it will face significant restrictions on growth and operating activities. Ultimately, if PNB
fails to adhere to such requirements, it could be ordered to cease deposit taking and lending activities.
Its regulators could also assess civil money penalties, initiate proceedings to terminate deposit
insurance, and assume control of PNB,

We Could be Required to Provide Support to Our Banking Subsidiary.

Under our capital assurances and liquidity maintenance agreement with PNB, we agreed to
contribute capital or otherwise provide support to PNB in order to maintain or meet its capital and
liquidity needs in accordance with the Capital Plan. In the third quarter of 2001 and in 2002, we
contributed a total of $398.0 million in cash to PNB, and in addition in 2002 we contributed the stock
of Providian Bancorp Services to PNB. Primarily as a consequence of these contributions, our
investment in subsidiaries as a percentage of our total equity, which is referred to as our “double
leverage,” at December 31, 2004 was 114% (after taking into account the in-kind dividend from PNB in
the fourth quarter of 2004 consisting of certain retained interests, which had a carrying value of
$230.6 million, in PNB securitization transactions). A double leverage ratio in excess of 100% indicates
the degree to which an investment in subsidiaries has been funded with long-term borrowings and other
liabilities of the parent company. The support we are required to provide to PNB in order to maintain
or meet its capital and liquidity needs could limit our ability to service debt obligations and expend
funds at the parent company level. The principal source of funds for us to make payments on parent
company debt securities and to meet other parent company obligations comes from our cash
investments and from dividends from PNB. PNB has agreed not to pay any dividends to us during the
term of its regulatory agreement without first obtaining regulatory consent. Although PNB was able to
obtain regulatory consent for the in-kind dividend to us in the fourth quarter of 2004, there is no
assurance that any future regulatory consent, if requested, will be granted.

We may determine to undertake capital raising strategies, such as convertible debt offerings,
offerings under our dividend reinvestment and direct stock purchase plan, and other equity or debt
offerings, or purchase retained interests in securitizations from PNB, in order to raise capital to
contribute to PNB or otherwise to support PNB. Such strategies could adversely affect our financial
results and/or stock price for a variety of reasons, including dilution to existing equity holders.

PNB’s Regulators Can Impose Restrictions on Its Operations.

PNB’s regulators have broad discretion to issue or revise regulations, or to issue guidance, that
may significantly affect us, PNB, or the way we conduct our business. For example, the banking
regulators have issued guidelines governing subprime lending activities that require financial institutions
engaged in subprime lending (including PNB) to carry higher levels of capital and/or credit loss
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allowances, and PNB is also subject to the banking regulators’ guidance to the industry on credit card
account management and loss allowance practices.

In addition, PNB’s regulators have imposed the restrictions discussed under “Regulatory
Matters,” and could impose further restrictions on our business, or increase existing restrictions. Any
new or more restrictive requirements could include, among others, requirements relating to: minimum
regulatory capital levels; the manner in which we calculate increased risk weightings for purposes of the
Subprime Guidance; deposit taking and rates paid on deposits and restrictions related to the quality of
assets funded by deposits; extensions of credit; account management, risk management, and loss
allowance practices; adoption of new or enhanced structures for the management of enterprise-wide
risk and internal controls; strategic acquisitions and asset growth; underwriting criteria; accounting
policies and practices (including increases in allowances for credit losses, acceleration of loss

" recognition for interest and fees, and modifications to securitization accounting practices); enhanced
scrutiny and consent requirements relating to our business plans and liquidity management; submission
of special periodic regulatory reports; and additional supervisory actions or sanctions under applicable
Prompt Corrective Action guidelines and other applicable laws and regulations.

The capital requirements of PNB are subject to qualitative judgments by its regulators with
respect to components, risk weightings, and other factors. Its banking regulators have the authority to
require PNB to adhere to higher capital requirements than those specified in the regulatory capital
rules or the Capital Plan. This could necessitate increasing capital ratios by various means, including
asset sales or equity issuances. In addition, the strategic initiatives that we have taken, and any that we
may take in the future, could have an impact on PNB’s capital ratios and requirements.

Any new or more restrictive requirements could hurt our financial results, limit our growth
prospects, reduce our returns on capital, and/or require us to raise additional capital. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Capital
Adequacy.”

We Face Reduced Funding Availability and Increased Funding Costs.

Our major sources of funding are retail deposits, asset securitizations, our liquidity portfolio,
and debt issuances. As part of the Capital Plan, PNB committed to reduce reliance on insured deposits
and to improve the quality of assets funded by deposits. We substantially reduced our usage of the
broker channel in 2002 as a source of retail deposits as a result of our credit rating downgrades,
performance problems, and regulatory commitments. We cannot assure you that this channel will
remain open to us. Regulatory requirements could prohibit PNB from taking any deposits if it fails to
meet regulatory capital requirements. PNB’s regulators could prohibit it from taking deposits even
under circumstances where current regulations would not otherwise prohibit deposit taking. Our ability
to raise funds through deposit taking could also be diminished if, in order to attract deposit customers,
the rates that we have to pay on such deposits increase. This could happen, for example, as a result of
increased competition in the deposit market.

In addition to retail deposits, we rely heavily on the securitization of our credit card receivables
to fund our business. We experienced deterioration in our asset quality and downgrades in our debt
ratings during 2001 and 2002. This reduced our access to securitization funding and resulted in higher
funding costs and less favorable terms than were previously available to us. If our asset quality
deteriorates, or our debt ratings or those of PNB are downgraded again, our funding capabilities would
be negatively affected. Economic, legal, regulatory, accounting, and tax changes, as well as regulatory
actions and other events affecting our competitors, can also make future securitizations and other
sources of funding more difficult, less efficient, more expensive, or unavailable.
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Although we have been able to complete new securitization transactions and maintain a
substantial liquidity portfolio since adoption of the Capital Plan and from time to time may sell
non-essential assets to generate cash to run our business, we cannot assure you that we will continue to
be able to access these funding sources in the future. Competition for funding sources comes from a
wide variety of institutions, many of which have more capital and resources and higher credit ratings
than we do. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Funding and Liquidity.”

We Could Experience a Change in the Status of Our Securitizations.

Our financial results, regulatory capital, and ability to fund ongoing operations could be
negatively affected by certain changes in the status of our securitizations. This could lead to PNB’s
failure to meet its commitments under the Capital Plan.

When we securitize our consumer loans, we record the securitizations as sales for GAAP and
regulatory accounting purposes. At the time of sale, we remove the securitized oans and related credit
loss allowance from our balance sheet and record our retained interests in the transaction. Certain
events could cause the securitized loans to be returned to our balance sheet, however. For example,
securitized loans would be returned to our balance sheet if a securitization transaction were found to
have failed to meet the applicable criteria for sale treatment under GAAP, or if PNB’s regulators were
to determine that a transfer involved “implicit recourse,” or if the “revolving period” of a transaction
were terminated ahead of schedule. If an event were to occur that caused the securitized loans to be
returned to our balance sheet, we would be required to establish a credit loss allowance and maintain
regulatory capital with respect to those loans and adjust gains and losses previously recognized in
connection with the securitizations.

“Implicit recourse” relates to the regulatory requirement that banks hold risk-based capital
against assets sold or securitized with recourse, even if, for GAAP purposes, those assets have been
removed from the bank’s balance sheet. For regulatory purposes, “recourse™ is an arrangement in
which a bank sells assets but explicitly or implicitly retains a risk of loss that exceeds a pro rata share
of the bank’s interest in the sold assets. Implicit recourse can exist when, for example, a bank takes
actions to improve the credit quality or market value of an asset-backed security after the related assets
have been sold. Although PNB’s regulators have not asserted that implicit recourse exists with respect
to any of our securitization transactions, there would be negative consequences if the regulators were to
determine that any of our securitization transactions involved implicit recourse.

During the revolving period of a securitization, we do not distribute to investors their share of
monthly principal payments. Instead, the investors’ share of principal payments is used to fund the
investors’ purchase of replacement loans receivable. Certain events, called early amortization events,
could accelerate the termination of the revolving period. Early amortization events include excess
spread triggers (based on a formula that takes into account interest and fee yield, interest, servicing,
and other administrative costs and credit losses allocated to a particular series), breaches of certain
representations, warranties, or covenants, insolvency or receivership, and servicer defaults, and, for
some series, may include the occurrence of an early amortization with respect to our other
securitization transactions. The securitizations we issued in 2002 and 2003 contain terms that are
generally less favorable than those contained in our past securitization transactions, including additional
amortization events. For example, under certain securitizations issued in 2002 and 2003, early
amortization can be triggered based on a minimum shareholders’ equity test, failure to maintain a
back-up servicing agreement under certain conditions, or the failure of an interest rate cap provider to
make required payments. We maintained a back-up servicing agreement until February 2005, when it
was terminated under conditions which did not result in the occurrence of an early amortization.
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Although our excess spread rates have improved, there is still a risk that an early amortization event
based on excess spread triggers or on other events could occur with respect to one or more series of
securitizations. If termination of the revolving period is accelerated, principal payments on securitized
loans would be paid to investors to reduce their invested interest, and our “seller’s interest” would
correspondingly increase. As the seller’s interest increases, we would need to obtain alternative sources
of funding, establish additional credit loss allowances, and maintain additional regulatory capital. This
would negatively affect our financial results and liquidity. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Securitizations of Loans Receivable.”

We Face Potential Fluctuations in Expenses That Could Hurt Our Profitability.

Our profitability depends in part on our ability to maintain and develop the systems necessary
to operate our business and control the rate of growth of our expenses. As part of the strategic
initiatives we began in 2001, we have taken actions, such as workforce reductions, to reduce expenses
and streamline operations. However, as our business develops or changes, additional expenses can arise,
including expenses from structural reorganizations, workforce reductions and facilities closures,
reevaluation of business strategies, product development, and increased funding costs. Expenses related
to defending against legal proceedings and other legal and administrative costs could also increase. In
addition, some of our expenses are fixed costs and cannot be reduced. These fixed costs represent a
larger portion of our total expenses as our size has decreased due to asset sales and changes to our
business focus. All else being equal, an increase in fixed costs relative to total expenses negatively
affects our profit margins.

We Rely on a Number of Third Party Vendors and Service Providers in the Operation of Our Business.-

Our business depends on a number of third parties, including telemarketing and data
processing providers, providers of credit enhancement, insurance, and liquidity in connection with our
securitizations, nationwide credit bureaus, co-branding and affinity partners, postal and telephone
service providers, public utilities, bankcard associations, cardholder service providers, transaction
processing service providers, and technology outsourcing vendors. Some of these vendors are located
outside the United States. Overall, our use of third party vendors has increased as a result of
operational efficiency measures implemented beginning in 2003. Problems with any of these
relationships or disruption in one or more of these services could disrupt our operations, create legal
exposure, or hurt our financial results.

We Are Dependent on Our Management and Operations Personnel.

Our growth and profitability depend in part on our key management and operations personnel.
We are currently not permitted to make key management changes without approval by the Comptroller.
If, for any reason, we are not able to recruit or replace key personnel, or if we are unable to recruit or
replace capable employees generally, our operations and financial results could be negatively affected.

Interest Rate Fluctuations Can Hurt Qur Profitability.

We borrow money from institutions and depositors in order to lend money to our customers.
The difference between the rates we pay to borrow money and the rates we earn on the loans we make
to our customers (the “spread”) affects our earnings and the value of our assets and liabilities.
Accordingly, interest rate movements that affect this spread can have a material effect on our
profitability. If the interest rates we pay on our deposits and borrowings increase to a greater extent
than the rates our customers pay to us, or if the interest rates that we charge customers are reduced
(as a result of competition or otherwise) to a greater extent than the interest rates we pay on our
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deposits and borrowings, our profits could be negatively affected. Interest rate movements may also
affect our profits if they result in changes to the discount rate assumptions that we use to value
interests retained in our securitizations.

A substantial portion of our receivables earn interest at variable, rather than fixed, rates, and
from time to time we may make changes to the rates we charge our customers that could have an
effect on the spread. Increases in the interest rates charged to customers could result in customers
using our credit cards less frequently, carrying smaller balances, or looking to other credit sources or
could lead to increased credit losses, which could negatively affect our financial performance as
accounts and account balances decrease: See “—Fluctuations in Our Accounts and Account Balances
Will Affect Our Financial Results.”

We generally seek to mitigate risks to earnings and capital arising from movements in interest
rates. The main tools we use to manage our interest rate sensitivity are investment decisions, pricing
decisions on our loans receivable and, when deemed appropriate, derivatives, including interest rate
swap and cap agreements. However, these techniques and instruments rely on the exercise of significant
judgment, are subject to numerous uncertainties, and may not protect against certain risks. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Interest
Rate Sensitivity.”

Changes in Government Policy and Regulation Can Negatively Affect Our Results.

Federal and state laws significantly limit the types of activities in which we or PNB may engage
and the manner and terms on which PNB may offer, extend, manage, and collect loans. Congress, the
states and other governmental bodies in the jurisdictions in which we operate may enact new laws and
regulations, or amend existing laws and regulations, relating to consumer protection, debtor relief,
collection activities, and consumer privacy. Such laws and regulations could make it more difficult or
expensive for us to make or collect our loans. New laws and regulations could also limit the interest
and fees that we may charge our customers or impose new disclosure requirements relating to pricing
and other terms. In addition, failure to comply with laws and regulations could result in lawsuits, public
relations problems, and increased regulatory scrutiny, and might require us to pay substantial
settlement costs, damages, or penalties. As a result, new laws or regulations or changes in existing laws
or regulations could hurt our financial results. Changes in government fiscal or monetary policies,
including changes in capital requirements and our rate of taxation, could also hurt our financial results.

Economic Downturns and Consumer Behavior Could Negatively Affect Our Financial Results.

Because our business is concentrated in the credit card sector, our financial performance may
be more severely affected by changes affecting that sector than if our business were more diversified. In
particular, changes in consumer behavior due to economic conditions or social factors can affect our
results. In addition to increases in delinquencies and credit losses, economic downturns and recessions
could cause a reduction in consumer demand and spending. Numerous social factors also affect credit
card use, payment patterns, and the rate of defaults by accountholders. These social factors include
changes in consumer confidence levels, the public’s perception of the use of credit cards, the policies
and practices adopted by other credit card issuers, and changing attitudes about incurring debt and
personal bankruptcy. If accountholders carry reduced balances or fail to pay their balances because of
economic downturns or recessions, interest and fee income could decline, credit losses could increase,
and our financial performance could be negatively affected. -
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Legal Proceedings and Related Costs Could Negatively Affect Our Financial Results.

We face the risk of governmental proceedings and litigation, including class action lawsuits,
challenging our product terms, rates, disclosures, and collections or other practices, under state and
federal consumer protection statutes and other laws, as well as actions relating to federal securities
laws. In particular, state attorneys general and other government prosecutors have shown an increased
interest in the enforcement of consumer protection laws, including laws relating to subprime lending,
predatory lending practices, and privacy. We face the potential of litigation and compliance costs and
may from time to time be required to change specific business practices, depending on the outcome of
such litigation and other legal proceedings. For example, PNB continues to be subject to a consent
order, issued by the Comptroller in June 2000, that obligated PNB to make certain changes in its
business practices following allegations of unfair and deceptive business practices brought by the San
Francisco District Attorney, the California Attorney General, and the Connecticut Attorney General.
We and certain of our subsidiaries are also subject to an injunction effecting the terms of the
settlements entered into in connection with those allegations.

Litigation and other proceedings may result in the adoption of business practices different from
those of our competitors, as well as payment of settlement costs, damages, and in some cases penalties,
which would affect our financial results. See “Legal Proceedings.”

Disputes Affecting Visa and MasterCard Could Have an Adverse Impact on Our Operations and Financial
Results.

We are a member of Visa U.S.A. Inc. and MasterCard International Incorporated. Visa and
MasterCard are membership associations composed of financial institutions that issue Visa or
MasterCard credit and debit cards. The outcome of pending or future disputes against the
associations—for example, disputes relating to foreign currency conversion fees—could, if adversely
decided, affect our operations or result in an increase in the fees we must pay as members. The
associations could be liable for significant amounts of damages and/or be forced to make changes in
their pricing structures or other operational changes. The associations could, in turn, increase the fees
they levy on their members. The outcome of these cases could negatively affect our operations and
financial results in ways that we cannot currently predict.

In a lawsuit filed in 1998, the U.S. Justice Department challenged the associations’ duality
structure, which permits overlapping ownership and control of the associations by the same group of
banks. The lawsuit also sought to invalidate the associations’ rules that restrict member banks from
joining competing networks such as American Express and Discover/Novus. The trial court rejected the
duality claim, but ruled against the associations on the competing networks claim. The trial court’s
ruling was affirmed on appeal, and in October 2004 the U.S. Supreme Court let stand the lower court’s
decision. In a related development, American Express has sued us and seven other major banks, Visa,
and MasterCard, in an antitrust lawsuit alleging anti-competitive practices. Ending the associations’
competing network rule will allow banks to issue general-purpose cards other than Visa and
" MasterCard cards, which could alter the structure of the credit card industry.

Other Industry Risks Could Affect our Financial Performance.

We face many industry risks that could negatively affect our financial performance. For
example, we face the risk of fraud by accountholders and third parties, as well as the risk that increased
criticism from consumer advocates or the media could hurt consumer acceptance of our products. In
addition, the financial services industry as a whole is characterized by rapidly changing technologies,
and system disruptions and failures may interrupt or delay our ability to provide services to our

22




customers. In particular, we face technological challenges in the developing online credit card and
financial services market. We also face claims relating to widely used technologies that are alleged to be
proprietary in nature, including call center technology. The secure transmission of confidential
information over the Internet is essential to maintain consumer confidence in certain of our products
and services. Security breaches, acts of vandalism, and developments in computer capabilities could
result in a compromise or breach of the technology we use to protect our customers’ personal
information and transaction data. Consumers generally are concerned with security breaches and
privacy on the Internet, and Congress or individual states could enact new laws regulating the
electronic commerce market that could adversely affect us.
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OUR EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Our executive officers and information regarding their positions and business experiences are

as follows:

Name and Age

Principal Occupation and Business Experience

Joseph W. Saunders
Age: 59

John Botcheller
Age: 55

Chaomei Chen
Age: 46

Susan Gleason
Age: 57

Richard A. Leweke
Age: 51

Ellen Richey
Age: 56

President and Chief Executive Officer since November 2001 and Chairman since
May 2002. Mr. Saunders was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Fleet
Credit Card LLC from 1997 to November 2001. Prior to that, he was head of the
credit card operations at Household Credit Services and held various executive
positions at Household International, Inc. over a 12-year period. Mr. Saunders is
a member of the Board of Directors of Visa U.S.A. Inc.

Executive Vice President, Finance since July 2003, responsible for controllership
activities and corporate planning. Mr. Botcheller was the Chief Financial
Executive of Woori Bank, a commercial bank in Korea, from June 2000 to
March 2003. Prior to that, he was corporate controller of Aetna

International, Inc. from 1998 to 2000.

Vice Chairman, Credit and Collections and Chief Credit Officer from

October 2004 and Vice Chairman, Credit and Collections, from August 2002 to
October 2004. From June 1998 to August 2002, Ms. Chen was Executive Vice
President at Fleet Credit Card Services, responsible for credit risk management,
credit policy, collections, and fraud operations; and from May 1996 to June 1998,
she was Senior Vice President at PNC National Bank in Delaware, responsible
for risk management, credit policy, and credit operations.

Vice Chairman, Operations and Enterprise Technology since May 2004 and Vice
Chairman, Operations and Technology from January 2002 to May 2004.

Ms. Gleason was Executive Vice President, Operations and Information
Technology at Fleet Credit Card Services from 1998 to January 2002. From 1985
to 1998, she held various executive positions at Household Credit Services, with
responsibility in the areas of operations, information technology, human
relations, facilities and security.

Vice Chairman and Chief Human Resources Officer since March 2003.

Mr. Leweke joined Providian as Executive Vice President, Compensation and
Benefits in January 2003. Prior to joining Providian, he spent 11 years at
California Federal Bank, where he served in a number of capacities, most
recently as Executive Vice President, Director, Human Resources and
Administrative Services, from 1997 to January 2003.

Vice Chairman, Enterprise Risk Management, Chief Legal Officer and
Corporate Secretary since October 2004. Ms. Richey has been a Vice Chairman
since October 1999 and corporate secretary since January 1995. She was also
General Counsel from October 1999 to July 2004, when she became Chief Legal
Officer, and Vice Chairman, Enterprise Risk Management from March 2003 to
July 2004. From July to October 2004, Ms. Richey was also Chief Enterprise
Risk Officer.
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Anthony Vuoto
Age: 53

Warren Wilcox
Age: 47

Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer since April 2002. From April 2001 to
April 2002, Mr. Vuoto was an independent consultant, and from February 2000
to April 2001, he was President and Chief Operating Officer, First USA Bank.
From August 1999 to February 2000, he was President, Bank One Consumer
Lending Division. He was Director, Distribution and Sales at Citibank Germany
from February 1998 to August 1999; and he was General Manager, Credit Cards,
at Citibank Germany from February 1996 to February 1998.

Vice Chairman, Planning and Marketing since May 2004 and Vice Chairman,
Marketing and Strategic Planning from January 2002 to May 2004. From 1998 to
2001, Mr. Wilcox was Executive Vice President, Planning and Development at
Fleet Credit Card Services. From 1994 to 1998, he was Executive Director,
Planning and Marketing at Household Credit Services. From 1993 to 1994,

Mr. Wilcox was an executive at Fair Isaac Corporation, with responsibilities in
certain new business development activities.
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PROPERTIES

We lease our executive offices at 201 Mission Street, San Francisco, California, currently
totaling approximately 60,000 square feet. The current lease term expires on November 30, 2006. We
own our processing centers at 4900, 4920, 4940, 5020 and 5040 Johnson Drive, Pleasanton, California,
totaling approximately 283,000 square feet. PNB owns its headquarters office, which is located at 295
Main Street, Tilton, New Hampshire, and has a branch located at 44 Main Street, Beimont, New

Hampshire, which is leased.

Significant operations centers and other properties are located at the following leased pfemises:

Location

Square Footage

150 Spear Street, San Francisco, California

123 Mission Street, San Francisco, California

1333 Broadway, Oakland, California

3801 South Collins Boulevard, Arlington, Texas

6500 Tracor Lane, Austin, Texas

1440 Goodyear Drive, El Paso, Texas

53 and 54 Regional Drive, Concord, New Hampshire
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LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Following the announcement in October 2001 of our third quarter 2001 delinquency and credit
loss experience, a number of lawsuits were filed against us and certain of our executive officers and/or
directors. These included Rule 10b-5 securities class actions and two shareholder derivative actions.

The Rule 10b-5 securities class actions were filed in the District Court for the Northern
District of California. These consolidated actions (In re Providian Financial Securities Litigation)
alleged that we and certain of our officers made false and misleading statements concerning our
operations and prospects for the second and third quarters of 2001 in violation of federal securities
laws. The class comprised those persons or entities who acquired our stock between June 6, 2001 and
October 18, 2001. In September 2004, a settlement of these actions on a classwide basis for $65 million
received final approval from the court. Our insurance carriers have funded the settlement amount, in
addition to the attorneys’ fees that we incurred for our own defense. However, coverage of these
actions under our insurance policies for amounts above $50 million is subject to a reservation of rights
by the affected insurers to contest coverage, and these reservation of rights claims have not yet been
resolved.

The shareholder derivative actions were filed in December 2001 and January 2002 in California
state court in San Francisco. These actions generally sought redress against members of our Board of
Directors and certain executive officers and alleged breach of fiduciary duty, gross negligence, breach
of contract, and violation of state insider trading law. These actions have been settled for $1 million,
which was funded under our insurance policies, subject to the reservation of rights described above.
The settlement was approved by the Court in January 2005.

Beginning in 1999, we were named as a defendant in a number of legal proceedings relating to
allegedly unfair and deceptive business practices by our banking subsidiaries in the marketing of
cardholder service products and other practices. In June 2000, we reached settlements with the
Comptrolier, the San Francisco District Attorney, the California Attorney General, and the Connecticut
Attorney General with respect to these consumer claims. In November 2001, settlement of the
consumer class action and other lawsuits pending in state and federal court relating to such practices
received final state court approval, and the federal court actions were dismissed in March 2002. In
connection with these settlements, we agreed to make certain business practice changes and to pay
restitution to affected customers. Approximately 6,400 class members opted out of participation in the
class action settlement, approximately 80% of whom were represented by counsel in Mississippi and
Alabama. We settled the Mississippi and Alabama. opt-out claims on a global basis in 2004. Under the
settlement, individual actions filed by 60 of the class members were dismissed, and approximately 5,000
individual claims were released, in exchange for payments made to the claimants out of previously
established reserves.

In February 2001, we were named as a defendant in a putative consumer class action suit
entitled Ross v. Visa U.S.A. Inc., et al., which was filed in the United States District Court for the
Eastern District of Pennsylvania against Visa, MasterCard and a number of credit card issuing banks.
The suit alleges that uniform foreign currency surcharges allegedly imposed by the defendants are the
result of a conspiracy in restraint of trade and violate the federal antitrust laws. The suit also alleges
that the defendant banks violated the Truth-in-Lending Act by failing to separately identify these
surcharges to their customers on their monthly statements. Similar lawsuits were subsequently filed in
California and New York. In August 2001, the Federal Judicial Panel on Multidistrict Litigation
transferred all of these cases to the Southern District of New York. In January 2002, plaintiffs filed an
amended consolidated complaint, which the defendants moved to dismiss. In July 2003, the court
granted the motion to dismiss the plaintiffs’ claim for actual damages under the Truth-in-Lending Act,
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and denied the motion to dismiss the plaintiffs’ antitrust claims. The plaintiffs’ motion for class
certification was granted in October 2004. Various motions challenging this order are pending before
the court. This case remains in the discovery phase.

In July 2002, we were named as a defendant in a putative class action suit entitled Shoars v.
Providian Bancorp Services, Providian Financial Corporation, et al. The suit was filed against us in
California state court and alleged that our Paid Time Off (“PTO”) plan violated California Labor Code
section 227.3 because we capped the payout of PTO benefits for terminated employees at 40 hours.
Following removal of the case to federal court and the subsequent remand to state court, the parties
settled the case on a classwide basis for $5.7 million in the first quarter of 2004. All payments to class
members have been paid.

In January 2004, a state court putative class action, Ventura v. Providian National Bank, was
filed in Orange County, California, alleging that PNB’s minimum payment calculation results in
improper overlimit fees and that its payment posting practices result in improper interest charges and
late fees. The complaint alleges a single breach of contract claim and seeks damages, attorneys’ fees,
and other relief. In February 2004, a state court putative class action, Marotta v. Providian National
Bank, was filed in Orange County, California, alleging that plaintiffs’ annual percentage rates were
improperly increased without proper notice. The complaint alleges a single breach of contract claim
and seeks damages, attorneys’ fees, and other relief. Both cases are in the preliminary discovery phase.

In November 2004, we, along with seven other major banks, Visa, and MasterCard, were
named as defendants in an antitrust lawsuit alleging anti-competitive practices, American Express Travel
Related Services Company, Inc. v. Visa US.A. Inc., et al. The litigation arises from the Department of
Justice’s successful antitrust suit against Visa and MasterCard challenging the associations’ rules
prohibiting member banks from issuing American Express or Discover cards. All defendants filed
motions to dismiss the complaint, which are set for hearing in April 2005.

We have been advised that an individual has made a claim against us and one of our vendors,
alleging that we and/or the vendor received discounted bulk mail postage rates from the U.S. Postal
Service on certain mailings between 1997 and 2001 that were not eligible for the discounted rates. The
allegations involve claims that such mailings were not eligible for bulk mail postage rates because
requirements relating to the updating of mailing lists were not satisfied. If we were not entitled to
receive the discounted rates, we could be subject to treble damages, penalties, and other relief. The
Civil Division of the Department of Justice is working with the U.S. Postal Service to investigate these
allegations and to determine whether to pursue the matter. We have received a subpoena from the U.S.
Postal Service and have provided documents in response to the subpoena.

In February 2004, we received a demand in arbitration from Credigy Receivables alleging a
breach of contract by our subsidiary, First Select, Inc., in connection with the sale of a portfolio of
certain charged-off consumer credit card accounts. We settled this matter in the third quarter of 2004
and funded the settlement out of previously established reserves.

In November 2004, we settled the claim in arbitration by our former Chief Executive Officer,
Shailesh Mehta, concerning severance and other benefits alleged to be due under Mr. Mehta’s
employment agreement in connection with the termination of his employment in November 2001.
Pursuant to the settlement, Mr. Mehta received a cash payment of approximately $10 million. In
addition, in accordance with the terms of the employment agreement, all stock options outstanding at
the time of his termination were vested and are exercisable through their original expiration dates. All
of his unvested restricted stock was cancelled.
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In February 2005, PNB was named as a defendant in Koskey v. CompuCredit Corporation and
Providian National Bank, et al., a putative class action filed in Los Angeles Superior Court which arises
out of certain changes in the terms of customer account agreements, including increases to interest
rates, made in connection with the sale by PNB in 2002 of certain higher risk loans that were serviced
by CompuCredit. The plaintiffs allege that the changes were not adequately disclosed and that
customers were not given the opportunity to reject the increased interest rates. The putative class is
purported to consist of all accountholders whose balances plaintiffs allege were transferred from PNB
to CompuCredit. We have not yet answered the complaint.

In addition, we are commonly subject to various other pending and threatened legal actions
arising in the ordinary course of business from the conduct of our activities.

Due to the uncertainties of litigation, we can give no assurance that we will prevail on claims
made against us in the legal proceedings that we currently face or that additional proceedings will not
be brought. We believe that we have substantive defenses in the actions and claims described above,
and we intend to defend those actions and claims vigorously. We also establish reserves for expected
future litigation exposures that we determine to be both probable and reasonably estimable. However,
an informed assessment of the ultimate outcome of pending lawsuits and potential claims is not feasible
in many cases, and we cannot predict the potential future impact of pending lawsuits and potential
claims on us. While we do not presently expect these matters to have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, or results of operations, we can give no assurance that they will not have
such an effect.
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QUARTERLY AND COMMON STOCK DATA

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Unaudited)

Quarter ended

(dollars in thousands, except per share data) March 31 June 30 September 30  December 31
As Restated(1) As Restated(1) As Restated(1)

2004
INterest ifCOMIE . . v v v vt e e et e e et eee e $ 245,391 § 238410 § 258,644 $ 252,289
INterest eXpense . . . .. v vvv it v s cn i 133,712 123,003 119,374 119,567
Net interest inCOME . . . . v v e e v en e e 111,679 115,407 139,270 132,722
Provision for credit losses . .. .. ............. 88,852 182,017 161,351 85,075
Non-interest iNCOMe . v v v v v v vt e e e v oo enn 386,779 401,258 421,208 396,036
Non-interest expense . .............ccoueron 266,006 259,093 - 256,933 264,305
Income before income taxes . ..........o..u.. 143,600 75,555 142,194 179,378
NetInCome . . .o v vv e e i e $ - 93667 § 49914 § 93,076 $ 144,587
Earnings per common share—basic . .......... $ 033 § 017 % 032 § 0.50
Earnings per common share—assuming :

dilution(2) .. ... $ 030 § 016 § 029 3§ 0.44
Weighted average common shares outstanding—

basic (000) .. ... 288,085 288,355 289,263 289,641
Weighted average common shares outstanding—

assuming dilution (000)(2) ................ 317,622 332,647 333,570 339,657

Quarter ended
(dollars in thousands, except per share data) March 31 June 30 September 30  December 31
As Restated(1) As Restated(1) As Restated(1) As Restated(1)

2003
Interestincome . . ... .ot i it $ 348,111 § 288,118 § 232,579 % 223928
Interest €XPense. . . o« v v v v i v et 171,845 163,867 154,907 143,171
Net interest income . . ........oveernnnan. 176,266 124,251 71,672 80,757
Provision for creditlosses . . .. ........ ... .. 261,815 132,004 98,732 129,793
NOD-INtErest INCOME + + v v v v v v v v e e e e o e e 433,788 401,122 461,123 429,899
Non-interest €Xpense .. ..........c..ceo.. 328,308 324,574 286,588 261,531
Income before income taxes . . ........c. ... 19,931 68,795 153,475 119,332
NetIncome.........ouuniiinenronnnn $ 12,262 § 41,693 § 03,062 § 72,337
Earnings per common share—basic . ......... $ 004 § 015 $ 032 3% 0.25
Earnings per common share—assuming

dilution(2) ... $ 0.04 § 014 $ 030 § 0.24
Weighted average common shares outstanding—

basic (000) .. ........0 i 286,187 286,310 287,620 287,682
Weighted average common shares outstanding—

assuming dilution (000)(2) . .............. 290,429 298,027 313,973 314,852

(1) See Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements, “Restatement of Prior Periods Presented,” for further

2)

discussion.

Amounts reflect the effect of adopting EITF Issue No. 04-8, “The Effect of Contingently Convertible
Instruments on Diluted Earnings per Share” (“EITF 04-8”), in the third quarter of 2004. We included the
dilutive effect of our contingently convertible notes in our calculation of diluted earnings per common share
from the time of issuance of the notes, in accordance with the if-converted methodology under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, “Earnings per Share” (“SFAS No. 128”). As required by EITF 04-8,
we have also restated our diluted earnings per common share for prior periods. The adoption of EITF 04-8
had the effect of reducing our diluted earnings per common share by $0.02 for Q4 2004, $0.03 for Q3 2004,
$0.01 for Q2 2004, and $0.02 for Q1 2004. For 2003, the adoption of EITF 04-8 had the effect of reducing our
diluted earnings per common share by $0.01 for Q4 2003 and $0.02 for Q3 2003, and had no impact on diluted
earnings per common share for Q2 2003 and Q1 2003 because the effect would have been antidilutive.
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COMMON STOCK PRICE RANGES AND DIVIDENDS (Unaudited)

Dividends Dividends
Declared Per Declared Per
High Low Common Share High Low Common Share

2004 - 2003

First quarter ... ... $ 1373 $ 11.36 — First quarter ...... $ 7328% 525 —
Second quarter. . . .. 1510 1196 — Second quarter. . . .. 10.25 6.78 —
Third quarter . .. ... 1555 1320 — Third quarter . . .. .. 12.00 9.11 —
Fourth quarter . . ... 16.86  14.59 — Fourth quarter . .. .. 13.00  10.30 —

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “PVN.” There were 7,248
holders of record of our common stock as of February 28, 200S. Providian National Bank, our banking subsidiary,
is subject to restrictions on its ability to pay dividends to us. See “Regulatory Matters—Our Regulatory
Agreements” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—
Funding and Liquidity.”
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(dollars in thousands, except per share

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Year ended December 31,

data) 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
As Restated(1) As Restated(1) As Restated(1) As Restated(1)
Unaudited Unaudited

STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA
Interest income . ................ $ 994734 % 1,092,736 § 1,682,485 % 2,599,669 $ 2,686,205
Interestexpense . ............. ... 495,656 633,790 771,994 934,309 874,779

Net interest income . ............ 499,078 458,946 910,491 1,665,360 1,811,426
Provision for credit losses. . ......... 517,295 622,344 1,291,738 2,014,342 1,502,083
Non-interest income ... ........... 1,605,281 1,725,932 2,328,215 2,802,877 3,261,797
Non-interest expense . . ... ......... 1,046,337 1,201,001 1,808,882 2,347,510 2,406,020

Income from continuing operations

before income taxes . ... ......... 540,727 361,533 138,086 106,385 1,165,120
Income tax exXpense . . ... .......... 159,483 142,179 25,585 44,560 465,471

Income from continuing operations . . 381,244 219,354 112,501 61,825 699,649

Income (loss) from discontinued

operations, net-of-taxes . . . . ....... — — 67,156 (118,271) (32,262)

Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle, net-of-taxes . . . . — — — 1,846 —
NetIncome ............ ... $ 381,244 219,354 § 179,657 § (54,600) $ 667,387
Income from continuing operations per

common share—assuming dilution(2) . $ 1.19 074 § 039 § 022 % 2.39
Net Income per common share—

assuming dilution(2) . . ........... $ 1.19 074 $ 062 $ 0.19) § 2.28
Cash dividends declared per common

share . ..ot $ — — $ — § 0090 § 0.105
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

CONDITION DATA
Loans held for securitization or sale ... § — — § — 3 1,410,603 $ —
Loans receivable(3) . .............. 7,522,401 6,280,957 6,907,757 11,559,140 13,560,724
Allowance for credit losses . . . ....... (599,703) (625,886) (1,012,461) (1,932,833) (1,436,004)
Total assets . ................... 14,344,539 14,246,315 16,598,729 19,843,659 18,093,723
Deposits . ........... .. ... .... 9,471,004 10,101,057 12,662,077 15,253,150 13,080,969
Borrowings . ............... . ... 1,461,358 1,272,349 955,577 1,060,656 1,028,076
Equity .. ... ..o 2,709,529 2,296,417 2,086,871 1,893,819 2,111,988
REPORTED FINANCIAL DATA
Adjusted margin on average loans(4) . . . 8.57% 8.52% 10.67% 14.36% 22.49%
Net interest margin on average loans(5) . 8.40% 9.71% 11.50% 11.72% 13.78%
Delinquency rate(6) .............. 4.61% 6.64% 10.00% 7.58% 9.02%
Net credit loss rate(7) .. ........... 7.94% 12.79% 13.61% 10.70% 8.35%
MANAGED FINANCIAL DATA
Loans receivable(8) . . . ............ $18,535,753 16,934,308 $§ 19,627,508 $ 32,653,417 § 26,913,382
Adjusted margin on average loans(9) . . . 8.28% 6.31% 7.57% 10.64% 15.98%
Net interest margin on average

loans(10) . ...y 13.66% 14.90% 15.45% 12.78% 12.60%
Delinquency rate(11) . . .. .......... 6.16% 9.29% 11.11% 8.81% 7.54%
Net credit loss rate(12) ............ 11.65% 15.82% 16.29% 10.78% 7.72%
OTHER STATISTICS
Total accounts (000s) at year-end ... .. 10,257 10,487 12,020 18,397 15,968
Return on reported average assets . . . . . 2.77% 1.39% 1.01% 0.27)% 3.83%
Return on managed average assets(13) . . 1.70% 0.89% 0.63% (0.15)% 2.42%

32




Return on average equity . .. .. ...... 15.46% 10.22% 8.90% (242)% 39.78%

Equity to reported assets . . ......... 18.89% 16.12% 12.57% 9.54% 11.67%
Equity to managed assets . . . ........ 11.46% 9.91% 7.90% 5.04% 6.83%
(1) See Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements, “Restatement of Prior Periods Presented,” for further discussion.

@

G)
(4)

S

(6)
Q)
®)

®

Amounts reflect the effect of adopting EITF 04-8 in the third quarter of 2004. We included the dilutive effect of our
contingently convertible notes in our calculation of diluted earnings per common share from the time the notes were
issued, in accordance with the if-converted methodology under SFAS No. 128. As required by EITF (4-8, we have also
restated our diluted earnings per common share for prior periods. The adoption of EITF 04-8 had the effect of reducing
our diluted earnings per common share by $0.04 for 2004 and $0.01 for 2003, and had no impact on diluted earnings per
common share for 2002, 2001, and 2000 because the effect would have been antidilutive.

Represents all consumer credit products; amounts exclude estimated uncollectible interest and fees. See Note 5 to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Represents interest income, less interest expense and net credit losses, plus credit product fee income on reported average
loans receivable, expressed as a percentage of reported average loans receivable. Interest expense is allocated to reported
average loans receivable based on the ratio of reported average loans receivable to reported average earning assets.
Represents interest income, less interest expense, expressed as a percentage of reported average loans receivable. Interest
expense is allocated to reported average loans receivable based on the ratio of reported average loans receivable to
reported average earning assets.

Represents reported loans receivable that are 30 days or more past due at period end, expressed as a percentage of
reported loans receivable at period end.

Represents principal amounts of reported loans receivable that have been charged off, less recoveries, expressed as a
percentage of reported average loans receivable during the period; fraud losses are not included.

Represents all loans receivable from customer accounts that we manage, including the loans receivable reported on our
statement of financial condition and the loans receivable removed or reclassified from our statement of financial condition
through our securitizations, Loans receivable amounts exclude estimated uncollectible interest and fees.

Represents interest income, less interest expense and net credit losses, plus credit product fee income on managed average
loans receivable, expressed as a percentage of managed average loans receivable. Interest expense is allocated to managed
average loans receivable based on the ratio of managed average loans receivable to managed average earning assets.

(10) Represents interest income on managed average loans receivable, less interest expense, expressed as a percentage of

managed average loans receivable. Interest expense is allocated to managed average loans receivable based on the ratio of
managed average loans receivable to managed average earning assets.

(11) Represents managed loans receivable that are 30 days or more past due at period end, expressed as a percentage of

managed loans receivable at period end.

(12) Represents principal amounts of managed loans receivable that have been charged off, less recoveries, expressed as a

percentage of managed average loans receivable during the period; fraud losses are not included.

(13) Managed assets represent total assets reported on our statement of financial condition, plus the loans receivable removed

or reclassified from loans receivable on our statement of financial condition through our securitizations, less the retained
interests from securitizations reported on our statement of financial condition,
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This discussion is intended to further the reader’s understanding of our consolidated financial
condition and results of operations. It should be read in conjunction with our historical financial
statements included in this Annual Report, the data set forth under “Selected Financial Data,” and the
discussion included under “Risk Factors.” Results for prior periods have been restated for various
correcting adjustments, to the extent applicable. These adjustments are discussed in Note 3 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements, “Restatement of Prior Periods Presented.” Our historical financial
statements may not be indicative of our future performance.

Our Business

We provide credit card and deposit products to customers throughout the United States. Our
lending and deposit taking activities are conducted through Providian National Bank (“PNB”), a wholly
owned banking subsidiary. We market consumer loans and deposits using distribution channels such as
mail, telephone, and the Internet.

We generate income primarily through interest charged on outstanding loan balances and fees
related to account usage and performance (such as late, overlimit, cash advance, balance transfer, and
annual membership fees), and from the sale of various cardholder service products. We receive
interchange fees from bankcard associations based on the purchase activity of our credit card
customers. In addition, we earn income on our investments held for liquidity purposes and from
servicing fees, excess servicing on securitized loans, and changes in the value of interests we retain in
connection with our securitizations.

Our primary expenses are funding costs, including interest costs related to customer deposits
and borrowings; credit losses; operating expenses, including salaries and employee benefits, advertising
and solicitation costs, occupancy costs, data processing and communication costs; and income taxes.

We seek to fund our assets through a diversified mix of sources and may vary the use of any
one source over time. Our ability to fund existing and future customer loans is currently dependent on
four primary sources: deposits, securitizations, a portfolio of cash and liquid investment securities, and
debt issuances. Securitization is a process in which we segregate a pool of customer loans by
transferring them to a trust, which directly or through other special-purpose entities issues certificates
or notes backed by the principal, interest, and fee cash flows generated by the pool of transferred
loans. At the time the certificates or notes are issued, we receive cash proceeds from the portion sold
to third parties.

Executive Overview

During 2004, we continued our efforts to strengthen our financial condition and build a
productive and sustainable portfolio of customer accounts supported by an appropriately sized and
efficient infrastructure. Building off our progress over the previous two years, we focused on four key
areas of our business:

¢ Further strengthening our balance sheet and managing our liquidity position;

e Implementing our “New Providian” and partnership marketing strategies, with a focus on
core earnings production;

*  Further improving credit performance; and

* Increasing operational efficiency and further reducing our operating expenses
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Balance Sheet and Liguidity. Our primary goals in this area have been to maintain strong
capital ratios and manage our liquidity portfolio in line with our growth expectations and PNB’s Capital
Plan. During 2004, consistent with the Capital Plan, our liquidity position decreased by $853.5 million,
to $4.79 billion, while deposit levels decreased, ending the period at $9.47 billion. As a means of
improving our overall balance sheet efficiency, PNB received approval from its primary regulator to pay
an in-kind dividend to us. The dividend consisted of certain retained interests, with a carrying value of
$230.6 million, in PNB securitization transactions. These assets strengthened the parent company’s
liquidity position and are expected to be available to meet future obligations and provide working
capital at the parent company.

During 2004, we accessed the capital markets with issuances of convertible notes and asset-
backed securities. The 2004 issuances consisted of $277.2 million of 2.75% convertible cash to accreting
senior notes, five term securitizations totaling $2.96 billion issued as owner trust notes backed by
certificates issued by the Providian Gateway Master Trust, and two variable funding series facilities
totaling $1.50 billion, one of which is a two-year revolving facility that replaced a one-year revolving
facility. Securitization funding under our variable funding series from third party securityholders totaled
$630.0 million as of December 31, 2004. Each asset-backed issuance in 2004 provided us with more
favorable terms than our issuances of asset-backed securities in 2003 and 2002.

Our capital position increased during the year and at the end of 2004 was $2.71 billion. At
December 31, 2004, our shareholders’ equity and allowance for credit losses, on a combined basis, were
equal to 44.0% of our reported loans. PNB continued to maintain strong levels of capital ratios
throughout the year, ending the year with a total risk-based capital ratio on a subprime basis of
19.47%.

Marketing. In 2004, we added approximately 2.1 million gross new accounts, of which about
70% were originated through our proprietary marketing program. We generated managed net
receivables growth of approximately $1.6 billion during the year as a result of strong balance generation
from new account originations and continued stabilization of our older core loan portfolio. We
continued to implement our growth strategy by focusing on our “New Providian” marketing, which
emphasizes delivery of products, services, and rewards specifically designed for mainstream American
consumers, and entering into additional marketing arrangements with co-branding and affinity partners.
We entered into several new marketing partnership arrangements during 2004, some of which are
scheduled to launch in 2005. The success of our “New Providian” and partnership marketing strategies
will continue to be a critical factor in our future earnings.

Credit. During 2004, we continued to improve the credit mix of our loan portfolio by
originating higher-quality loans receivable. We continued to benefit from the results of enhancements in
our collections processes and changes in our portfolio management strategies. These actions, combined
with the overall improvement in the economy, resulted in lower delinquencies and net credit losses in
2004 as compared to 2003. Our net credit loss rates for 2004 were 7.94% on a reported basis and
11.65% on a managed basis, compared to 12.79% and 15.82% for 2003. Our 30+ day delinquency rates
at December 31, 2004 were 4.61% on a reported basis and 6.16% on a managed basis, compared to
6.64% and 9.29% at December 31, 2003, Our earnings during 2004 benefited from a lower allowance
for credit losses, reflecting the improved risk composition of our reported assets. As part of our
continuing efforts to improve the credit quality of our portfolio, in March 2005 we completed the sale
of a portfolio of non-core, higher risk credit card loans held by PNB with a carrying value of
approximately $400 million at the date of sale.

-Operations. In 2004, we continued to recognize the benefits of streamlining our organization,
which included the consolidation of the Louisville, Kentucky collections activity, the San Antonio, Texas
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customer service operations, and the Oakland, California operations. The resulting reduction in our
infrastructure better aligns it with expected levels of customer accounts and delinquency volumes.
Reflecting these efforts and other actions over the past year, non-interest expense for the year ended
December 31, 2004 was $1.05 billion compared to $1.20 billion for 2003. Non-interest expense,
excluding solicitation and advertising, was $814.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, a
decrease of $193.4 million from 2003.

Other Key Factors. As indicated above in the discussion under “—Balance Sheet and Liquidity,”
we continue to access the capital markets through securitization funding arrangements. Securitizations
have remained a primary source of funding for our business. Securitizations have an impact on our
earnings because we record a gain or loss on the initial sale of loans in a securitization transaction and
we release the allowance for credit losses associated with the securitized loans. In addition, we retain
certain interests in the securitized loans, and we recognize changes in the fair value of these retained
interests in current earnings. These impacts can contribute to volatility in our earnings, specifically
non-interest income—servicing and securitization, from period to period. For example, during the
second and third quarters of 2004, our earnings benefited from increases in the valuation of
interest-only strips receivable recognized from increases in forecasted excess servicing, primarily due to
lower forecasted credit losses. Additionally, in 2003 and 2004, our earnings benefited significantly from
income recognized as a result of decreased discount rates and the resulting increase in the valuation of
our retained interests caused by spread compression in the credit markets. In contrast, in 2002 our
earnings were negatively impacted by increased discount rates and the resulting decrease in the
valuation of these interests due to the deterioration in the underlying credit characteristics of the
securitized loan portfolio. These fluctuations affect current period earnings; however, discounts
previously recognized on retained interests will accrete through earnings over the duration of a
securitization transaction, which may span a number of quarterly and annual reporting periods.

We continue to work on ways to reduce the level of these retained interests, in order to reduce
the volatility of our earnings from period to period. During 2003 and 2004, we took measures to reduce
this volatility by selling portions of our retained interests to third parties. In December 2004, we
completed the sale of $64.8 million of three-year floating rate notes that we had originally retained in
connection with a series of asset-backed notes issued in November 2004.

Restatement. In connection with the preparation of our financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2004, we undertook a review of certain aspects of our accounting for securitizations,
specifically interest-only strips. In the course of this review, we were advised by our independent
auditor of certain errors in our prior period financial statements, and we determined that those errors
needed to be corrected. The errors related to changes made in January of 2002 in the discounted cash
flow model used to estimate the value of our interest-only strips, including the method used to estimate
the level of principal collections expected to occur when forecasting the repayment of securitized
receivables and the incorporation of certain spread account funding provisions for the first time in
January 2002 cash flow projections, rather than in December 2001 when such spread account funding
provisions were triggered. The change in our methodology in January 2002 was incorrect because it
constituted a change to a less preferable method of accounting. As a result, we have restated our
consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2000 to December 31, 2003 and
our quarterly financial statements for 2003 and the first three quarters of 2004. The restated results,
which are audited for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2003, and 2004 and unaudited in prior and
interim periods, are presented in this Annual Report. The corrections made had the effect of reducing
our 2004 net income by $37.4 million. The restatement of prior periods had the effect of increasing net
income in 2003 by $23.2 million, decreasing net income in 2002 by $38.5 million, decreasing net income
in 2001 by $93.5 million, increasing net income in 2000 by $15.6 million, and increasing net income for
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years prior to 2000 by a cumulative total of $64.2 million. See Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements for further discussion.

Overview of Critical Accounting Policies

Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 2 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.” Our financial statements are prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”), which in
some instances require us to use estimates and assumptions. GAAP also requires management to make
judgments in valuing certain assets. Uncertainties are inherent in the use of estimates, assumptions, and
judgments. The following is an overview of our application of accounting policies that require us to
exercise significant judgment and reach conclusions about future events based on information currently
available. Differences in judgment, and differences between our estimates and assumptions and

subsequent events, could have a material impact on our reported financial condition and results of
operations.

Securitization Accounting. We account for our securitization transactions under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets
and Extinguishments of Liabilities—a Replacement of FASB Statement No. 125” (“SFAS No. 140”).
Our securitizations involve the transfer of a pool of loans receivable to a securitization trust. The trust
or other special-purpose entity through which asset-backed securities are issued meets the criteria
under SFAS No. 140 for a qualifying special-purpose entity that is not consolidated in our financial
statements. When we enter into a securitization, we receive cash proceeds from the sale of securities to
third parties, remove from our balance sheet the securitized loans aliocated to securityholders’ interests
and the related allowance for credit losses, and record our retained interests in the transaction. We
typically recognize a net gain on sale from the securitization, due primarily to the release of the related
allowance for credit losses and recognition of an interest-only strip receivable, which is partially offset
by discounts recognized for the retained subordinated interests. We continue to service the securitized
loans and we receive contractual servicing fees during the term of the transaction. Our retained

‘interests are generally reported at fair value, and changes in their fair values are recognized in current
period earnings.

Our retained interests in the securitized loans consist of a seller’s interest, subordinated
securityholders’ interests, interest-only strips receivable, and spread accounts. These retained interests
are recorded on our balance sheet in loans receivable, interest receivable, and due from securitizations.
The seller’s interest is composed of senior and subordinated components. The senior seller’s interest in
our securitizations represents an undivided interest in the pool of loans receivable transferred to the
securitization trust that are not allocated to the securityholders’ interests. The senior seller’s interest
includes principal, interest and fees receivable, and is classified as loans receivable, with a related
allowance for credit losses, and as interest receivable on our balance sheet. The seller’s interest
subordinated component is the accrued interest receivable asset (“AIR”), which represents our interest
in outstanding accrued interest and fees that are initially allocated to the securityholders’ interests. The
AIR is recorded in due from securitizations on our balance sheet.

We record an interest-only strip receivable at the inception of a securitization and on an
ongoing basis thereafter during the revolving period of the transaction. We estimate the fair value of
our interest-only strips receivable using a discounted cash flow valuation methodology that incorporates
the estimated repayment of these interests over time. For interest-only strips receivable, we estimate
the interest and fees that will be charged on the securitized loans, the interest payable to the
securityholders, credit losses, contractual servicing fees, and repayment trends of the securitized loans
to project the amount of excess servicing to be collected over the period the securitized loans are
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projected to be outstanding. In order to give effect to the gain recognition requirements of SFAS

No. 140, this period is determined by an accounting method that assumes the investor securities will
not be in their revolving periods after the date of valuation and, therefore, that all available future
principal collections will be applied to repay the investor securities. We apply an estimated payment
rate to the initial securitized receivables balance in order to derive the dollar amount by which the
securitized receivables balance is estimated to be reduced in future periods. This corresponds to the
contractual rights the securityholders have to a fixed percentage of principal collections during the
period in which principal collections must be applied to repay the investor securities. This methodology,
which applies only to interest-only strips valuation, was adopted in connection with the restatement and
has been reflected in our financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004 and in prior
period financial statements. See Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements, “Restatement of
Prior Periods Presented,” for further discussion. The fair value of our interest-only strips receivable
varies primarily with changes in our forecast of excess servicing. Estimated excess servicing is impacted
by the terms of the securityholders’ interests, and fluctuates primarily based on the expected
performance of the securitized loans, including amount and timing of credit losses as well as principal
repayment rates.

We estimate the fair value of our retained subordinated securityholders’ interests and spread
accounts using a discounted cash flow valuation methodology that incorporates the estimated
repayment of these interests over time. Generally, we discount retained subordinated securityholders’
interests and spread accounts using a defined methodology that, to the extent possible, is based on
observable market interest rates and credit spreads that approximate rates on other investments. We
discount retained subordinated securityholders’ interests at rates that reflect the level of subordination,
the projected repayment term, and the credit risk of the securitized loans. For spread accounts, we use
a discounted cash flow analysis based on projected repayments of existing spread account balances,
generally at the maturity of the related securitization series. The discount rates on such assets are
significantly impacted both by changes in market interest rates as well as changes in the estimated
duration of the assets, with shortening duration decreasing the estimated discount rate applied. For
purposes of estimating repayment of these interests we assume the investor securities remain
outstanding through their projected maturities, including any revolving period. Historically, we have not
incurred a loss of invested principal on assets held through their final payment date, and our valuations
do not reflect such a loss of principal.

A variety of internal and external factors, including economic conditions, current account
management strategies, and market perceptions regarding our performance can affect the expected net
interest and fee income, coupon rates, net credit losses, and discount rates we use in our estimates.
Changes in loan performance expectations can have a material impact on the projected cash flows and
thus on our fair value estimates of our retained interests. Changes in the methodology used to
estimate, and assumptions regarding the level of receivables that generate, cash flows can also have a
material impact on the projected cash flows. Significant judgment is required in the selection and use
of these factors. Results that differ from our projections can result in a material impact on our balance
sheet and income statement. As an example of the sensitivity of one assumption, at December 31, 2004,
a 10% increase in the discount rates used in valuing the cash flows from our retained subordinated
interests would have resulted in a decrease in their fair value of approximately $21.5 million. The
sensitivity of key assumptions used in valuing our retained subordinated interests is discussed in Note 9
to our Consolidated Financial Statements, “Securitization or Sale of Receivables.”

At the time of a securitization, we determine whether the retained subordinated
securityholders’ interests should be treated as held for trading or available-for-sale. This judgment is
based on our intent and plans with respect to holding or selling the assets, and could potentially vary
among different securitizations and different retained interests. All of our existing retained
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subordinated securityholders’ interests are securities measured as investments held for trading. Changes
to unrealized gains and losses on investments held for trading are included in current period earnings.
Changes to unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale assets are excluded from earnings and
reported as a net amount in a separate component of shareholders’ equity, as other comprehensive
income. If there is a determination that such available-for-sale assets have been permanently impaired,
unrealized losses are reported as a reduction to servicing and securitization income. When realized,
available-for-sale gains and losses are removed from other comprehensive income and included in
earnings. Designation of these assets as held for trading can have a material impact on the timing of
unrealized gains and losses recognized in earnings, but not on shareholders’ equity.

Allowance for Credit Losses. We maintain an allowance for credit losses at a level that, in
management’s judgment, is adequate to absorb estimated credit losses inherent in the existing loans
receivable on our balance sheet. The amount of the allowance is determined based on an analysis of
historical quantitative risk factors. During 2004, we enhanced our estimation process by including
segmentation that more prominently emphasize customer risk scores and age of accounts, as well as
other risk factors, such as Fair Isaac Corporation (FICO®) credit scores. Additionally, we continue to
use other historical quantitative risk factors in our analysis such as delinquency roll rates, principal
credit loss rates, bankruptcies, and other customer characteristics. The delinquency roll rate measures
the migration of loans receivable through the stages of delinquency. These factors are used to estimate
the likelihood that a loan receivable will charge off. When evaluating the adequacy of this quantitative
analysis, management also takes into account environmental credit risk factors affecting the portfolio’s
credit performance and makes appropriate adjustments to the allowance. These include such factors as
the impact of general economic conditions on a customer’s ability to pay, trends in loan portfolio
volume, seasoning, geographic concentrations, and the impact of modifications to loan review and
underwriting procedures on the credit quality of the loans receivable portfolio. When estimating future
credit losses, we may give greater or lesser priority from time to time to these and other factors we
may use in the estimation process. We also validate the adequacy of the allowance by comparing
coverage ratios to our actual loss experience and to that of other credit card lenders.

Establishing an allowance for credit losses that is adequate and not excessive requires
significant judgment. We forecast multiple scenarios and use alternative methods to establish and test
the adequacy of the allowance. The coverage ratios under these varying scenarios and methods create a
range of reasonable outcomes from which we record our allowance. The use of estimates is inherent in
our assessment of the adequacy of the allowance for credit losses, and significant differences in these
estimates could affect the adequacy of the allowance for credit losses,

Different assumptions regarding estimated net credit losses could materially affect our financial
position and results of operations. For example, a 10% increase in the projected net credit losses
estimated at December 31, 2004 would have resulted in an increase of approximately $60.0 million in
the allowance for credit losses and the provision for credit losses.

Interest and Fee Income Recognition. We recognize only the estimated collectible portion of
accrued interest and fees. We use a suppression methodology in which the estimated uncollectible
portion of accrued interest and fees on loans are not recognized as interest income, credit product fee
income, or servicing -and securitization income on our income statement and are not included in loans
receivable, interest receivable, or due from securitizations on our balance sheet. When loan principal
amounts are charged off, related accrued interest and fees included in loans receivable, interest
receivable, and due from securitizations, to the extent not previously suppressed, are reversed against
income.
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We use multiple scenarios and alternative methods to establish a range of reasonable levels of
estimated uncollectible interest and fees, from which we determine the suppressed amounts when we
record estimated collectible interest and fee income. We utilize historical charge-offs, delinquency roll
rates, bankruptcy rates, and loans receivable balance composition data to calculate the estimated
uncollectible portion of accrued interest and fees. The delinquency roll rate measures the migration of
loans receivable through the stages of delinquency.

Different assumptions regarding estimated uncollectible interest and fees could materially affect
our financial position and results of operations. For example, a 10% increase in the projected
uncollectible interest and fees estimated at December 31, 2004 would have resulted in decreases of
approximately $2.9 million to interest income and $16.8 million to non-interest income.

Eamings Summary

The following discussion provides a summary of our earnings for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003. The significant components of our results of operations are covered in
further detail in subsequent sections. Certain results for prior periods have been affected by the
restatement. See Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Year Ended December 31, 2004 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2003: Net income was
$381.2 million, or $1.19 per diluted share, for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to
$219.4 million, or $0.74 per diluted share, for the year ended December 31, 2003, Earnings per diluted
share amounts include the dilutive effects of our contingently convertible notes as a result of our
adoption of EITF Issue No. 04-8, “The Effect of Contingently Convertible Instruments on Diluted
Earnings per Share” (“EITF 04-8”), in the third quarter of 2004. See Note 4 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements for further discussion.

Net revenue (net interest income plus non-interest income) for 2004 was $2.10 billion,
compared to $2.18 billion for 2003, a decrease of $80.5 million. The decrease in net revenue for 2004 is
due to a decrease in non-interest income, partially offset by an increase in net interest income.

Net interest income increased by $40.1 million for 2004 compared to 2003, primarily due to a
decrease in interest expense resulting from lower average deposit levels and lower interest rates paid on
deposits. This decrease in interest expense was partially offset by a decrease in interest income on
loans, which was primarily driven by a decrease in the yield on outstanding loans resulting from our
strategy of generating growth in higher credit quality loans receivable.

Non-interest income decreased by $120.7 million for 2004 compared to 2003, due to a decrease
in credit product fee income of $204.5 million resulting primarily from our transition to higher-quality
credit card account originations, and a decrease in non-interest income—other of $50.7 million
resulting primarily from losses associated with the sale of investment securities in 2004 and the
inclusion of income in 2003 from operations that were subsequently sold. The decreases in credit
product fee income and non-interest income—other were partially offset by an increase in servicing and
securitization income of $134.5 million, which was primarily due to increases in the fair value
recognized for our retained subordinated securityholders’ interests and spread accounts due to an
overall favorable change in market discount rates and higher levels of interest-only strips receivable
recognized due to increases in forecasted excess servicing associated with continuing improvements in
delinquencies and credit losses.

Our provision for credit losses was $517.3 million for 2004, a decrease of $105.0 million from
the 2003 provision of $622.3 million. The decrease in the provision for 2004 and the reduction in our
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loan loss coverage ratio from 9.96% at December 31, 2003 to 7.97% at December 31, 2004 reflects the
improving trend in our net credit losses resulting from changes in our loan mix due to higher-quality
account originations, improvements in the U.S. economy, and changes in our portfolio management
and collections strategies and processes.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, non-interest expense decreased $154.7 million to
$1.05 billion, compared to $1.20 billion for the year ended December 31, 2003. The reduction is
primarily due to lower personnel and related infrastructure costs associated with our workforce
reductions and lower collection costs resulting from our lower delinquencies due to higher-quality
account originations and the implementation of certain credit risk management operations strategies.

Year Ended December 31, 2003 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2002: Net income was
$219.4 million, or $0.74 per diluted share, for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to
$179.7 million, or $0.62 per dituted share, for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Net revenue (net interest income plus non-interest income) for 2003 decreased by $1.05 billion
from $3.24 billion in 2002 to $2.18 billion in 2003. Of the $1.05 billion decrease in net revenue,
$539.5 million was attributable to a decrease in interest income on loans. This decrease was primarily
driven by a reduction in loans receivable and a decrease in the yield on outstanding loans receivable as
we shifted our marketing strategy to originating a larger proportion of higher credit quality loans
receivable and to managing our existing portfolio through selective repricing appropriate for the
assessed risk. Non-interest income—other decreased by approximately $538.4 million in 2003 due in
substantial part to the inclusion in 2002 of gains related to sales of certain assets and operations,
primarily the sale of our interests in the Providian Master Trust, the sale of certain higher risk loans,
and the sale of our operations in the United Kingdom and Argentina. Additionally, non-interest income
associated with credit product fee income decreased in 2003 by $392.4 million as a result of lower
average loans receivable and our transition to higher quality credit card account originations. Partially
offsetting these decreases in non-interest income was an increase in servicing and securitization income
of $328.5 million in 2003. :

Our provision for credit losses for the year ended December 31, 2003 was $622.3 million, a
decrease of $669.4 million from the year ended December 31, 2002. This decrease reflects a lower
reported loans receivable balance, and also reflects a lower loan loss coverage ratio related to the
improved delinquency performance of our loans receivable resulting from certain new portfolio
management and collections strategies and policies and higher quality credit card account originations.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, non-interest expense decreased $607.9 million to
$1.20 billion, compared to $1.81 billion for the year ended December 31, 2002. The decrease in
expenses occurred in all categories of non-interest expense, specifically salaries and employee benefits;
solicitation and advertising; occupancy, furniture, and equipment; data processing and communication;
and other expenses. The decreases are a result of reductions in our infrastructure which were made to
align it with expected levels of customer accounts, and reflect the sales of assets and operations
completed in 2002, the sale in 2003 of substantially all of the higher risk assets of Providian Bank
(“PB”) (which was merged into PNB effective December 31, 2003), the sale in 2003 of the assets and
liabilities of GetSmart.com, and the reduction in the level of solicitation and advertising expenses as we
transitioned to our new marketing strategy.

In August 2003, we completed the sale of 435,000 credit card accounts with $859.6 million in

outstanding balances and related accrued interest receivable, which comprised substantially all of the
credit card loans of PB. We transferred servicing of the receivables in August 2003. Effective June 30,
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2003, we reclassified the PB loans and related accrued interest receivable to loans held for
securitization or sale and recognized a loss of approximately $8 million.

In October 2003, we entered into an agreement to sell certain assets of our subsidiary,
GetSmart.com. We completed the sale in December 2003. Under the terms of the agreement, we sold
the lender and marketing agreements, trademarks, intellectual property and certain fixed assets, but
retained the outstanding receivables generated from fees owed by lenders and other participants
offering their products through GetSmart.com. During the fourth quarter of 2003, we recognized an
after-tax gain of $6.9 million with respect to the sale.

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is interest earned from loans receivable and our investment portfolios less
interest expense from deposits and borrowings. Certain results for prior periods have been affected by
the restatement. See Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Reported net interest income for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $499.1 million,
compared to $458.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, an increase of $40.1 million. This
increase was primarily driven by the decrease in our interest expense on deposits, partially offset by the
decrease in our interest income on loans during the year. The decline in interest income on loans for
the year ended December 31, 2004 reflects our continuing efforts to create a higher-quality loan
portfolio, which resulted in a decrease in the yield on outstanding loans receivable. The yield on our
reported loans receivable decreased to 12.58% for 2004 from 14.52% for 2003, as the mix of our
portfolio reflected a growing proportion of higher-quality accounts, which generally have lower annual
percentage rates, including lower and longer introductory rates.

Partially offsetting the negative impact to our yield from the change in the mix of our loan
portfolio was an increase in the level of interest income that we estimate will become collectible (i.e., a
reduction of the suppressed amounts). Under the suppression methodology, the interest accrued on
loans that we estimate to be uncollectible is not recognized as interest income on our income statement
and is not included in loans receivable on our balance sheet. In addition, interest income is reduced by
the reversal of accrued interest included in loans receivable (to the extent not previously suppressed)
when the principal amount of a loan is charged off. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003,
reported interest income was reduced by $77.4 million and $141.9 million due to the suppression of
estimated uncollectible interest and interest income reversals.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, interest expense was $495.7 million, compared to

$633.8 million for 2003, a decrease of $138.1 million. The decrease in interest expense reflects the
lower average level of our deposits and lower interest rates paid on deposits.
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Statement of Average Balances, Income and Expense, Yields and Rates

The following table provides an analysis of reported interest income, interest expense, net
interest spread, and average balances for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002. Certain
results for prior periods have been affected by the restatement. See Note 3 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Statement of Average Balances, Income and Expense, Yields and Rates

Year ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/  Yield/
(dollars in thousands) Balance Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate Balance Expense Rate
As Restated As Restated  As As Restated As Restated  As
Restated Restated
Assets
Interest-earning assets
Loans receivable . .. .. $ 6,841,581 $860,413 12.58% $ 6,546,748 $ 950,758 14.52%8$ 9,011,891 $ 1,490,258 16.54%
Interest-earning cash
and cash equivalents . . . 345,138 3,840 1.11% 350,222 3,628 1.04% 2,119,503 36,483 1.72%
Federal funds sold . ... 1,301,815 17496 1.34% 3,969,176 44,198 1.11% 2,207,743 37,473 1.70%
Investment securities. . . 2,786,499 56,786 2.04% 1,655,451 51,157 3.09% 1,421,322 66,985 4.71%
Other ............ 580,273 56,199 9.68% 665,859 42,995 6.46% 553,987 51,286 9.26%
Total interest-earning
assets . ... ... ... 11,855,306 $994,734 8.39% 13,187,456 § 1,092,736 8.29% 15314,446 $ 1,682,485 10.99%
Allowance for credit losses . (615,275) (830,080) (1,424,318)
Other assets . ........ 2,507,664 3,371,356 3,878,126
Total assets . ......... $13,747,695 $15,728,732 $ 17,768,254
Liabilities and
Shareholders’ Equity
Interest-bearing liabilities
Deposits . ... ...... $ 9,147,438 $427,822 4.68% $11,775,591 $ 581,551 4.94%$ 13,775,462 § 729,294 5.29%
Borrowings . . ... .. .. 1,406,900 67,834 4.82% 1,107,265 52,239 4.72% 985,869 42,700 433%
Total interest-bearing
liabilities .. ........ 10,554,338 495,656 4.70% 12,882,856 633,790 4.92% 14,761,331 771,994 5.23%
Other liabilities . . ... .. 727,772 700,016 883,021
Total liabilities . . ... ... 11,282,110 ’ 13,582,872 15,644,352
Capital securities . .. ... — — 104,332
Shareholders’ equity . ... 2,465,585 - 2,145,860 2,019,570
Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity . . . $13,747,695 $15,728,732 $ 17,768,254
Net Interest Income and
Spread ........... $499,078 3.69% $ 458946 3.37% $ 910,491 5.76%

Interest Volume and Rate Variance Analysis

Net interest income is affected by changes in the average interest rate earned on interest-
earning assets and the average interest rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest income is
also affected by changes in the volume of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. The
following table sets forth the dollar amount of the increase (decrease) in reported interest income and
expense resulting from changes in volumes and rates. Certain results for prior periods have been
affected by the restatement. See Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

43



Rate-Volume Variance Analysis

Year ended December 31,
2004 vs. 2003 2003 vs. 2002
Increase Change due to (1) Increase Change due to (1)
(dollars in thousands) (Decrease) Volume Rate (Decrease)  Volume Rate
As Restated As Restated As Restated

Interest Income

Loans receivable . . .. ................. $ (90,345) § 41,260 $(131,605) 8 (539,500) $ (372,978) § (166,522)

Federal fundssold ................... (26,702) (34,364) 7,662 6,725 22,841 (16,116)

Investments and other securities . . .. ...... 19,045 20,843 (1,798)  (56,974) (3,406)  (53,568)
Total interest income . . .............. (98,002) 27,739 (125,741) (589,749) (353,543) (236,206)

Interest Expense

Interest-bearing deposits ... ............ (153,729) (124,394)  (29,335) (147,743) (101,490)  (46,253)

Borrowings . .......... ... ... o L. 15,595 14,463 1,132 9,539 5,509 4,030
Total interest expense . . .. ............ (138,134) (109,931) (28,203) (138,204)  (95,981)  (42,223)
Net Interest Income . . . .. ... .covnn... $ 40,132 $137,670 $ (97,538) $ (451,545) $ (257,562) § (193,983)

(1) The changes due to both volumes and rates have been allocated in proportion to the relationship of the
absolute dollar amounts of the change in each. The changes in interest income and interest expense are
calculated independently for each line in the table.

Allowance and Provision for Credit Losses

We maintain our allowance for credit losses at a level estimated to be adequate to absorb
future principal charge-offs, net of recoveries, in the existing reported loan portfolio. We maintain the
allowance for credit losses for reported loans only.

We establish our allowance for credit losses by analyzing historical risk behavior and credit loss
trends and reviewing current loss expectations that incorporate general economic conditions that may
impact future losses. We combine quantitative factors (including customer risk scores, historical
delinquency roll rates, historical credit loss rates, and other customer characteristics) with
environmental credit risk factors to prepare comparative evaluations of the allowance for credit losses.
During 2004, we enhanced our estimation process by including segmentation that more prominently
emphasize customer risk scores and age of accounts, as well as other risk factors, such as FICO?® credit
scores. This change in process did not have a material impact on our financial results or condition.
When estimating future credit losses, we may give greater or lesser priority from time to time to these
and other factors that we may use in the estimation process.

The environmental credit risk factors are consistent with applicable bank regulatory guidelines
and reflect our assessment of general macroeconomic conditions, trends in loan portfolio volume and
seasoning, geographic concentrations, and modifications to loan review and underwriting procedures,
among other factors. We compare allowances established in prior periods with subsequent actual credit
losses and perform a peer group comparative analysis of lagged loss rates to coverage ratios. We derive
our coverage ratios by dividing the allowance for credit losses by the reported loans outstanding at
period end.

We recognize credit losses by charging off the principal balance no later than the last day of
the calendar month in which the account becomes 180 days past due under the terms of the account
agreement. Loans that have been restructured under our consumer debt management program are




charged off no later than 120 days or 180 days after they become contractually past due, depending on
an account’s delinquency status at the time it entered the consumer debt management program and its
subsequent payment history. We recognize charge-offs for accounts of bankrupt and deceased
customers generally within 30 days after notification of bankruptcy and 60 days after verification of
death. We record current period principal recoveries on previously charged-off loans and proceeds from
the sale of previously charged-off loans as a reduction to net credit losses.

Allowance for Credit Losses

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Balance at beginning of period ... ...... ... ... . ... . . ..., $ 625,886 $ 1,012,461 $ 1,932,833
Provision for credit osses . . . .. . v v it i e 517,295 610,469 903,508
Fair value adjustment—loans held for securitization or sale ........ — 11,875(1) 388,230(2)
Credit LOSSES « « v v e e e e (643,299)  (1,039,775)  (1,387,350)
Recoveries .. ................... e e e 99,821 202,462 161,183
Credit losses on loans held for securitization orsale . . ........... — (171,606)(1)  (985,943)(2)
Balance atend of period . ........ ... ... .. $ 599,703 $ 625,886 $ 1,012,461
Reported loans receivable at period end(3) ... ................ $7,522,401 $ 6,281,403 $ 6,899,849
Coverage ratios atperiodend . ........................... 7.97% 9.96% 14.67%

(1) The 2003 fair value adjustment of $11.9 million reflects an increase in the allowance for credit losses as a
result of the mark to market of PB loans receivable reclassified as loans held for securitization or sale in the
year ended December 31, 2003. The decrease in allowance for credit losses of $171.6 million in the year ended
December 31, 2003 represents the allowance for credit losses that, together with the outstanding balances of
the PB loans receivable, was transferred to loans held for securitization or sale as part of the adjustment to
the fair value of $667.1 million.

(2) The 2002 fair value adjustment of $388.2 million reflects an increase in the allowance for credit losses as a
result of the mark to market of the higher risk loans receivable reclassified as loans held for securitization or
sale in the year ended December 31, 2002. The decrease in allowance for credit losses of $985.9 million in the
year ended December 31, 2002 represents the allowance for credit losses that, together with the outstanding
balances of the reclassified higher risk loans, was transferred to loans held for securitization or sale as part of
the adjustment to the fair value of $1.61 billion.

(3) The 2003 and 2002 loans receivable exclude market value adjustments of $(0.4) million and $7.9 million under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities” (“SFAS No. 133”). There were no such market value adjustments for 2004.

The decrease in both the dollar amount of the allowance for credit losses and the coverage
ratio (the allowance for credit losses as a percentage of reported loans receivable) as of December 31,
2004 compared to December 31, 2003 reflects the trend in our net credit losses resulting from changes
in our loan mix due to higher-quality account originations, improvements in the U.S. economy, and
changes in our portfolio management and collections strategies and processes. The decrease in the
dollar amount of the allowance for credit losses and the coverage ratio as of December 31, 2003
compared to December 31, 2002 reflects the trend in our net credit losses resulting from changes in
our loan mix due to higher-quality account originations, changes in our portfolio management strategies
and the sale of a portfolio of higher risk loans receivable. As we continue to evaluate the allowance for
credit losses in light of changes in asset quality, regulatory requirements, general economic trends, and
the effect of our new marketing strategy, we may make adjustments that would result in further
changes to the coverage ratio, which would impact our provision for credit losses.
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Non-Interest Income

Servicing and Securitization Income. Servicing and securitization income relates primarily to
securitized loans. It includes servicing fees, primarily relating to loans receivable transferred in our
securitizations, excess servicing income, gains or losses related to the securitization of our loans
receivable, and changes in the fair value of our retained interests (see “—Securitizations of Loans
Receivable”). Certain results for prior periods have been affected by the restatement. See Note 3 to
our Consolidated Financial Statements.

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the total principal amount of securitized loans outstanding
was $10.73 billion and $10.33 billion, For the year ended December 31, 2004, servicing and
securitization income was $1.03 billion, an increase of $134.5 million from $900.3 million in 2003.
Servicing and securitization income for 2004 includes a $64.1 million benefit from an increase in the
fair value recognized for our retained subordinated securityholders’ interests and spread accounts due
to favorable changes in market discount rates. Changes in market discount rates are generally due to
factors not within our control, such as changes in the U.S. economy, the current interest rate
environment, and credit spread levels. More specifically, the reduction in the discount rates used during
2004 was due primarily to credit spread tightening in the debt capital markets. Additionally, servicing
and securitization income increased during 2004 compared to 2003 due to increases in the valuation of
our interest-only strips receivable resulting from increases in forecasted excess servicing, primarily due
to lower forecasted credit losses. Partially offsetting the positive contributions to income described
above, servicing and securitization income in 2004 included lower discount accretion related to
decreased average retained subordinated securityholders’ interests and spread account balances as
compared to 2003.

Under the suppression methodology, we do not recognize income associated with the interest
and fees on securitized loans that we estimate to be uncollectible as servicing and securitization income
on the income statement or as due from securitizations on the balance sheet. In addition, servicing and
securitization income is reduced by the reversal of accrued interest and fees included in due from
securitizations (to the extent not previously suppressed) when the principal amount of a securitized
loan is charged off. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the amounts of servicing and
securitization income not recognized as a result of the suppression of estimated uncollectible interest
and fees and interest and fee income reversals were $429.2 million and $567.5 million.

In January 2005, we ceased serving as interim accounts owner of the higher risk assets we sold
in 2002, when we transferred ownership of such accounts to a third party accounts owner. Prior to
January 2005 we served as interim accounts owner of such higher risk assets and recorded the related
compensation received as servicing and securitization income. We do not expect that the termination of
the compensation we were receiving as interim accounts owner will have a material impact on our
earnings.

Credit Product Fee Income. Credit product fee income includes performance fees (late,
overlimit, and returned check charges), annual membership fees, and cash advance and balance transfer
fees, which are assessed in accordance with the terms of the customer’s account agreement. Annual
membership and balance transfer fee revenue are recognized ratably over the customer privilege
period, which is currently one year. Performance fees and cash advance fees are recognized when
earned. Credit product fee income also includes revenue from cardholder service products billed
annually, which is recognized ratably over the customer privilege period, revenue from cardholder
service products billed monthly, which is recognized in the month it is billed, and revenue from
interchange fees received from bankcard associations, which is based on the purchase activity of our
credit card customers.

46




For the year ended December 31, 2004, credit product fee income was $555.2 million, a
decrease from $759.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. This decrease primarily reflects
our transition to higher-quality credit card account originations, which resulted in lower late and
overlimit fees and lower cardholder service product and annual membership fee revenue.

In accordance with GAAPF, we capitalize direct loan origination costs associated with successful
account acquisition efforts. We amortize capitalized loan origination costs over the customer privilege
period for credit card loans, unless the loans are securitized, in which case we recognize the remaining
costs as an expense at the time we enter into the securitization. Effective January 1, 2004, we began
classifying the amortization of capitalized loan origination costs as a reduction to credit product fee
income. Previously, amortized loan origination costs were included in non-interest expense—solicitation
and advertising. This reclassification had no material impact on our income statement.

Under the suppression methodology, we do not recognize fees on loans that we estimate to be
uncollectible as credit product fee income on our income statement or as loans receivable on our
balance sheet. In addition, credit product fee income is reduced by the reversal of accrued fees
included in loans receivable (to the extent not previously suppressed), when the principal amount of a
loan is charged off. For the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the amounts of credit product
fee income not recognized as a result of the suppression of estimated uncollectible fees and fee income
reversals were $112.8 million and $195.0 million. The decrease in the amount of suppressed credit
product fee income for 2004 as compared to 2003 is in line with the decrease in credit product fee
income as discussed above. '

Other. Non-interest income—other was $15.3 million and $66.0 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003. This decrease is primarily a result of changes in realized gains and losses
on investment securities and derivative instruments and the inclusion in 2003 of income from
operations that were subsequently sold, partially offset by income related to limited partnership
investments accounted for under the equity method.

Non-Interest Expense

Non-interest expense includes salary and employee benefits costs; solicitation and advertising
costs; occupancy, furniture, and equipment costs; data processing and communication costs; and other
non-interest expense. The following table presents non-interest expense for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002. Overall, the decrease in non-interest expense from year to year
reflects our efforts to increase operational efficiency and reduce our infrastructure to an appropriate
level.

Summary of Non-Interest Expense

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Salaries and employee benefits. . .. ........... . % 28718 § 359,696 $ 527,960
Solicitation and advertising . ................. 232,365 193,652 404,872
Occupancy, furniture, and equipment . .......... 107,157 121,921 222,812
Data processing and communication . . . .. ... . ... 109,850 124,014 165,504
Other . .. ..o e 309,779 401,718 487,734
Total non-interest expense . .......... PP $ 1,046,337 $ 1,201,001 $ 1,808,882
Less: solicitation and advertising ........... (232,365) (193,652) (404,872)
Total non-interest expense, excluding solicitation
and advertising . . ............ ... ... § 813,972 §$ 1,007,349 $ 1,404,010
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Salary and employee benefits costs include staffing costs associated with marketing, customer
service, collections, and administration. In the second half of 2003, as part of our strategy of enhancing
operational efficiency, we entered into agreements to outsource certain information technology
functions. These include agreements with Accenture, which provides us with technology application

“development and maintenance services, and Computer Sciences Corporation, which provides desktop,
help desk, server, security administration, e-mail, and network infrastructure services. These outsourcing
arrangements have reduced salaries and employee benefits expense and have been partially offset by an
increase in other non-interest expense during 2004,

Solicitation and advertising costs include printing, postage, telemarketing, list processing, and
credit bureau costs paid to third parties in connection with account solicitation efforts and also include
costs incurred to promote our products. Solicitation and advertising costs are expensed as incurred.
Solicitation and advertising expense increased for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to the
same period in 2003, reflecting increases in our marketing and account solicitation activity and
increased use of third party marketing service providers.

As discussed in “—Non-Interest Income—Credit Product Fee Income,” effective January 1,
2004, we began classifying the amortization of capitalized loan origination costs as a reduction to
non-interest income—credit product fee income. Prior to January 1, 2004, these costs were included in
non-interest expense—solicitation and advertising. This reclassification had no material impact on our
income statement.

In connection with workforce reductions and the closure of facilities, we record charges related
to employee severance, premises, equipment, and furniture lease expenses, fixed asset write-downs, and
disposition costs. At December 31, 2004, we had accrued $16.8 million for remaining costs expected to
be paid, primarily for premises, equipment, and furniture lease costs associated with property no longer
in use. This amount included $1.8 million for accrued but unpaid costs associated with the closure of
our facilities in Louisville, Kentucky in January 2004 as well as $4.5 million and $6.6 million for costs
associated with the closures of our San Antonio, Texas and Oakland, California facilities in the fourth
quarter of 2004. In connection with the closure of our Louisville facilities, we also recognized
$3.4 million of severance and fixed asset write-down expense during the first quarter of 2004.

Non-interest expense—other includes operational expenses such as collection costs, fraud
losses, and bankcard association assessments. For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002,
collection costs were $73.4 million, $141.4 million, and $213.5 million. The year over year decreases in
collection costs are primarily the result of our lower delinquencies due to higher-quality account
originations and the implementation of certain credit risk management operations strategies.
Non-interest expense—other in 2004 also includes a reversal of $15.8 million of interest expense
associated with previously established tax reserves. This reversal resulted from the finalization of
various tax audits and from reassessment of tax exposures covering the years 1997 through 2002 that
are expected to be more favorably resolved than previously anticipated. See further discussion of tax
expense in “—Income Taxes.”

Income Taxes

We have tax exposures relating to our assessment of tax liabilities in the ordinary course of
business. We periodically assess our liabilities and contingencies for all years under potential tax audit
based on the latest information available. For those matters where it is probable that an adjustment will
be asserted, we have recorded our best estimate of the entire amount of the tax liability (including
related interest charges) related to such matters in our consolidated financial statements. Subsequent
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periodic assessments of our tax exposures that result in an increase or decrease to such tax liabilities
are reflected in current period earnings.

We recognized income tax expense of $159.5 million and $142.2 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003. Our effective income tax rates were 29.5% and 39.3% for the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. Certain results for prior periods have been affected by the
restatement. See Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

.The decrease in the effective income tax rate in 2004 is primarily due to utilization of tax
credits and net reductions of previously established tax reserves. Based on our estimate of 2004 taxable
income, we expect to utilize tax credits of approximately $26.4 million, which were primarily generated
from an existing investment in a limited liability entity that operates an alternative energy plant. We
were not able to utilize these credits in 2003. During the three months ended December 31, 2004, we
recorded a reduction of $24.7 million of previously accrued income tax expense and a reversal of
$15.8 million of interest expense associated with previously established tax reserves, which had the
effect of increasing net income in the fourth quarter of 2004 by $34.5 million, or $0.10 per diluted
share. These net reversals resulted from the finalization of various tax audits and from reassessment of
tax exposures covering the years 1997 through 2002 that are expected to be more favorably resolved
than previously anticipated. Although the final resolution of these tax exposures is uncertain, based on
current information, in the opinion of management the ultimate disposition of these open tax matters is
not expected to have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, liquidity, or
results of operations.

Without the benefit of the reduction of previously accrued income tax expense, the effective tax
rate for 2004 would have been 33.9%. In 2003, we expect to have an effective tax rate of approximately
35.0% based on our intention to continue utilizing available tax credits.

Securitizations of Loans Receivable

Overview. A securitization is a financing transaction that provides liquidity and capital through
the transfer of financial assets. Our securitizations involve the transfer of a pool of loans receivable to a
securitization trust. The trust or other special-purpose entity through which asset-backed securities are
issued meets the criteria under SFAS No. 140 for a qualifying special-purpose entity that is not
consolidated in our financial statements. Our transactions qualify for sale treatment under GAAP and
the loans receivable are removed from our balance sheet. Certain results for prior periods have been
affected by the restatement. See Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

From time to time, we enter into securitizations based on numerous factors, including liquidity
needs, availability of funds, and the interest rates and terms available from underwriters, placement
agents, and credit enhancers. The transactions include conduit series, which typically have a revolving
period of two years or less, subject to renewal or extension if certain conditions are satisfied, and term
series, which are issued with expected final payment dates ranging from two to five years. In a
securitization, we authorize the trust to issue securities, called securityholders’ interests, backed by the
loans receivable transferred to the trust. These securities represent undivided interests in the pool of
loans receivable and the right to receive future collections of principal, interest, and fees on the
receivables. We sell certain classes of these securities to third party investors, using various forms of
credit enhancement so that these classes will receive credit ratings that allow them to be sold in
underwritten offerings or private placements.

In addition to the securityholders’ interests, the structure of the securitization creates certain
other interests in the securitized pool of loans, which we retain, including a seller’s interest,
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interest-only strips receivable, spread accounts, and an accrued interest receivable. We also retain the
securityholders’ interests not sold to investors and include them on our balance sheet.

Initial Sale. When we enter into a securitization, we typically recognize a gain on sale from the
transferred loans receivable, due primarily to the release of the related allowance for credit losses and
recognition of an interest-only strip receivable. The gain is partially offset by discounts recognized in
establishing the fair value of the retained subordinated interests. We record the reduction to the
allowance for credit losses on our income statement within the provision for credit losses. The
remaining gain, or loss, on the sale of the loans is reported as non-interest income—servicing and
securitization.

The retained subordinated securityholders’ interests consist primarily of beneficial interests that
are subordinated to the senior securityholders’ interests held by third parties and are repaid after the
related senior classes have been repaid. The retained subordinated securityholders’ interests are
securities measured at fair value and are included on our balance sheet in due from securitizations. At
the origination of a securitization, we recognize these assets at their allocated carrying value. Generally,
the allocated carrying value is less than the face value of the certificate, and the difference is recorded
as a reduction to non-interest income—servicing and securitization. At the same time, we recognize the
fair value of these assets, which is generally greater than the allocated carrying value. Our existing
retained securityholders’ interests have been classified as held for trading, and the difference between
their allocated carrying values and fair values at origination has been recorded in non-interest income—
servicing and securitization. We measure fair value through estimated cash flows discounted at rates
that reflect the level of subordination, the projected repayment term, and the credit risk of the
securitized loans. Generally, we discount retained subordinated securityholders’ interests and spread
accounts using a defined methodology that, to the extent possible, is based on observable market
interest rates and credit spreads that approximate rates on other investments.

The seller’s interest is composed of senior and subordinated components. The senior seller’s
interest in our securitizations represents an undivided interest in the trust loans receivable not allocated
to the securityholders’ interests. We retain the senior seller’s interest, which includes principal, interest
and fees receivable. These assets are recognized at their allocated carrying value and are classified as
loans receivable with an allowance for credit losses on our balance sheet. As the amount of the
securitized loans receivable fluctuates due to customer payments, purchases, cash advances, billed
interest and fees, and credit losses, the amount of the senior seller’s interest will vary. Periodically, we
transfer new loans into the securitized pool in order to maintain the seller’s interest above the
minimum required by the securitization documents or in anticipation of issuing new securityholders’
interests.

The seller’s interest subordinated component is the accrued interest receivable asset (“AIR”),
which represents our retained subordinated interest in outstanding accrued interest and fees that are
initially allocated to the securityholders’ interests. Beginning in the fourth quarter of 2002, we included
the AIR as one of the retained financial components of the securitization in the initial accounting for -
the sale of the loans receivable and in computing the gain on sale. The carrying amount of the AIR
asset is allocated between the assets sold and the retained interests in proportion to their fair values at
the time of securitization to determine the allocated carrying amount. The AIR is reported in due from
securitizations on our balance sheet.

The interest-only strip receivable is a retained subordinated interest in the securitized loans
receivable and represents our right to receive excess interest and fee cash flows allocated to the
securityholders’ interests during the term of the securitization. This asset represents the present value
of the estimated future excess servicing expected to be generated during the period the loans are
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projected to be outstanding. As described in “—Overview of Critical Accounting Policies,” for
interest-only strip valuation purposes only, this period is determined by an accounting method that
assumes the investor securities will not be in their revolving periods after the date of valuation. Excess
servicing represents the net positive cash flow from interest and fee collections allocated to
securityholders’ interests after deducting the interest paid on investor certificates, credit losses,
contractual servicing fees, and other expenses. The interest-only strip receivable represents recognition
of this future net cash inflow. It is a component of the overall initial gain on sale recognized for a
securitization, which is included in non-interest income—servicing and securitization. We record
interest-only strips receivable at estimated fair value and include them in due from securitizations on
our balance sheet.

Spread accounts are retained subordinated interests and are used to enhance the credit quality
of securityholders’ interests or reduce the risks to third parties that provide credit enhancement. Spread
accounts are cash reserves that can be called upon to fund payments to securitization investors or
reimburse credit enhancers in the event their share of cash flows is insufficient. Spread accounts may
be funded from the initial proceeds of the securitization transaction or through interest and fee
collection cash flows if excess servicing falls below specified levels or other trigger events occur during
the term of the securitization. Spread account balances are released to uvs if certain conditions are met
or the securitization terminates with amounts remaining in the spread account. We record spread
accounts at estimated fair value, and include them in due from securitizations on our balance sheet. We
estimate the fair value of spread accounts through a discounted cash flow analysis based on projected
repayments from the spread account balances to us, which is generally based on the expected final
repayment to the securitization investors. We include the initial discounts recognized in the fair value
of our spread accounts in non-interest income—servicing and securitizations.

Our valuations of the various retained subordinated interests require us to use our judgment in
selecting discount rates, estimating future cash flows, assessing current economic conditions, and
assuming the outcomes of future events. Retained subordinated interests are discounted at rates
derived through available market rates for comparably rated securities. These discount rates are
influenced by factors that cannot be anticipated and are beyond our control. In addition, the value of
our interest-only strips receivable can fluctuate significantly from changes in our estimate of interest
and fees that will be collected on the securitized loans, credit losses, contractual servicing fees, and
repayment trends of the securitized loans used to project the amount of excess servicing to be collected
over the period the securitized loans are considered to be outstanding under the interest-only strip
valuation accounting method used by us. See “—Overview of Critical Accounting Policies.”

We recognized total losses of $28.8 million, $84.4 million, and $145.0 million during 2004, 2003,
and 2002 from the combined effect of the initial sale to third party investors, the gain from the
interest-only strip receivable, and the loss from the discounts recognized on other retained interests.
These losses exclude the benefit realized from the reduction to the allowance for credit losses
recognized at the time of sale.

At least quarterly, we adjust the valuations of our retained interests to reflect changes in the
amount of the securitized loans outstanding and any changes to our assumptions, estimates, or discount
rates. We also from time to time refine the financial models we use to obtain more accurate measures
of the timing and amount of cash flows. The valuations will also be affected by the assumptions we
make about the levels of receivables outstanding over time. These valuations can, and will, vary as a
result of changes in the level and timing of the cash flows and the underlying economic assumptions.
Changes in the estimated fair value of the retained interests are reported as a component of
non-interest income—servicing and securitization in our income statement.
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Revolving Period. During the revolving period of a securitization, no principal payments are
made to the investors. Instead, monthly collections of principal allocated to investors, and other
amounts treated as principal collections, are used to fund the purchase of replacement loans receivable
in order to maintain the investors’ interest in the securitized loans. We recognize additional
interest-only strips receivable each month as this occurs. Because of the gain recognition limitations of
SFAS No. 140, the amount of the excess servicing inflows received in a period typically exceed the
amount estimated in establishing the related interest-only strip receivable. However, excess servicing
may fall below such estimated amounts due to changes in account performance and other factors. We
record the excess (or deficiency) as servicing and securitization income or loss.

We continue to service the accounts included in the pool of securitized loans and earn a
monthly servicing fee, which is generally offset by the servicing costs we incur. The contractual servicing
fee is representative of a market rate and, therefore, we do not recognize a servicing asset or liability in
connection with our securitizations.

Each month, as the servicer, we collect the investors’ share of interest and fees received from
the securitized loans. From these funds we pay interest on the investor securities, cover credit losses,
pay for servicing fees, and pay third parties for credit enhancement and other expenses. We retain or
remit to ourselves as excess servicing any interest and fee cash flow remaining after such payments. In
some cases, our right to receive excess interest and fees and principal collections allocated to a series
of investor securities is subject to the prior right of investors in other series of the trust to use such
collections to cover shortfalls.

Certain negative events, such as deterioration of excess servicing below specified levels, result
in the excess cash flow being retained in the securitization through the funding of spread accounts. As
a consequence of our credit rating downgrades in late 2001 and in 2002, spread account funding
requirements for the series then outstanding were increased. Approximately $149.0 million of interest
and fee collections from receivables in our Providian Gateway Master Trust were used to fund spread
accounts during 2003. There was no additional spread account funding during 2004. The spread account
funding requirements triggered by the credit rating downgrades have been fully met. The amount
funded in the spread accounts may change from time to time, depending on securitization amounts and
repayments and the performance of the securitized loans.

Amortization and Accumulation Periods. After the revolving period of a securitization
transaction, investors are repaid principal. This phase of a securitization is typically referred to as the
amortization or accumulation period. During this period, principal collections from the securitized loan
balances are either used to repay investor principal or are held in an account for accumulation and
subsequent distribution to investors. During an amortization or accumulation period, loans receivable
recognized through the senior seller’s interest will increase on our balance sheet as the securityholders’
interests in the securitized loan balances decrease. We record an allowance for credit losses related to
such increases in loans receivable.

If certain early amortization events specified in the securitization documents were to occur,
principal collections from the securitized receivables would be applied to repay investors earlier than
would be the case if the scheduled amortization or accumulation period were to commence. Early
amortization of a securitization transaction would cause the loans receivable in the senior seller’s
interest to increase and could thereby require us to maintain additional regulatory capital and increase
the allowance for credit losses, which could negatively impact our financial results and liquidity.

Early amortization events include excess spread triggers (based on a formula that takes into
account interest and fee yield, interest, servicing, credit losses, and other administrative costs allocated
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to a particular series of asset-backed securities), certain breaches of representations, warranties or
covenants, insolvency or receivership, and servicer defaults. In addition, under certain securitizations
issued in 2002 and 2003, early amortization can be triggered based on a minimum shareholders’ equity
test, failure to maintain a back-up servicing agreement under certain circumstances, or the failure of an
interest rate cap provider to make required payments. We maintained a back-up servicing agreement
until February 2005 when it was terminated under circumstances that did not result in the occurrence
of an early. amortization.

None of the trigger events that would lead to early amortization has occurred. The excess
spread triggers referred to above that could cause an early amortization are based on each individual
series’ three-month average excess spread falling below zero, As of December 31, 2004, our series’
three-month excess spreads ranged from 8.32% to 9.08%.

In recent years, we made changes in account terms that resulted in the conversion of a
substantial portion of our managed receivables from fixed to floating rates of interest. At December 31,
2004, 69.2% of our securitized loan balances had interest rates that were floating. In calculating such
percentage, we no longer include balances subject to a promotional offer that bear fixed rates during
the term of the promotional offer. Repricing of our fixed and floating rate credit card receivables may
be limited by competitive and other pressures beyond our control. Since the majority of the outstanding
senior investor securities in the Providian Gateway Master Trust bear interest at floating rates of
interest, this change reduces (but does not eliminate) the risk that excess servicing could be adversely
affected should interest rates rise.

Financial Summary of Securitizations. During 2004, 2003, and 2002, we securitized $4.30 billion,
$4.92 billion, and $3.24 billion of loans receivable. The total amount of securitized loans as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $10.73 billion and $10.33 billion. The following table presents the fair
value (carrying value, net of any discounts) of our retained interests in the securitized loans receivable,
which retained interests were reported in due from securitizations at December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Due from Securitizations

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003
As
Restated
Retained subordinated securityholders’ interests. .. ........ $ 1,251,254 $ 1,176,316
Interest-only strips receivable .. ....... ... ... o L 299,830 182,166
Spread accounts. . ......... i 246,195 403,802
Accrued interest receivable . . .. ... ... ... .ol 352,817 397,951
Other(1) ... oo vt e e e 116,218 171,038
Total due from securitizations . ..................... $ 2,266,314 $ 2,331,273

(1) Amounts consist primarily of funds deposited in the trust collection account and not yet
distributed.

Non-GAAP Managed Financial Information

Loans that have been securitized and sold to third party investors are not considered to be our
assets under GAAP and therefore are not shown on our balance sheet. However, the interests we
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retain in the securitized loan pools create financial exposure to the current and expected cash flows of
the securitized loans (see “—Securitizations of Loans Receivable”). The performance of these loans
can affect the recorded values of our retained interests included in due from securitizations and
servicing and securitization income. We also continue to service these loans.

Because of this continued exposure and involvement, we use managed financial information to
evaluate our historical performance, assess our current condition, and plan our future operations. We
believe that managed financial information supplements our GAAP information and is helpful to the
reader’s understanding of our consolidated financial condition and results of operations. “Reported”
financial information refers to GAAP financial information. “Managed” financial information is derived
by adjusting the reported financial information to add back securitized loan balances and the related
interest and fee income, credit losses, and net interest costs. Certain results for prior periods have been
affected by the restatement. See Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

When making disclosures regarding our expected future performance, including those
contained in this report, we disclose certain projected financial measures relating to expected
performance on a managed basis. We develop such projections on a managed basis using managed
financial information and do not in the normal course of business derive comparable GAAP
projections. Developing such comparable GAAP projections would be unreasonably burdensome and,
in the opinion of management, such comparable GAAP projections would not provide to the users of
the financial information a significant benefit in understanding our expected future performance.
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Reconciliation of Selected Reported Earnings to Selected Managed Earnings

(dollars in thousands)

Year ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Adjusted and Risk Adjusted Margins:

Reported ) .
Interest income from loans . . .. ............
Allocated interest expense . .. ........ . ...
Credit product fee income . ...............
Netcreditlosses. . . . ........ ... ... ...,

Adjusted margin . . ..., ... L.

Servicing and securitization income . . . ... ... ..
Other non-interest income . . ..............

Risk adjusted margin(1) .............

Securitization Adjustments
Interest income fromloans . . ... ...........
Allocated interest expense . .. .............
Credit product fee income . ...............
Netcreditlosses. .. ........ ... ... ...
Servicing and securitization income . . . ... ... ..
Managed
Interest income from loans . . ..............
Allocated interest expense . . ..............

Credit product fee income .. .............. .

Netcreditlosses. . ... ..... ... ...,
Adjusted margin .. ...... ... ...

Servicing and securitization income . . . . .. ... ..
Other non-interest income .. .. ............

Risk adjusted margin(1) .............

Net Interest Income:

Reported
Interest income fromloans . . . .............
Interest income from investments . . . .. .......
Interestexpense . . . ........... ...

Net interest income . . ..............

Securitization Adjustments
Interest income fromloans . ... ............
Interest income from investments(2) . .........
Interestexpense . . .. ... .o o
Managed
Interest income fromloans . . .. ............
Interest income from investments . . .. ........
Interestexpense . . . ..... ... ... .. ...

Net interest inCOme . ... ... .....u...

As Restated  As Restated  As Restated  As Restated
Unaudited Unaudited

$860,413 $950,758  $1,490258  $2,393,389  $2,455,695
(286,043) (314,613) (454,318) (730,910) (687,314)

555,160 759,642 1,152,041 1,892,137 2,187,752
(543,478) (837312)  (1,226,168)  (1,517,513)  (1,070,974)
586,052 558,475 961,813 2,037,103 2,885,159
1,034,827 900,278 571,776 691,128 880,433

15,294 66,012 604,398 219,612 193,612

1,636,173 1,524,765 2,137,987 2,947,843 3,959,204

$2,024,294 $2,272,901 $2,662,794 $2,873,943 $1,820,912

(249,126) (273,660) (354,285) (720,772) (681,149)
524,026 519,675 667,653 686,561 373,946

(1,460,906)  (1,961,130)  (2,298,993)  (1,699,310) (710,511)

(841,370) (619,516) (718,113) (1,121,765) (783,096)

$2,884,707 $3,223,659 $4,153,052 $5,267,332 $4,276,607

(535,169) (588,273) (808,603)  (1,451,682)  (1,368,463)
1,079,186 1,279,317 1,819,694 2,578,698 2,561,698

(2,004,384)  (2,798,442)  (3525,161)  (3,216,823)  (1,781,485)

1,424,340 1,116,261 1,638,982 3,177,525 3,688,357

193,457 280,762 (146,337) (430,637) 97,337
15,294 66,012 604,398 219,612 193,612

1,633,091 1,463,035 2,097,043 2,966,500 3,979,306

$860,413 $950,758 $1,490,258 $2,393,389 $2,455,695

134,321 141,978 192,227 206,280 230,510
(495,656) (633,790) (771,994) (934,309) (874,779)
499,078 458,946 910,491 1,665,360 1,811,426

$2,024,294 $2,272,901 $2,662,794 $2,873,943 $1,820,912

(50,625) (36,543) (41,169) (29,889) —
(195,420) (175,389) (272,173) (709,539) (701,249)

$2,884,707 $3,223,659 $4,153,052 $5,267,332 $4,276,607

83,696 105,435 151,058 176,391 230,510
(691,076) (809,179)  (1,044,167)  (1,643848)  (1,576,028)

2,271,327 2,519,915 3,259,943 3,799,875 2,931,089

(1) Risk adjusted margin measures loan portfolio profitability by comparing the revenue generated by customer accounts with
the related funding costs and risk of loss. Risk adjusted margin consists of interest income plus non-interest income
(including non-interest income—servicing and securitization and non-interest income—other) less interest expense allocated
to loans and net credit losses. Therefore, this measure includes fluctuations from changes in the fair values of retained
interests and non-recurring gains or losses included in non-interest income—other. To provide an ongoing measure of loan
profitability that is not subject to such fluctuations we use adjusted margin.

(2) Beginning in September 2001, on a reported basis, we began recognizing interest income attributable to our interest-only
strips receivable. On a managed basis, this interest income is included in non-interest income—servicing and securitization.
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Reconciliation of Selected Reported Financial Data

to Selected Managed Financial Data

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
As Restated As Restated As Restated As Restated
Unaudited Unaudited
Selected Financial Data:
Reported
Year End:
Delinquent loans . ... .. $346,942 $417,131 $689,641 $980,261 $1,222,612
Loans receivable(1)(2) . . 7,522,401 6,281,403 6,899,849 12,939,877 13,560,724
Total assets . ......... 14,344,539 14,246,315 16,598,729 19,843,659 18,093,723
Average:
Loans receivable(l) . ... $6,841,581 $6,546,748 $9,011,891  $14,188,546  $12,828,454
Earning assets ... ..... 11,855,306 13,187,456 15,314,446 18,136,447 16,328,419
Total assets .......... 13,747,695 15,728,732 17,768,254 20,434,290 17,422,697
Securitization Adjustments
Year End:
Delinquent loans ... ... $794,535 $1,156,096 $1,490,124 $1,892,603 $806,003
Loans receivable . ... .. 11,013,352 10,653,351 12,719,752 19,683,674 13,352,658
Total assets . ......... 9,292,832 8,923,017 9,832,790 17,720,701 12,807,555
Average:
Loans receivable .. .... $10,364,872  $11,140,680 $12,626,985  $15,646,247  $10,250,116
Earning assets . ....... 10,364,872 11,140,680 12,626,985 15,646,247 10,250,116
Total assets .......... 8,709,908 8,786,752 10,727,504 14,813,749 10,182,455
Managed
Year End:
Delinquent loans . .. ... $1,141,477 $1,573,227 $2,179,765 $2,872,864 $2,028,615
Loans receivable(1)(2) . . 18,535,753 16,934,754 19,619,601 32,623,551 26,913,382
Total assets .......... 23,637,371 23,169,332 26,431,519 37,564,360 30,901,278
Average:
Loans receivable(1) . ... $17,206,453 $17,687,428 $21,638,876  $29,834,793  $23,078,570
Earning assets . ....... 22,220,178 24,328,136 27,941,431 33,782,694 26,578,535
Total assets . ......... 22,457,603 24,515,484 28,495,758 35,248,039 27,605,152

(1) The 2003, 2002 and 2001 amounts exclude SFAS No. 133 market value adjustments.

(2) The 2001 loans receivable include loans held for securitization or sale of $1.41 billion.

Loan Performance Measures. We present key loan performance measures on a reported and a
managed basis. Reported loans do not necessarily have the same income or credit characteristics as
securitized loans and can perform differently over time. Although managed loan performance measures
include both reported and securitized loans, the securitized loans will have a more significant impact on
the managed loan performance numbers because our securitized receivables balance is substantially
larger than our reported receivables balance. In addition, when loans are securitized, there is a
potentially significant impact on reported loan performance as loans are removed from loans receivable
on our balance sheet or reclassified to loans held for securitization or sale, while there is generally no
significant impact on managed loan performance.
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Loan Performance Statistics

Year ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
As Restated  As Restated

Reported
Net interest margin on average loans(1) ............ 8.40% 9.71% 11.50%
Net interest margin on average earning assets. ... .... 421% 3.48% 5.95%
Adjusted margin on average loans(2) .............. 8.57% 8.52% 10.67%
Risk adjusted margin on average loans(3)(4) ........ 23.92% 23.28% 23.72%
Return on average assets . . .. ..o vvinnt ... 2.77% 1.39% 1.01%
Managed
Net interest margin on average loans(S) ............ 13.66% 14.90% 15.45%
Net interest margin on average earning assets........ 10.25% 10.36% 11.67%
Adjusted margin on average loans(6) .............. 8.28% 6.31% 7.57%
Risk adjusted margin on average loans(4)(7) ........ 9.50% 8.27% 9.69%
Return on average assets . . . ... ..o v e ... 1.70% 0.89% 0.63%

(1)

@

)

C)

)

(6)

™

Represents interest income, less interest expense, expressed as a percentage of reported average
loans receivable. Interest expense is allocated to reported average loans receivable based on the
ratio of reported average loans receivable to reported average earning assets.

Represents interest income, less interest expense and net credit losses, plus credit product fee
income on reported average loans receivable, expressed as a percentage of reported average loans
receivable. Interest expense is allocated to reported average loans receivable based on the ratio of
reported average loans receivable to reported average earning assets.

Represents interest income, less interest expense and net credit losses, plus non-interest income,
expressed as a percentage of reported average loans receivable. Interest expense is allocated to
reported average loans receivable based on the ratio of reported average loans receivable to
reported average earning assets.

Risk adjusted margin measures loan portfolio profitability by comparing the revenue generated by
customer accounts with the related funding costs and risk of loss. Risk adjusted margin consists of
interest income plus non-interest income (including non-interest income—servicing and
securitization and non-interest income—other) less interest expense allocated to loans and net
credit losses. Therefore, this measure includes fluctuations from changes in the fair values of
retained interests and non-recurring gains or losses included in non-interest income—other. To
provide an ongoing measure of loan profitability that is not subject to such fluctuations, we use
adjusted margin.

Represents interest income, less interest expense, expressed as a percentage of managed average
loans receivable. Interest expense is allocated to managed average loans receivable based on the
ratio of managed average loans receivable to managed average earning assets.

Represents interest income, less interest expense and net credit losses, plus credit product fee
income on managed average loans receivable, expressed as a percentage of managed average loans
receivable. Interest expense is allocated to managed average loans receivable based on the ratio of
managed average loans receivable to managed average earning assets.

Represents interest income, less interest expense and net credit losses, plus non-interest income,
expressed as a percentage of managed average loans receivable. Interest expense is allocated to
managed average loans receivable based on the ratio of managed average loans receivable to
managed average earning assets.
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Ner Interest Margin. Our reported net interest margin on average loans decreased to 8.40% for
2004, from 9.71% for 2003. Managed net interest margin on average loans decreased to 13.66% for
2004, from 14.90% for 2003. The yield on our reported loans receivable decreased to 12.58% for 2004,
from 14.52% for 2003. The yield on managed loans receivable decreased to 16.77% for 2004, from
18.23% for 2003. The lower yields in 2004 are primarily a result of our continuing efforts to generate a
higher-quality loan portfolio by increasing the percentage of higher credit quality accounts, which
generally have lower annual percentage rates, including lower and longer introductory rates.

Reported earning assets include consumer loans, interest-earning cash, federal funds sold and
securities purchased under resale agreements, investment securities, spread accounts, and interest-only
strips receivable. Managed earning assets include reported earning assets plus the loans receivable
removed or reclassified from loans receivable on our balance sheet through our securitizations, less the
retained interests from securitizations reported on our balance sheet. Net interest income expressed as
a percentage of average earning assets is referred to as net interest margin on average earning assets.
The reported net interest margin on average earning assets increased to 4.21% for 2004 from 3.48% for
2003. This increase primarily reflects the impact of lower interest expense due to decreased levels of
deposit funding as compared to 2003, and lower interest rates paid on deposits. The managed net
interest margin on average earning assets decreased to 10.25% for 2004 from 10.36% for 2003. This
decrease primarily reflects the impact from lower yields earned on our managed earning assets.

Adjusted Margin. One of the ways we measure loan portfolio profitability is by comparing the
revenue generated by customer accounts with the related funding costs and risk of loss. Adjusted
margin consists of interest income plus non-interest income—credit product fee income less interest
expense allocated to loans and net credit losses. This measure excludes non-interest income—servicing
and securitization and non-interest income—other to provide an ongoing measure of loan profitability
that excludes fluctuations from changes in the fair values of retained interests and non-recurring gains
or losses. Adjusted margin is expressed in dollars or as a percentage of average loans receivable.

Reported adjusted margins for 2004 were $586.1 million and 8.57%, compared to
$558.5 million and 8.52% for 2003. Managed adjusted margins for 2004 were $1.42 billion and 8.28%,
compared to $1.12 billion and 6.31% for 2003. The increase in the reported and managed adjusted
margins for 2004 is primarily due to a decrease in net credit losses, partially offset by lower yields and
reduced fee income associated with our transition to higher-quality accounts.

Asset Quality

Our delinquencies and net credit losses reflect, among other factors, the credit quality of our
loans receivable, the average age of our loans receivable (generally referred to as “seasoning™), the
success of our collection and recovery efforts, including sales of charged-off assets, and general
economic conditions. Initially, credit quality is primarily determined by the characteristics of the
targeted market segment and the underwriting criteria utilized in the credit approval process. As an
account ages, account management efforts, seasoning, and demographic and economic conditions will
affect overall credit quality.

We measure the credit performance of our portfolio of loans receivable through two key rates,
the 30+ day delinquency rate and the net credit loss rate. The 30+ day delinquency rate on reported
loans was 4.61% as of December 31, 2004, compared to 6.64% as of December 31, 2003. The 30+ day
delinquency rate on managed loans was 6.16% as of December 31, 2004, compared to 9.29% as of
December 31, 2003. The reported net credit loss rate was 7.94% for 2004, compared to 12.79% for
2003. The managed net credit loss rate was 11.65% for 2004, compared to 15.82% for 2003.
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The improved performance over the past year in both our reported and managed 30+ day
delinquency rates and our reported and managed net credit loss rates reflects the impact of higher
quality account originations, changes to our portfolio management strategy including revised credit line
and pricing strategies for existing customers, new collection and credit policies and practices, and
improving conditions in the U.S. economy.

Improving the Quality of Our Loan Portfolio. During 2002, we changed our marketing strategies
within both the new account acquisition and portfolio management functions, with the goal of
generating a higher-quality loan portfolio with more stable earnings and lower, less volatile credit loss
rates. We no longer market new accounts to higher risk segments of the market, which means that,
consistent with the Capital Plan, we do not originate accounts for consumers with FICO® credit scores
below 600, as derived from information available on credit bureau reports. We operate under a
balanced strategy of originating new loans across the broad middle to prime market segments, focusing
on the parts of these segments that we expect to be most profitable and creditworthy. As a result, we
have generated higher credit quality loans through our proprietary marketing program, which
emphasizes the portion of the market we refer to as mainstream America, and through our partnership
and co-branding marketing programs, which use highly targeted criteria to market our credit card
products to creditworthy individuals associated with various groups and organizations.

Consistent with the changes in our strategy for new account acquisitions, we altered our
portfolio management strategy for existing customers. We selectively repriced loans and reduced credit
lines for accounts that exhibited increased risk levels. To strengthen and extend our relationships with
our best customers, we improved our process to selectively provide product upgrades, improve pricing,
and increase credit lines when appropriate. In addition, in August 2003 we sold $859.6 million in credit
card balances owned by PB. Since the majority of PB’s loan portfolio consisted of higher risk accounts,
this sale had the effect of improving the credit quality mix of the assets remaining.

Credit and Collections Strategies and Policies. We employ a delinquency lifecycle strategy to
manage delinquent accounts. This approach allows for. targeted collection treatment based on the stage
of delinquency of the account. This strategy is applied in combination with certain event-driven actions,
consumer counseling, and consumer debt management education. We believe this facilitates
management and collector accountability for, and ownership of, collection results,

We have also initiated a number of changes in risk management and credit and collections
policies and practices that are consistent with regulatory guidance and industry practice. These changes
have had an impact on the age classification of delinquent account balances, the timing of principal
charge-offs, and our procedures for investigating fraud losses. In the third quarter of 2004, we modified
the criteria for recognizing charge-offs for certain loans that are subject to payment plans under a
consumer debt management program, so that loans that are less than 120 days past due at the time
they are enrolled in a debt management program are subject to charge off when they become 120 days
past due. Additionally, loans to customers who are enrolled in a debt management program and who
miss one payment under the plan are subject to charge-off when they become 120 days past due.

Additionally, we made the following changes to our credit and collections polices and practices
in 2004 and 2003: :

+  In February 2003, we modified our loan re-aging practice for reclassifying a delinquent
account to current status based on qualifying payments. As a result, accounts are eligible
for a re-aging not more than once in a 12-month period and not more than twice within
any 60-month period. In March 2004, we re-aged certain accounts of customers who had
opened their accounts prior to February 1999, but whose re-aging history had not been
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tracked prior to February 1999. We estimate that this re-aging resulted in a 16 basis point
reduction to the reported 30+ day delinquency rate at March 31, 2004. The impact to the
reported net credit loss rate was not significant.

In August 2003, we began recognizing charge-offs for bankrupt customers on a daily basis,
generally 30 days after notification of the bankruptcy. Previously, we batch processed
bankruptcy accounts and charged off the related amounts once a month. The impact of
implementing this change was a decrease in the September 2003 reported monthly net
credit loss rate of approximately 96 basis points.

In August 2003, we began recognizing charge-offs for deceased customers on a daily basis,
generally 60 days after verification of death. Previously, we recognized charge-offs for
deceased customers on two separate days each month, generally within a range of about 35
to no more than 60 days after verification of death. We estimate implementing this change
had the effect of reducing the October 2003 reported net credit loss rate by 20 basis
points.

In August 2003, we modified the partial payment amount required to be paid by a
customer in order to keep the customer’s account from aging. Previously, to avoid aging an
account we required a payment of no less than $5 below the minimum amount due. With
the change, in order to avoid aging the account we now require a payment of 90% or
more of the minimum amount due. We estimate implementing this change had no
significant impact to the September 2003 reported monthly net credit loss rate or the 30+
day delinquency rate. ‘

In August 2003, we modified the criteria used to determine whether a customer’s account
has been restructured under a consumer debt management program and is therefore
subject to charge-off no later than 120 days after it becomes contractually past due.
Previously, we considered an account to be in a consumer debt management program
when a customer made three payments on the restructured account. With the change, we
consider an account to be in a consumer debt management program when the customer
makes one payment on the restructured account. We estimate implementing this change
had no significant impact to the September 2003 reported monthly net credit loss rate or
the 30+ day delinquency rate.

In September 2003, we further modified our loan re-aging practices. Previously, an account
could qualify for re-aging if the customer paid the minimum amount due in each of three
consecutive monthly payment cycles. With the change, an account may also qualify for
re-aging when the customer pays the cumulative equivalent amount within a three payment
cycle period. The impact of implementing this change was a decrease in the

September 2003 reported 30+ day delinquency rate of approximately 18 basis points.

In November 2003, we began processing account re-ages during the month in which a
qualifying payment is made instead of in the following month, and we made an adjustment
to the delinquency status of certain past due customers enrolled in debt management
arrangements in order to ensure that their delinquency status was aligned with their
adherence to the terms of their arrangements. We estimate that implementing these
changes had the effect of reducing the November 2003 30+ day reported delinquency rate
by approximately 21 basis points.
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* In December 2003, we accelerated the recognition of charge-offs for certain loans that are
subject to payment plans under a consumer debt management program. Previously, only
consumer debt management program accounts that were current when they were accepted
into the program or were subsequently re-aged to a current status after being accepted
into the program were charged off no later than 120 days after they became contractually
past due. All other consumer debt management program accounts were charged off no
later than 180 days after they became contractually past due. The 120 days past due
charge-off recognition practice was extended to other consumer debt management program
accounts that subsequently default under certain criteria we establish. We estimate that
implementing this change had the effect of increasing the December 2003 reported net
credit loss rate by approximately 19 basis points.

Our continued review of risk management and credit and collections operations could lead to
further modifications.

Delinquencies. An account is contractually delinquent if the required minimum payment is not
received by the next due date. Accountholders may cure account delinquencies by making a partial
payment that qualifies under our re-aging practices and applicable regulatory requirements. The
delinquency rate is derived by dividing loans receivable that are 30 days or more past due at period end
by loans receivable at period end.

Reported 30+ day delinquency rates are influenced by fluctuations in the composition of
receivables transferred to our securitization trust and by the amount of the senior seller’s interest in the
securitization trust from time to time. These amounts may increase or decrease as a result of account
additions, increases or decreases in the balance of the pool of loans receivable transferred to the
securitization trust, and increases or decreases in the level of securityholders’ interests due to new
issuances and amortization or accumulation of outstanding series. (See “—Securitizations of Loans
Receivable.”) For example, during a month in which we designate additional accounts to the
securitization trust or reduce the amount of an outstanding series of securityholders’ interests, the
amount of our senior seller’s interest will increase. This increase, which may continue until new
securityholders’ interests are issued or the amount of loans in the securitization trust declines, will
generally also increase our reported 30+ day delinquency rate because we will have a larger undivided
interest in the pool of loans receivable transferred to the securitization trust than before the increase
and because the securitized loans currently have higher delinquency rates than our reported loans
receivable. As a result, short-term fluctuations in the reported 30+ day delinquency rate are not
necessarily a reliable indicator of trends in our asset quality.
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Delinquent Loans

December 31,

2004 2003
% of % of
(dollars in thousands) Loans Total Loans Loans Total Loans
Reported
Loans outstanding . ................... $ 7,522,401 100.00% $ 6,281,403 100.00%
Loans delinquent
30-59days ... $ 109,014 1.45% $ 128,467 2.05%
60-89days ...........ii 80,152 1.06% 94,916 1.51%
90 or more days .......... P 157,776 2.10% 193,748 3.08%
Total loans delinquent . ............. $ 346,942 461% $ 417,131 6.64%
Securitized
Loans outstanding(1) . ................. $11,013,352 $10,653,351
Loans delinquent
30-59days ......... il $ 244,041 $ 346,630
60-89days ........ i 182,531 269,107
9ormoredays .................. 367,963 540,359
Total loans delinquent .............. $ 794,535 $ 1,156,096
Managed
Loans outstanding .................... $18,535,753 100.00% $16,934,754 100.00%
Loans delinquent
30-59days .......... .. $ 353,055 1.90% $ 475,097 2.81%
60-89days ........... ... .. 262,683 1.42% 364,023 2.15%
9ormoredays .................. 525,739 2.84% 734,107 4.33%
Total loans delinquent .............. $ 1,141,477 6.16% $ 1,573,227 9.29%

(1) Excludes the senior seller’s interest in the loans receivable transferred in securitizations, which is
included in reported loans receivable. Includes the seller’s interest subordinated component, or
AIR, which is reported in due from securitizations on our balance sheet.

Net Credit Losses. We recognize credit losses on accounts determined to be uncollectible by
charging off the outstanding principal balances, as described in “—Allowance and Provision for Credit
Losses.” After a loan is charged off, we continue collection activity to the extent legally permissible.
Net credit losses for consumer loans represent the principal amount of charged-off loan balances
(including charged-off bankrupt and deceased customer accounts) less current period principal
recoveries. Net credit losses include purchases, including certain financed cardholder service product
sales and cash advances, and exclude accrued interest and fees and fraud losses. Recoveries include
collections on the principal portion of previously charged-off accounts and the proceeds from the sale
of charged-off receivables. The amount of charged-off receivables sold will vary from period to period
and is influenced by charge-off trends, market conditions, and credit loss performance targets for the
period. The proceeds recognized from such sales of charged-off receivables on a reported basis were
$55.6 million for 2004, as compared to $93.9 million for 2003. The proceeds recognized from such sales
of charged-off receivables on a managed basis were $162.8 million for 2004, as compared to
$272.4 million for 2003. Fraud losses (losses due to the unauthorized use of credit cards, including
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credit cards obtained through fraudulent applications) are charged to non-interest expense after an
investigation period of up to 90 days.

Net credit loss rates are derived by dividing net credit losses by average loans receivable
balances for a specified period. While net credit losses include only the principal balance associated
with charged-off loans, loans receivable balances include accrued interest and fee balances estimated to
be collectible as well as principal balances. This results in a lower net credit loss rate than would be
determined if loans receivable balances included only principal balances. Managed net credit losses
include reported net credit losses plus the principal amount of securitized loans charged off less

principal recoveries (including proceeds from the sale of charged-off receivables) related to securitized
loans.

Reported net credit loss rates are influenced by fluctuations in the composition of receivables
transferred to our securitization trust and by the amount of the senior seller’s interest in the
securitization trust from time to time. These amounts may increase or decrease as a result of account
additions, increases or decreases in the balance of the pool of loans receivable transferred to the
securitization trust, and increases or decreases in the level of securityholders’ interests due to new
issuances and amortization or accumulation of outstanding series. (See “—Securitizations of Loans
Receivable.”) For example, during a month in which we designate additional accounts to the
securitization trust or reduce the amount of an outstanding series of securityholders’ interests, the
amount of our senior seller’s interest will increase. This increase, which may continue until new
securityholders’ interests are issued or the amount of loans in the securitization trust declines, will
generally also increase our reported net credit loss rate because we will have a larger undivided interest
in the pool of loans receivable transferred to the securitization trust than before the increase and
because the securitized loans currently have higher net credit loss rates than our reported loans
receivable. As a result, short-term fluctuations in the reported net credit loss rate are not necessarily a
reliable indicator of trends in our asset quality.

Net Credit Losses

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Reported
Average loans outstanding(1)(2)(3) . .................. $ 6,841,581 § 6,546,748 $ 9,011,891
Netcredit 10sses(4) . . .. oot v i e $ 543478 § 837312 § 1,226,168
Net credit losses as a percentage of average loans

outstanding . . . ... ... 7.94% 12.79% 13.61%
Securitized
Average loans outstanding(5) . ........ ... ... . $10,364,872 $11,140,680 $12,626,985
Netcreditlosses ... ..., $ 1,460,906 § 1,961,130 $ 2,298,993
Managed :
Average loans outstanding(1)(2) ..................... $17,206,453 $17,687,428 $21,638,876
Netcreditlosses(4) . .. ... ..ot $ 2,004,384 $ 2,798,442 § 3,525,161
Net credit losses as a percentage of average loans

outstanding . . ... ... ... e 11.65% 15.82% 16.29%

(1) The 2003 average loans outstanding include loans held for securitization or sale at par. The 2004,
2003, and 2002 balances also exclude SFAS No. 133 market value adjustments.
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(2) The average loans outstanding and net credit losses for the year ended December 31, 2002
included a portfolio of higher risk loans receivable balances and related net credit losses prior to
their transfer to loans held for securitization or sale on March 31, 2002. After March 31, 2002,
these loans receivable and related net credit losses were excluded from the calculation of net credit
losses for the year ended December 31, 2002.

(3) We adopted the federal banking agencies’ accrued interest receivable, or AIR, guidance in the
fourth quarter of 2002, resulting in a reclassification of a portion of the accrued interest receivable
from reported loans receivable to due from securitizations beginning in the fourth quarter of 2002.

(4) The 2003 and 2002 net credit losses exclude estimated net credit losses on loans held for
securitization or sale of $171.6 million and $985.9 million.

(5) Excludes the senior seller’s interest in the loans receivable transferred in securitizations, which is
included in reported loans receivable. Includes the seller’s interest subordinated component, or
AIR, which is reported in due from securitizations on our balance sheet.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

Interest rate sensitivity refers to the change in earnings or value resulting from fluctuations in
interest rates. Our earnings are subject to risk to the extent that there is a difference between the
amount of interest-earning assets and the amount of interest-bearing liabilities that mature or reprice in
a specific period. Even if earnings could be perfectly hedged, a change in the level of interest rates will
change the present value of the hedged earnings stream.

Our assets and liabilities consist primarily of investments in interest-earning assets (loans
receivable and investment securities), which are primarily funded by interest-bearing liabilities (deposits
and borrowings). Our loans receivable accrue interest at rates that are either fixed or float at a spread
above the prime rate. At December 31, 2004, 50.5% of our reported loans receivable and 61.6% of our
managed loans receivable had interest rates that were floating. In calculating such percentages, we no
longer include balances subject to a promotional offer that bear fixed rates during the term of the
promotional offer. While our non-promotionally priced fixed rate credit card receivables have no stated
maturity or repricing period, we generally have the right to adjust the rate charged after providing
notice to the customer. Repricing of our fixed and floating rate credit card receivables may be limited
by competitive and other pressures beyond our control and by credit risk considerations. Interest rates
on our liabilities are generally indexed to the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) or bear a
fixed rate. This asset/liability structure exposes us to two types of interest rate risk: (a) repricing risk,
which results from a mismatch between assets and liabilities that mature or reprice in specific periods;
and (b) basis risk, which arises from changing spread relationships between indexes such as the prime
rate and LIBOR.

The principal objective of our interest rate risk management activities is to monitor and control
our exposure to adverse effects resulting from movements of interest rates over time. We generally seek
to strike a balance between hedging net interest income and hedging the present value of net interest
income. To measure exposure to interest rate changes, we use multiple complementary measures of risk
to net interest income under a number of scenarios and rate changes. We typically model the impact of
rate changes on current net interest income over a three-year period and the impact on the present
value of net interest income over a longer horizon. When estimated risk exposure exceeds our
guidelines, we seek to mitigate the risk through the use of matching and hedging techniques as
described below.

The following table illustrates the estimated effects on managed net interest income of positive

and negative parallel shifts in interest rates as calculated at December 31, 2004, using our interest rate
risk model and taking into consideration our current hedging activity as of December 31, 2004. Our
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analysis compares estimated managed net interest income over 12 months in a stable interest rate
environment to scenarios in which interest rates rise and fall by 200 basis points. Our interest rate risk
model incorporates certain assumptions regarding our ability to reprice our fixed and floating rate
credit card loans without otherwise impacting customer behavior. The actual repricing sensitivity of
these loans depends on how our customers and competitors respond to changes in market interest
rates. As of December 31, 2004, we modeled the repricing behavior of our fixed rate credit card loans
based on an amortization schedule which results in approximately 50% of the original balance being
repriced by the 15th month. The repricing of certain assets and liabilities may be limited by competitive
and other pressures beyond our control and by credit risk considerations. As a result, certain assets and
liabilities assumed to mature or otherwise reprice within a certain period may in fact mature or reprice
at different times and at different volumes. The table below should be viewed as our estimate, subject
to these uncertainties, of the general effect of the indicated interest rate movements on our managed
net interest income.

Estimated Effects of Interest Rate Changes

Percentage Change in

Change in Interest Rates Managed Net Interest Income
+ 200 basis points . . . ....... e 2.9%
— 200 basis points . . ... i i 2.1)%

The information shown above is presented on a consolidated managed asset/liability basis,
which includes the interest rate sensitivity of net interest income from securitized loans and the impact
of derivative instruments. We do not in the normal course of business derive comparable interest rate
sensitivity of net interest income on a reported basis. In the opinion of management, such comparable
projections on a reported basis would not provide a significant benefit in understanding our expected
future performance. In addition, the projections above do not include the impact of interest rate
changes on non-interest income. Non-interest income—servicing and securitization can be subject to
significant impacts to the extent that interest rate changes affect the market discount rate assumptions
used in valuing our retained interests in securitizations. Sensitivities of the current fair value of our
retained interests to changes in key securitization assumptions, including the market discount rate, are
presented in Note 9 of our Consolidated Financial Statements.

We generally seek to mitigate risks to net interest income and capital arising from movements
in interest rates. The main tools we use to manage our interest rate sensitivity are investment decisions,
pricing decisions on our loans receivable, and, when deemed appropriate, derivatives, including interest
rate swap and cap agreements. We do not trade our derivative positions or use derivatives to speculate
on interest rate movements, and we believe our use of such instruments is prudent and consistent with
industry standards.
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Notional Amounts of Interest Rate Swap and Cap Agreements

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) ' ‘ 2004 2003 2002
Interest Rate Swap Agreements

Beginning balance . . .. ....................... . ....... § 288200 $ 918200 $1,293,200
Additions . ... ... e - 2,357,600 — —
Maturities . ..o v e e e e e e (276,000)  (630,000)  (375,000)
Ending balance . . ...................... e e $2,369,800 $ 288,200 $ 918,200
Interest Rate Cap Agreements

Beginning balance . ... ...... .o $ — $§ 3000 $ 7,883
Maturities . ... ... e — (3,000) (4,883)
Ending balance . .. .................. e PR — 8§ — $ 3,000

Notional amounts of interest rate swaps outstanding on December 31, 2004 increased from
December 31, 2003, primarily as the need for hedging increased due to the continued trend toward
more loans priced at floating rates, while deposit funding remained at fixed rates. As market conditions
or our asset/liability mix change, we may increase or decrease the notional amounts of interest rate
swaps and caps outstanding in order to manage our interest rate risk within prudent levels. As required
by SFAS No. 133, we record the fair value of an interest rate derivative as an asset or liability (as
appropriate) and offset that amount with a change in the value of the item being hedged.

We manage credit risk arising from derivative transactions through an ongoing credit review,
approval, and monitoring process. Credit risk for these derivative transactions is defined as the risk that
a loss will occur as the result of a derivative counterparty defaulting on a contract when the contract is
in a favorable economic position to us. We may enter into master netting, market settlement, or
collateralization agreements with derivative counterparties to reduce this risk.

Funding and Liquidity

We seek to fund our assets by diversifying our distribution channels and offering a variety of
funding products, with the goal of generating funding at the lowest cost available to us while
maintaining liquidity at appropriate levels and managing interest rate risk. The primary goal of our
liquidity management is to provide funding to support our operations in varying business environments.
We employ multiple strategies, including diversification of funding sources, dispersion of maturities, and
maintenance of liquid investments and cash balances.

The following table reflects our current debt ratings and those of PNB. In September 2004,
Standard & Poor’s upgraded its ratings outlook for our debt ratings from stable to positive. In
January 2005, Moody’s Investors Service upgraded its ratings outlook for our debt ratings (Providian
Financial Corporation) from stable to positive.

66




Current Long-Term Senior Debt Ratings

Moody’s
Standard & Investors
Poor’s(1) Service  FitchRatings
Providian Financial Corporation ...................... B B2 (1) B+
Providian National Bank . .. .............. ... ... . ... BB - Ba3(2) BB -

(1) Positive outlook.
(2) Stable outlook.

During 2004, consistent with our Capital Plan, our liquidity position (federal funds sold and
securities purchased under resale agreements, available-for-sale investment securities, and cash and cash
equivalents) decreased by $853.5 million from $5.64 billion at December 31, 2003 to $4.79 billion at
December 31, 2004. We expect our liquidity position to remain relatively stable during 2005. Our

liquidity position at December 31, 2004 was approximately 33% of our reported assets and 20% of our
managed assets.

Under the capital assurances and liquidity maintenance agreement we entered into with PNB,
we agreed to provide capital and liquidity support to it. Our agreement with PNB to provide capital
and liquidity support exempts certain of our near-term cash obligations, including current interest
obligations on our 3.25% convertible senior notes due August 15, 2005 and current payments on the
9.525% junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures due February 1, 2027. In addition, certain
accrued deferred compensation, miscellaneous working capital needs not to exceed $25 million, and
severance payments are generally exempt from the parent company’s obligations under the agreement.

See “Regulatory Matters” for a description of the capital assurances and liquidity maintenance
agreement.

Qur investment in subsidiaries as a percentage of our total equity, which is referred to as our
“double leverage,” at December 31, 2004 was 114%. A double leverage ratio in excess of 100%
indicates the degree to which an investment in subsidiaries has been funded with long-term borrowings
and other liabilities of the parent company. The principal source of funds for us to make payments on
our parent company debt securities and to meet our other obligations is our cash investments and
dividends from PNB. In December 2004, PNB sought and received approval from its primary regulator
to make an in-kind dividend to PFC of certain retained interests, which had a carrying value of
$230.6 million, in PNB’s securitizations. If PNB seeks to make future dividends it must first obtain
regulatory consent. There is no assurance that such consent, if sought, could be obtained. In addition, if
we are required to provide additional capital and liquidity support to PNB, our ability to service our
parent company debt obligations would be further limited.

Funding Sources and Maturities. We seek to fund our assets by diversifying our distribution
channels and offering a variety of funding products. However, our ability to fund existing and future
customer loans is currently dependent on four primary sources: customer deposits, securitizations, a
portfolio of cash and liquid investment securities, and debt issuances.

We offer maturity terms for our funding products that range up to 30 years. Actual maturity
distributions depend on several factors, including expected asset duration, investor demand, relative
costs, shape of the yield curve, and anticipated issuances in the securitization and capital markets. We
seek to maintain a balanced distribution of maturities and avoid undue concentration in any one
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period. We monitor existing funding maturities and loan growth projections to prudently manage
liquidity levels.

During 2005, we have funding requirements for maturing deposits of $3.03 billion, maturing
third party securityholder interests in securitizations of $2.47 billion, and maturing debt of
$343.3 million. Of the $2.47 billion of maturing securitizations, $200.0 million represents the third party
securityholders’ interests in a variable funding series that is scheduled to begin amortizing in
November 2005, unless the series is extended. We expect to extend the revolving period of this series
for a period of approximately 12 months. We anticipate that we will meet our funding requirements for
2005, along with any incremental asset growth in 2005, by extending the revolving period of this
variable funding series, issuing new securitization series, utilizing our liquidity position, and accepting
new deposits. We may also generate additional funding by issuing common stock, including issuances
under a dividend reinvestment and direct stock purchase plan, or by issuing new debt securities.
Although we have been successful in meeting our funding needs, future events or changes affecting us
or the markets in which we obtain our funding could adversely affect our ability to fund our business.

Deposits. Deposits decreased to $9.47 billion as of December 31, 2004 from $10.10 billion as of
December 31, 2003. At December 31, 2004, PNB’s deposits were covered by cash, liquid investments,
and a risk-adjusted portion of on-balance sheet loans, as contemplated by its Capital Plan. We expect
PNB to continue to maintain assets of sufficient quality on its balance sheet to fully cover its deposits.
However, there can be no assurance that it will be successful in doing so.

The following table summarizes the remaining contractual maturities of our deposits,
substantially all of which are retail deposits.

Maturities of Deposits

December 31,

2004 2003
Direct  Brokered Total Direct  Brokered Total
(dollars in thousands) Deposits  Deposits ~ Deposits Deposits  Deposits  Deposits
Three monthsorless ............... $ 426487 § 535,562 § 962,049 § 453,512 $ 631,682 $ 1,085,194
Over three months through one year(1) . . . 691,961 1,379,516 2,071,477 1,052,329 1,350,211 2,402,540
Over one year through five years(2) ... .. 1,566,844 3,942294 5,509,138 1,837,037 3,386,580 5,223,617
Overfiveyears ................... 7,568 526,000 533,568 322 708,152 708,474
Deposits without contractual maturity . ... 394,772 — 394,772 681,232 —_ 681,232
Total deposits . .............. .. ... $3,087,632 $6,383,372 $9,471,004 $4,024,432 $6,076,625 $10,101,057

(1) At December 31, 2004, maturities of total deposits over three months through one year by quarter were as
follows: second quarter 2005: $734.7 million; third quarter 2005: $695.0 million; fourth quarter 2005:
$641.8 million.

(2) At December 31, 2004, maturities of total deposits over one year through two years were $2.77 billion.
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A bank that is below the well-capitalized levels as reported on its Call Reports is subject to
ceilings on rates paid for deposits and restrictions on accepting brokered deposits. A bank that is
adequately capitalized is restricted from accepting brokered deposits without a waiver from the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation and may not pay a rate on its deposits that is more than 75 basis points
higher than the prevailing rate in its market. As of December 31, 2004, capital ratios for PNB were
above the well-capitalized levels on a Call Report basis. PNB has exceeded the well-capitalized level
since March 31, 2002. Accordingly, these restrictions on deposit taking activities do not currently apply
to PNB.

Securitizations. Securitization of our loans receivable provides an important source of funding
that is cost effective and beneficial in achieving the required levels of capital established by our
regulators. We seek a range of maturity terms in our securitizations.

Among our outstanding securitizations we have two variable funding series, one with a two-year
revolving period, and one with a one-year revolving period. The two-year revolving variable funding
series, which has a commitment amount of $500.0 million, was issued in August 2004. The one-year
revolving variable funding series, which was issued in November 2004 and replaced a previous variable
funding series, has a commitment amount of $1.00 billion. Securitization funding from third party
securityholders under our variable funding series totaled $630.0 million as of December 31, 2004 and
$1.83 billion as of December 31, 2003. We expect to extend the revolving period of our one-year
revolving variable funding series for another 12 months in November 2005. If the revolving period of
such series is not extended in November 2005, it will begin to amortize and we would expect the
amortization of investor interests held by third parties to take one month, based on current
assumptions and estimates. Similarly, we expect to extend the revolving period for our two-year
revolving variable funding series in August 2006. If the revolving period of such series is not extended,
it will begin to amortize in August 2006 and we would expect the amortization of investor interests held
by third parties to take approximately two months, based on current assumptions and estimates.

Our term securitizations have expected final payment dates ranging from two to five years.
During 2004, PNB completed five term securitizations totaling $2.90 billion issued as two and
three-year fixed and floating rate owner trust notes backed by certificates issued by the Providian
Gateway Master Trust. These term securitizations ranged in amounts from $350.0 million to
$750.0 million, Our term securitizations are expected to amortize over the periods indicated below,
based on current projections and the amounts outstanding as of December 31, 2004.

Amortization of Term Securitizations

Amount Amortizing
Year (dollars in thousands)
2005 e e $ 2,273,017
2006 ... 3,811,534
2007 .o 2,137,845
2008 ...l e e 440,435

The amount funded in our spread accounts may change from time to time, depending on
securitizations outstanding and spread account funding triggers. The level of spread account funding
required by these triggers is generally determined by the performance of the securitized loans, although
certain of our outstanding transactions have a spread account trigger based on PNB’s credit rating. At
December 31, 2004, the funds on deposit in spread accounts totaled $261.5 million, all of which was
required to be funded based on levels resulting from downgrades in PNB’s credit rating in 2001 and
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2002. The spread account funding requirements based on levels triggered by the credit rating
downgrades have been fully met. Currently, there are no additional spread account funding
requirements relating to our credit ratings. If the performance of the loans transferred to our
securitization trust were to deteriorate, spread account funding could be triggered based on the
performance of the securitized loans resulting in an overall increase in spread account funding.

Unsecured Funding Facilities. The following table summarizes the amounts outstanding under
our unsecured funding facilities as of December 31, 2004.

Summary of Unsecured Funding Facilities

December 31, 2004

Effective/
Issue Facility Principa
(dollars in thousands) Date Amount(l) Outstandp ing(2) Maturity
Providian Financial shelf registration(3) .. ... .. 6/98 $ 632,445 $ 1,368,182  Various
Junior subordinated deferrable interest
debentures(4) ........ e 2/97 — 109,281 2/27

(1) Represents remaining unused registered amount on the shelf registration. Funding availability
and/or funding costs and ability to issue securities using the shelf reglstratlon are subject to market
conditions, contractual provisions and other factors.

(2) Amounts presented do not include related discount and/or issuance costs.

(3) Outstanding securities issued under the shelf registration consist of four issuances of convertible
senior notes with earliest possible required principal payment dates beginning in August 2005,
February 2006, May 2008, and March 2011. In addition, we may be required to redeem these notes
prior to their maturity following a change of control or a fundamental change, as defined in the
related indenture supplements. See Note 15 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for further
discussion.

(4) In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 46,
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51" (“FIN 46”),
amounts previously reported as capital securities are no longer included in our consolidated
financial statements. We now report junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures in
long-term borrowings. See Note 15 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for further
discussion.

In March 2004, we issued $277.2 million of 2.75% convertible cash to accreting senior notes
due March 15, 2016. These notes are convertible at the option of the holders at a conversion rate of
58.7941 shares of our common stock for each $1,000 of note principal (an initial conversion price of
$17.01 per share of common stock) if specified conditions are met. The proceeds from this issuance are
available for general corporate purposes, including the repurchase of outstanding debt obligations,
capital contributions or extensions of credit to our banking subsidiary, investments in retained interests
in the securitizations of our banking subsidiary, and other purposes consistent with PNB’s Capital Plan.
After March 15, 2011, we will pay interest at a rate of 1.75% per year and will accrete the principal
amount of the notes at a rate that provides holders with an aggregate annual yield to maturity of
2.75% per year, computed on a semiannual bond equivalent yield basis. In addition, contingent interest
is required to be paid to holders if certain conditions are met. If a fundamental change, such as a
change in control resulting from a change in the ownership of our common stock, as defined in the
related indenture supplement, occurs on or before March 15, 2011, we may also be required to
purchase the notes for cash and pay an additional make whole premium payable in our common stock
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upon the repurchase or conversion of the notes in connection with the fundamental change. We have
the option to redeem all or a portion of the notes for cash at any time on or after March 31, 2011.
Holders may require us to purchase all or a portion of their notes for cash on March 15, 2011 or
March 15, 2014. See Note 15 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of the
notes and our other outstanding long-term borrowings.

In May 2003, we issued $287.5 million of 4.00% convertible senior notes due May 15, 2008.
These notes are convertible at the option of the holders at the conversion rate of 76.8758 shares of our
common stock for each $1,000 of note principal (an initial conversion price of $13.01 per share of
common stock) if specified conditions are met. During the third and fourth quarters of 2004, the
specified market price condition for conversion of our 4.00% convertible senior notes was satisfied, as
our common stock price exceeded the conversion trigger price of $14.31 per share for at least 20
trading days of the last 30 trading days of each quarter. The 4.00% convertible senior notes are
convertible during the quarter following the period in which the conversion trigger price was exceeded.
See Note 15 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

The principal source of funds for the payment of any dividends on our common stock is
dividends received from PNB. However, our Board of Directors has suspended the payment of
quarterly cash dividends on our common stock, and PNB has agreed with its primary regulator that it
will not declare or pay any dividends without such regulator’s consent. In December 2004, PNB sought
and received approval from its primary regulator to make an in-kind dividend to PFC of certain
retained interests, which had a carrying value of $230.6 million, in PNB’s securitizations. If PNB seeks
to make future dividends it must first obtain regulatory consent. There is no assurance that such
consent, if sought, could be obtained. See “Regulatory Matters.”

Investments. We maintain short-term liquidity through federal funds sold and securities
purchased under resale agreements, available-for-sale investment securities, and cash and cash
equivalents. We also maintain a portfolio of high-quality investment securities, such as U.S. government
and agency obligations, mortgage-backed securities, and commercial paper. Investment securities
increased by $2.21 billion during the year to $4.07 billion as of December 31, 2004, with a
corresponding decrease in federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements of
$2.79 billion, from $3.24 billion as of December 31, 2003 to $440.4 million as of December 31, 2004, as
we elected to maintain a larger investment in commercial paper.

Contractual Obligations. The following table summarizes the amounts and maturities of our

contractual obligations as of December 31, 2004. Further discussion of the nature of these obligations is
included in the notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements referenced in the table.
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Summary of Contractual Obligations

Payments Due by Period
Over One Over Three

One Year Year Years
Note Or Through Through  Over Five

(dollars in thousands) Reference  Less  Three Years Five Years Years Total
Direct and brokered deposits .. . . .. 13 $3,033,526 § 4,038,649 $1,470,489 $ 533,568 $ 9,076,232
Deposits without contractual

maturity . ... 13 394,772 — — — 394,772
Short-term borrowings . .......... 14 343,302 — —_ —_ 343,302
Long-term borrowings(1) ......... 15 — — 287,500 1,148,700 1,436,200
Junior subordinated deferrable

interest debentures . ... ........ 15 — — —_ 109,281 109,281
Operating leases ... ............ 12 25,046 14,623 960 — 40,629
Purchase obligations(2) .......... 52,260 89,437 55,473 59,213 256,383
Amortization of securitizations(3) . . . 2,473,017 6,379,379 440,435 — 9,292,831
Commitments to fund civic and

community investments(4) . ...... ‘ 14,069 600 — — 14,669
Other long-term liabilities(5). . . . . .. 4,000 2,000 2,200 1,800 10,000
Total obligations . .............. $6,339,992 $10,524,688 $2,257,057 $1,852,562 $20,974,299

(1) Zero coupon convertible senior notes due February 15, 2021 are presented as principal amount due at
maturity of $871.5 million. ‘

(2) Purchase obligations include amounts related to commitments for various services, including technology
maintenance, consulting, outsourcing and co-marketing agreements.

(3) See “—Funding and Liquidity” for further discussion.

(4) One year or less amount includes $11.8 million of commitments that have no contractual payment dates.
These commitments will be drawn on an as-needed basis and can become payable at any time.

(5) Amounts relate to estimated payments for workers’ compensation claims and are recorded in accrued
expenses and other liabilities.

Certain contractual commitments associated with employee compensation, including executive
compensation and employment agreements, are not presented in the table above. See our Proxy
Statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders for disclosures concerning executive
compensation and executive employment agreements.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Financial Commitments. Significant commitments at December 31, 2004 consisted of
commitments to extend credit card loans, which represent the total unused portions of the lines of
credit available to customers. These amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements as
we do not anticipate that all of our customers will borrow the entire line of credit available to them at
the same time. Further discussion of these commitments is included in Note 11 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Our securitizations represent off-balance sheet arrangements. We use qualifying special-purpose
entities as defined by SFAS No. 140 for our securitizations and account for the transactions as sales.
See “—Securitizations of Loans Receivable” and Note 9 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for
further discussion.
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We enter into derivative financial instruments to reduce the risk of interest rate fluctuations
that may result from differences in repricing characteristics between interest-earning assets and interest-
bearing liabilities. We use interest rate risk management instruments, including interest rate swap and
cap agreements, for this purpose. As of December 31, 2004, we had interest rate swap agreements with
maturities ranging from 2005 to 2016, and we had no interest rate cap agreements. See “—Interest
Rate Sensitivity” and Note 17 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

Guarantees. In January 2003, we entered into a pledge agreement with an insurer with respect
to certain obligations owing to the insurer in connection with two series of the Providian Gateway
Master Trust. One of the series has since been repaid. The amount of the pledged collateral at
December 31, 2004 was $13.6 million, which is held in a deposit account as security for the payment to
the insurer of amounts owing to it in connection with the remaining series.

In addition, we have entered into interest rate swap arrangements for the management of our
interest rate risk exposure. See Note 17 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for further
discussion. In connection with these agreements, we pledged collateral totaling $22.3 million to interest
rate swap counterparties at December 31, 2004.

In August 2002, through a wholly owned limited liability entity, we sold our investment in an
alternative energy plant. In connection with the sale, we guaranteed certain obligations of the limited
liability entity under a purchase and sale agreement. The guarantee covers the limited liability entity’s
obligation to indemnify the purchaser against losses arising out of a breach of the purchase and sale
agreement and failure to repurchase the assets if tax credits are not available to the purchaser. Our
guarantee is capped at the amount of payments made to the limited liability entity at the time of sale,
plus the amounts of additional payments made, and contingent future payments that may be made, to
the limited liability entity and its affiliates arising from fuel production from the plant. At
December 31, 2004, the maximum guaranteed amount was $27.8 million, based on actual payments
made.

We are also a party to and from time to time enter into agreements that contain general
indemnification provisions, primarily in connection with asset sale agreements and service contracts,
including the purchase and sale agreement referred to in the preceding paragraph. We cannot estimate
the potential future impact of these indemnification provisions, since that would require an assessment
of claims not yet made. Based on historical experience, we do not currently expect the risk of loss
under these indemnification provisions to have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or
our results of operations, but we cannot give any assurance that they will not have such an effect.

See Note 11 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of our guarantee
obligations.

Variable Interest Entities. In December 2003, the FASB issued a revision of FIN 46, which
superseded the original guidance issued in January 2003. Under FIN 46, a company is required to
consolidate a variable interest entity (“VIE”) if its interest in the VIE is such that it will absorb a
majority of the VIE’s expected losses and/or receive a majority of the VIE’s expected residual returns,
if any. See Note 10 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

Capital Adequacy
We continue to manage our capital levels with the dual objectives of having sufficient capital to

support the achievement of our business plan and to meet regulatory requirements. During 2004, we
continued to focus our capital planning on meeting or exceeding regulatory minimum levels of capital
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and supporting anticipated growth. We determine our regulatory minimum levels of capital from two
primary sources: capital adequacy regulations that apply generally to banks, and the Capital Plan, which
lays out capital goals for PNB. Certain results for prior periods have been affected by the restatement.
See Note 3 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Under the capital adequacy regulations, the regulatory capital ratios are generally determined
by comparing regulatory capital levels relative to total assets as measured using a specified approach.
Risk weighted assets are derived by adjusting asset levels based on the relative levels of risk as
specified in the capital adequacy regulations. Regulatory capital includes core capital (Tier 1 Capital),
which consists primarily of shareholders’ equity, and total risk-based capital (Tier 1 Capital + Tier 2
Capital), which adds to core capital a portion of the allowance for credit losses. Based on these
definitions of capital, the capital adequacy regulations establish the following capital categories: well
capitalized; adequately capitalized; undercapitalized; significantly undercapitalized; and critically
undercapitalized. The capital ratios that correspond to well capitalized and adequately capitalized
regulatory capital levels are set forth in the following table, along with PNB’s ratios on a Call Report
basis as of December 31, 2004.

Capital Adequacy Guidelines and
PNB Capital Ratios on Call Report Basis

Well- Adequately
PNB  Capitalized Capitalized

Capital Ratio ‘Ca.lculation | Ratios Ratios Ratios

Total risk-based (Tier 1 + Tier 2)/Total risk-based assets 22.72% 10% 8%
Tier 1 Tier 1/Total risk-based assets 20.57% 6% , 4%
Leverage Tier 1/Adjusted average assets 23.67% 5% 4%

PNB’s capital ratios reflect the application of regulatory guidance related to interests retained
by PNB in its securitization transactions. Under the banking regulators’ low-level recourse rule,
risk-based capital must be maintained for assets transferred with recourse, in an amount no greater
than the maximum amount of recourse for which a bank is contractually liable. This rule applies to
transactions accounted for as sales under GAAP in which a bank contractually limits its risk of loss or
recourse exposure to less than the full amount of regulatory risk-based capital that would be required if
the low-level recourse rule did not apply. Low-level recourse transactions include those in which a bank
securitizes assets and uses related retained interests as credit enhancements. PNB is required under this
rule to hold risk-based capital equivalent to its maximum contractual recourse exposure on the assets
transferred, not to exceed the amount of risk-based capital that would be required if the low-level
recourse rule did not apply.

In addition, PNB’s capital ratios reflect the application of banking regulations that, among
other things, require the amount of credit-enhancing interest-only strips receivable that exceed 25% of
Tier 1 Capital (concentration limit) to be deducted from Tier 1 Capital; and requiring
“dollar-for-dollar” risk-based capital (as defined in the regulations) for certain residual interests not
deducted from Tier 1 Capital. As of December 31, 2004, PNB’s interest-only strips receivable
represented 9.57% of Tier 1 Capital, which is below the 25% concentration limit in the regulation.
However, PNB does hold “dollar-for-dollar” risk-based capital against approximately $1.32 billion in
residual interests from its securitizations, which include the accrued interest receivable (“AIR”) related
to securitized loans.
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Under its Capital Plan, PNB’s capital ratios, as determined under the regulatory guidance
discussed above, are required to be adjusted to reflect the application of the Expanded Guidance for
Subprime Lending Programs issued by the federal banking regulators (“Subprime Guidance”) to a
portion of its reported credit card account loans (see PNB Capital Ratios Under PNB Capital Plan
table below). Application of the Subprime Guidance results in higher risk weightings being assigned to
accounts that fall within the scope of the guidance than would otherwise be required by the regulations.
Under the methodology utilized in the Capital Plan for determining risk weightings, PNB has
segmented its standard and middle market portfolios into several categories according to their internal
credit scores and historical and projected charge-off rates. As applied by PNB at December 31, 2004,
this methodology resulted in a weighted average risk weighting of 138% against PNB’s reported
standard and middle market segment loans receivable, which totaled approximately $4.39 billion on
such date. These risk weightings are subject to change depending on conditions in our loan portfolio
and/or changes in regulatory guidance. Managed loans outstanding in the standard and middle
portfolios totaled approximately $15.39 billion as of December 31, 2004.

PNB’s Capital Plan sets capital ratio goals using the regulatory definitions described above.
These include achieving by specified dates, and thereafter maintaining, 10% total risk-based capital
using the methodology under PNB’s Call Reports and using the methodology contemplated by the
Subprime Guidance. The impact of the AIR is factored into these goals (see “—Securitizations of
Loans Receivable” for discussion regarding AIR). PNB achieved all of its capital ratio goals at or
before the specified dates and has thereafter maintained capital ratios higher than the minimums
specified. The following table summarizes PNB’s capital ratios and goals under its Capital Plan.

PNB Capital Ratios
Under PNB Capital Plan

Actual
Capital Plan December 31, December 31,
Goals 2004 2003
As Restated
Total risk-based capital ratio, as reported on PNB Call
Report . ...t 10% 22.72% 21.23%
Total risk-based capital ratio, after application of
Subprime Guidance. . ............ ... .. ... 10% 19.47% 16.94%

PNB’s capital ratios improved during 2003 and 2004 primarily as a result of decreases in levels
of retained subordinated interests due to sales of retained subordinated securityholders’ interests from
PNB to the parent company and to third parties, decreases in the required funding level of certain
spread accounts due to performance improvements in the relevant securitization transactions, and the
merger of PB into PNB.

PNB’s future capital ratios will depend on, among other things, the level of internally
generated capital as well as the level of loan growth, changes in loan mix, and the level of retained
subordinated interests related to our securitization activity. Growth in reported receivables, combined
with changes in the levels and valuations of spread accounts and other retained subordinated interests
related to our securitizations, may result in changes in PNB’s risk-based capital ratios as reported on its
Call Report and after applying the Subprime Guidance. PNB continues to work to reduce the level of
its retained subordinated interests in its securitizations. Subject to ongoing review and updates of its
Capital Plan and the potential impact of evolving regulatory standards, we expect that PNB will
continue to achieve the capital goals in its Capital Plan. PNB will be updating its Capital Plan on a
rolling two-year basis pursuant to the terms of PNB’s written agreement with its primary regulator. We
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expect the updated plan to be consistent with our strategic objectives of measured and profitable
receivables growth and improving credit quality, while continuing our focus on maintaining strong
capital and liquidity.

PNB’s capital requirements are subject to qualitative judgments by its regulators with respect to
components, risk weightings, and other factors. Its banking regulators have the authority to require
PNB to adhere to higher capital requirements than those specified in the regulatory capital rules or its
Capital Plan. This could necessitate increasing capital ratios by various means, including asset sales or
equity issuances. In addition, the strategic initiatives that we have taken, and any that we may take in
the future, could have an impact on PNB’s capital ratios and requirements.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) promulgated under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Company’s internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies and procedures may deteriorate.

We have restated our financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2000 through
2003, the quarters ended March 31, June 30, September 30, and December 31, 2003, and the quarters
ended March 31, June 30, and September 30, 2004, as a result of (i) a change in methodology that
occurred in 2002 relating to the adoption of a method for estimating the fair value of interest-only
strips that was not the preferable method of accounting under Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of
Liabilities,” and (ii) certain assumptions, used in 2000, 2001, and 2002 in estimating the value of
interest-only strips, that were identified as errors in February 2005. More detail on these matters is set
forth below.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria for effective internal control over financial
reporting described in “Internal Control—Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Management has evaluated the circumstances
leading to the restatement, which are described in more detail below, and the impact of the
restatement on such assessment and concluded that the circumstances leading to the restatement
constituted a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting. A material weakness is
a significant deficiency (within the meaning of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
Auditing Standard No. 2 (“A.S. No. 2”)), or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will
not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by employees in the normal course of their assigned
functions. A.S. No. 2 identifies a number of circumstances, including the restatement of previously
issued financial statements to reflect correction of a misstatement, that, because of their likely
significant negative effect on internal control over financial reporting, are at least significant
deficiencies as well as strong indicators that a material weakness exists. Management concluded that
the restatement resulted from a material weakness under these criteria and, therefore, that our internal
control over financial reporting was not effective as of December 31, 2004

The following is a description of the matters leading to the restatement. In connection with the
preparation of our financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004, we determined that
certain errors existed in the prior period financial statements with respect to accounting for
securitizations. The conclusion particularly concerned the discounted cash flow model we used to
estimate the value of interest-only strips, including the method used to estimate the level of principal
collections expected to occur when forecasting the repayment of the securitized receivables in our
securitization trust.

We determined that the preferable method of estimating the level of principal collections
involves applying an estimated payment rate to the initial receivables balance sold in order to derive
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the dollar amount by which the sold receivables balance is estimated to be reduced in future periods.
This corresponds to the contractual rights the securityholders have to a fixed percentage of principal
collections during the period in which principal collections must be applied to repay the investor
securities. As of December 31, 2001, we were using this preferable methodology in that we were
applying an estimated payment rate to the initial receivable balance for purposes of estimating future
reductions in the sold receivables balance. However, the payment rate assumption we applied was
based on experience that included not only principal collections but also collections of finance charges
and fees.

In January 2002, we changed the fair value calculation of the interest-only strips to a method
that applies an estimated payment rate to the declining sold receivables balance, thereby partially
incorporating the effect of the trust revolving periods into the principal collection estimate. This change
had the effect of lengthening the period of time the sold receivables are estimated to be outstanding in
comparison to the preferable method applied in December 2001.

We concluded that under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 20, “Accounting Changes,”
our implementation of the change in modeling methodology in January 2002 was incorrect, because it
constituted a change to a less preferable method of accounting. The change in accounting principle
would have required certain actions to be taken, including obtaining a preferability letter from our
independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, and disclosure of the change. Since
these actions were not taken in 2002, our January 2002 accounting change is being treated as an error
that needs to be corrected by restating previously issued financial statements.

We have also determined that certain other assumptions used in 2000, 2001, and 2002 should
be treated as errors. These were: (i) the incorporation of certain spread account funding provisions for
the first time in January 2002 cash flow projections, rather than in December 2001, when such spread
account funding provisions were triggered; (ii) the use of certain averaging conventions in cash flow
forecasting, which we eliminated in December 2001, and (iii) the use of total payment assumptions for
purposes of forecasting customer loan repayments rather than principal-only payment assumptions,
which we adopted in December 2002.

Qur independent registered public accounting firm has issued a report on our internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004. That report appears on page 80 of this Annual
Report.

o A e

Joseph W. Saunders
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

7 A

Anthony F. Vuoto
Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION TO MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management believes that the following corrective actions taken as a whole, have addressed the
control deficiencies arising from the errors described in Management’s Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting.

First, management has changed its method for estimating the fair value of interest-only strips.
We- now use the preferable method of applying an estimated payment rate to the initial receivables

balance sold in order to derive the dollar amount by which the sold receivables balance is estimated to
be reduced in future periods.

Second, the effects of the errors have been corrected by our restatement of the affected prior
period financial statements included in this Annual Report.

Third, our controls over the selection and application of accounting policies have been
enhanced since the 2000, 2001, and 2002 time frame in which the errors occurred. Senior management
review and approval is required for the selection, adoption, application, and change of all accounting
policies. In the event of an adoption, or a change in the method of application, of a significant
accounting policy, we consult with our independent registered public accounting firm and, in certain
cases, the primary regulator of our banking subsidiary. We also may consult with external experts for
securitization accounting issues. Finally, all significant accounting policies, their application, and their
impact are reviewed regularly with the Audit and Compliance Committee of our Board of Directors.

Fourth, during the fourth quarter of 2004, management implemented a periodic reaffirmation
process for evaluating the applicability and proper application of our existing significant accounting
policies.

Fifth, management has implemented a comprehensive valuation model checklist, which covers
each step in the quarterly valuation process for estimating the fair value of the retained interests we
hold in our securitizations and is designed to identify any prospective significant changes.

Sixth, management has implemented a process whereby significant changes to the method
utilized by our valuation models to estimate the fair value of the retained interests we hold in our
securitizations, including interest-only strips, are required to be reviewed by senior management and
discussed with our independent registered public accounting firm prior to effecting the change.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Providian Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Providian Financial Corporation (the “Company”) did
not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, because of the
effect of the material weakness described in management’s assessment and as more fully described below,
based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Providian Financial
Corporation’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of
the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in
all material respects. Qur audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to
the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements
will not be prevented or detected. The following material weakness related to the Company’s insufficient
controls over the selection and monitoring of the accounting methodology and assumptions used to
estimate the value of interest-only strips receivable has been identified and included in management’s
assessment.
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In connection with the preparation of its financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2004, the Company determined that certain errors existed in its prior period financial statements with
respect to accounting for securitizations. The conclusion particularly concerned the discounted cash flow
model used by the Company to estimate the value of interest-only strips, including the method used to
estimate the level of principal collections expected to occur when forecasting the repayment of the
securitized receivables in the Company’s securitization trust.

The Company determined that the preferable method of estimating the level of principal
collections involves applying an estimated payment rate to the initial receivables balance sold in order to
derive the dollar amount by which the sold receivables balance is estimated to be reduced in future
periods. This corresponds to the contractual rights the securityholders have to a fixed percentage of
principal collections during the period in which principal collections must be applied to repay the investor
securities. As of December 31, 2001, the Company was using this preferable methodology in that it was
applying an estimated payment rate to the initial receivable balance for purposes of estimating future
reductions in the sold receivables balance. However, the payment rate assumption the Company applied
was based on experience that included not only principal collections but also collections of finance charges
and fees.

In January 2002, the Company changed the fair value calculation of the interest-only strips to a
method that applies an estimated payment rate to the declining sold receivables balance, thereby partially
incorporating the effect of the trust revolving periods into the principal collection estimate. This change
had the effect of lengthening the period of time the sold receivables are estimated to be outstanding in
comparison to the preferable method applied in December 2001.

The Company concluded that under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 20, “Accounting
Changes,” the Company’s implementation of the change in modeling methodology in January 2002 was
incorrect, because it constituted a change to a less preferable method of accounting. The change in
accounting principle would have required certain actions to be taken, including obtaining a preferability
letter from the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm and disclosure of the change.
Since these actions were not taken in 2002, the Company’s January 2002 accounting change is being
treated as an error that needs to be corrected by restating previously issued financial statements.

The Company has also determined that certain other assumptions used in 2000, 2001 and 2002
should be treated as errors. These were: (i) the incorporation of certain spread account funding provisions
for the first time in January 2002 cash flow projections, rather than in December 2001, when such spread
account funding provisions were triggered; (ii) the use of certain averaging conventions in cash flow
forecasting, which the Company eliminated in December 2001, and (iii) the use of total payment
assumptions for purposes of forecasting customer loan repayments rather than principal-only payment
assumptions, which the Company adopted in December 2002.

As a result of these errors caused by the material weakness, the Company has restated its financial
statements for the years ended December 31, 2000 through 2003, the quarters ended March 31, June 30,
September 30, and December 31, 2003 and the quarters ended March 31, June 30 and September 30, 2004.
This material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied
in our audit of the 2004 consolidated financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated
March 30, 2005 on those consolidated financial statements.
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In our opinion, management’s assessment that Providian Financial Corporation did not maintain
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, based on the COSO control criteria. Also, in our opinion, because of the effect of the material
weakness described above on the achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, Providian Financial
Corporation has not maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,

2004, based on the COSO control criteria.
ém ¥ MLL?

San Francisco, California
March 30, 2005
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Providian Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2004 2003
As Restated
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents ............. .. ... ... ... ...... § 272397 § 544,554
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements . . 440,351 3,235,189
Investment securities:

Available-for-sale, at market value (amortized cost of $4,083,634 at

December 31, 2004 and $1,880,107 at December 31, 2003) ........ 4,072,695 1,859,150
Loans receivable . . ... v i 7,522,401 6,280,957

Less allowance for creditlosses . . ...... ... ... ... .. ... .... (599,703) (625,886)
Loans receivable, net . . . ... . .. 6,922,698 5,655,071
Due from securitizations. . . . ... ... .. .. i e 2,266,314 2,331,273
Deferred taxes . . ... ..o i 30,185 242,163
Premises and equipment, net . ........... .. .. i, 52,640 84,198
Interest receivable . . . .. . o i e 57,807 44,850
L0 14573 g 111 1~ 229,452 249,867

Total assets . o .o ottt . $14,344,539  $14,246,315
Liabilities
Deposits:
Non-interest bearing . .. ..... vt i $ 53398 $ 63,016
Interest bearing . ... ..... .ottt 9,417,606 10,038,041
9,471,004 10,101,057
Short-term DOITOWINES . . . o ot ittt e e e e e e 342,080 108,828
Long-term bOITOWINGS . . . oo v i it e e e e 1,119,278 1,163,521
Accrued expenses and other liabilities . . ............ .. ... .. ... 702,648 576,492
Total liabilities. . . ... o i 11,635,010 11,949,898
Shareholders’ Equity
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share (authorized: 800,000,000

shares; issued: December 31, 2004—293,980,878 shares;

December 31, 2003—290,753,031 shares) ..................... 2,940 2,908
Retained earnings . ....... ... . i 2,735,223 2,321,414
Cumulative other comprehensive income . .. .................... (6,833) (12,480)
Common stock held in treasury—at cost (December 31, 2004—479,464

shares; December 31, 2003—305,871 shares). . ................. (21,801) (15,425)

Total shareholders’ equity .. ........... . ... ... ... ...... 2,709,529 2,296,417
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity .................... $14,344,539  $14,246,315

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Providian Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2004 2003 2002
As Restated  As Restated
Interest Income
I o - $ 860,413 $ 950,758 $ 1,490,258
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements . 17,496 44,198 37,473
L 11 =2 116,825 97,780 154,754
Total interest inCOmE . . . . . oot i e e e 994,734 1,092,736 1,682,485
Interest Expense
DIEPOSIES <« o v v v ettt e 427,822 581,551 729,294
BOITOWINGS . o . o v ot vttt e e et e s 67,834 52,239 42,700
Total interest eXPense . .. ... ..ottt iii i 495,656 633,790 771,994
Net Interest INCOME . . . . v v v it it et e it et i ieeeens 499,078 458,946 910,491
Provision for credit 10SSes . . . . v v v v v i e e e e - 517,295 622,344 1,291,738
Net interest loss after provision for credit losses . ............ (18,217) (163,398) (381,247)
Non-Interest Income
Servicing and securitization . .. ... .. ... .., 1,034,827 900,278 571,776
Credit product fee income . . .. ... ... ... . e 555,160 759,642 1,152,041
Other. . .. e 15,294 66,012 604,398
1,605,281 1,725,932 2,328,215
Non-Interest Expense
Salaries and employee benefits. . . ....... ... ... .. oo L, 287,186 359,696 527,960
Solicitation and advertising . ......... .. .. .. i 232,365 193,652 404,872
Occupancy, furniture, and equipment ... ................... 107,157 121,921 222,812
Data processing and communication . . .. ....... ... 109,850 124,014 165,504
Other . ... e e 309,779 401,718 487,734
1,046,337 1,201,001 1,808,882
Income from continuing operations before income taxes . ... .. .. 540,727 361,533 138,086
INCOME tAX €XPEMSE .+ « o v o v vt it a i ie e e e 159,483 142,179 25,585
Income from continuing operations .. ................ ... ... 381,244 219,354 112,501
Income from discontinued operations, net-of-taxes . . ... .......... — — 67,156
NetIncome .......covinvunnnnnne... e $ 381244 § 219354 § 179,657
Earnings per common share—basic
Income from continuing operations . ........................ $ 132 % 076 § 0.39
Income from discontinued operations, net-of-taxes . .. ............ — —_ 0.24
Earnings per common share—basic . .. ................... $ 132§ 076 $ 0.63
Earnings per common share—assuming dilution
Income from continuing operations . ........................ $ 119 § 074 $ 0.39
Income from discontinued operations, net-of-taxes . . .. ........... — — 0.23
_ Earnings per common share—assuming dilution ............. $ 119 3§ 074 % 0.62
Weighted average common shares outstanding—basic (000) ... .... .. 288,905 287,125 285,001
Weighted average common shares outstanding—assuming dilution (000) . . 329,702 303,932 289,042

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
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Providian Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

Cumulative
Additional Other Common
Common Paid-In  Retained Comprehensive Stock Held
(dollars in thousands) Stock Capital  Earnings Income In Treasury  Total
Balance at December 31, 2001, as previously
reported . . ... ... ... $2,862 $ —  $1,971,359 $ 9,807 $(76,517) $1,907,511
Cumulative effect of prior period adjustments (See
Note3) .. — — (13,692) — — (13,692)
Balance at December 31, 2001, as restated . . . . . . . $2,862 $ —  $1,957,667 $ 9,807 $(76,517) $1,893,819
Comprehensive income:
Net Income, asrestated . .. .............. 179,657 179,657
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on securities, net
of income tax benefit of $647 .. .. ... ... .. (990) (990)
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on foreign
currency translation adjustments, net of income
tax expense of $700 . . ... ... ... 1,071 1,071
Total comprehensive income, as restated . . ... ... 179,738
Purchase of 705,749 common shares for treasury . . . (3,635) (3,635)
Exercise of stock options and other awards . ... .. (16,593) 13,435 5,611 2,453
Issuance of restricted and unrestricted stock less
forfeited shares . ................ .. ... 47 15,720 (2,144) 13,623
Deferred compensation related to grant of restricted
and unrestricted stock less amortization
Of $11,977 .o et (1,646) (1,646)
Net tax effect from employee stock plans. .. .. ... 2,519 2,519
Balance at December 31, 2002, as restated . . . . . . . $2909 § —  $2,150,759 $ 9,888 $(76,685) $2,086,871
Comprehensive income:
Net Income, asrestated . .. .............. 219,354 219,354
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on securities, net
of income tax benefit of $14,604 . ... ... ... (22,368) (22,368)
Total comprehensive income, as restated . .. ... .. 196,986
Purchase of 470,091 common shares for treasury . . . (4,188) (4,188)
Exercise of stock options and other awards . ... .. 18,613 (48,699) 36,577 6,491
Issuance of restricted and unrestricted stock less
forfeited shares .. ...... ... ... ... ...... (1) (23851 28,871 5,019
Deferred compensation related to grant of restricted
and unrestricted stock less amortization of $8,116 . 3,098 3,098
Net tax effect from employee stock plans. . . ... .. 2,140 2,140
Balance at December 31, 2003, as restated . . . . ... $2908 § —  $2,321,414 $(12,480) $(15,425) $2,296417
Comprehensive income:
Netlncome . .. ...... ... 381,244 381,244
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on securities, net
of income tax expense of $4371 .. ... ... .. 5,647 5,647
Total comprehensive income . . ... ........... 386,891
Purchase of 159,159 common shares for treasury . . . (2,240) (2,240)
Exercise of stock options and other awards . ... .. 18 (11,939) 22,589 3,161 13,829
Issuance of restricted and unrestricted stock less
forfeited shares .. .................... 14 18,754 9,976 (7,297) 21,447
Deferred compensation related to grant of restricted
and unrestricted stock less amortization of $8,962 . (12,485) (12,485)
Net tax effect from employee stock plans. .. ..... 5,670 5,670
Balance at December 31,2004 - . . . ... ... ..... $2940 $ —  $2,735,223 $ (6,833) $(21,801) $2,709,529

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Providian Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
As Restated  As Restated

Operating Activities

Net INCOME . . . . vttt e e e e $ 381,244 $ 219,354 $ 179,657
Income from discontinued operation, net-of-taxes. . . . ... ............ — — (67,156)
Income from continuing Operations. . . . .............ouen ... 381,244 219,354 112,501

Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing operations to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Provision for credit 108ses . . . . . . . ... e e 517,295 622,344 1,291,738

Depreciation. and amortization of premises and equipment .. ............ 34,920 44,808 80,016

Amortization of net loan acquisition costs . . . . ... ... Lo o oL 21,547 22,664 37,656

Amortization of prepaid brokerfees ... ..... ... . .. o oo oo 25,062 21,614 23,586

Amortization of deferred compensation related to restricted and unrestricted
SEOCK .« ot e 8,962 8,116 11,977

Decrease in deferred income tax benefit . ... . ............ ... .. ... 207,655 292,408 517,306

(Increase) decrease in interest receivable. . ... ... ..., ... ... .. . ... (12,957) 15,991 10,277

Loss on sale of First Select receivables . . .. .......... .. ... .. ..... — — 41,935

Loss on sale of higher risk loan portfalio ......................... — — 407,838

Gain from sale of interests in Providian Master Trust . . . . .. ............ — — (421,578)

Net (increase) decrease inotherassets . . .............. ... ... .... (1,204) 315,805 (296,280)

Net increase {decrease) in accrued expenses and other liabilities . . . . .. .. ... 121,934 (234,539) (527,223)

Net cash provided by operating activities . . . ... ................. 1,304,458 1,328,565 1,289,749
Investing Activities

Net cash (used for) from loan originations and principal collections on loans
receivable . . ... e e (2,154,291) 519,301 2,051,632

Net increase (decrease) in securitized loans . .. .............. ... ... 369,815 (909,773) (1,143,620)

Net proceeds from sale of interests in Providian Master Trust .. .......... — 19,899 2,771,559

Net proceeds from sale of higher risk loan portfolio . ................. — — 1,222,107

Net proceeds from sale of First Select receivables . .. . ................ — — 96,515

Decrease (increase) in due from securitizations. . . . ... ... ............ 64,959 1,308,159 (1,772,153)

Purchases of available-for-sale investment securities . . . . .. ... .......... (12,786,018)  (3,898,047) (6,541,404)

Proceeds from maturities and sales of available-for-sale investment securities . . . 10,582,443 3,832,423 6,014,977

Decrease (increase) in federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale
agreements or similar arrangements . .. .. ... .. L e 2,794,838 365,811 (1,990,000)

Net purchases of premises and equipment . . . . ... ... ... . i (3,736) (21,470) (66)

Net cash (used) provided by investing activities . . . .. ... ........... (1,131,990) 1,216,303 715,547
Financing Activities

Netdecrease indeposits . . . .. ..ot i e (636,042)  (2,556,085) (2,630,228)

Proceeds from issuance of term federalfunds . . . ... ................. — — 405,673

Repayment of term federal funds . . .. ......... ... ... ... ... ... — — (417,335)

Repayment of short-term borrowings ... ... ........ . .. ... (108,828) (91,549) (13,950)

Proceeds from long-term borrowings . ........... ... . .. ... 288,656 300,740 16,778

Repayment of long-term borrowings. . . .. ... ... ... ... . i e — — (98,549)

Purchase of treasury stock . . . . ... ... L (2,240) (4,188) (3,635)

Proceeds from exercise of stock options . . .. ......... .. ... ... .. ... 13,829 6,491 2,453

Net cash used by financing activities. . . . ... ....... ... ... ... ... (444,625)  (2,344,591) (2,738,793)

Net cash provided by discontinued operations. . . .. ............... — — 628,188
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents . . . ... ............ (272,157) 200,277 (105,309)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period . . .. ... ............... 544,554 344,277 449,586
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period . . ... .................... $ 272397 § 544,554 $ 344277
Supplemental Disclosures
Interest expense paid . . ...t $ 507176 § 642989 $ 837,905
Income tax (received) paid . . . .. ... .. ... L L $ (246,790) $ (428,406) $ (22,646)
Income tax benefit from stock options exercised . ..................... $ 5670 § 2,140 % 2,519

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Providian Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2004 and 2003

Note 1. Organization and Basis of Presentation

Providian Financial Corporation (the “Company”) is a corporation incorporated under the laws
of Delaware. Through its wholly owned banking subsidiary, Providian National Bank (“PNB”), the
Company offers credit card and deposit products throughout the United States. The Company markets
consumer loans and deposits using distribution channels such as mail, telephone, and the Internet.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”), which require management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. These estimates are based on information available as of the date of the
consolidated financial statements. Therefore, actual results could differ from these estimates. The
consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2000 to December 31, 2003 and
our quarterly financial statements for 2003 and the first three quarters of 2004 have been restated. All
information in the notes to the consolidated financial statements affected by the restatement give effect
to the restatement. See Note 3 to Consolidated Financial Statements, “Restatement of Prior Periods
Presented.” In the opinion of management, all adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation
of the results for the periods presented have been included. All such adjustments are of a normal,
recurring nature. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation. For purposes of comparability, certain prior period amounts have been reclassified.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and highly liquid
short-term investments which are readily convertible into cash. At December 31, 2004, $101.2 million of
the Company’s cash and cash equivalents were non-interest earning. The Company is required to
maintain reserves consisting of cash and cash equivalents with the Federal Reserve Bank based on a
percentage of its deposit liabilities. At December 31, 2004, cash and cash equivalents included
approximately $53.2 million of restricted cash that the Company pledged as collateral and placed in
deposit accounts related to certain securitization and derivative activity. The restricted cash primarily
relates to $22.3 million of pledged collateral to counterparties of interest rate swap arrangements
entered into by the Company and $13.6 million of collateral pledged by the Company to an insurer for
certain obligations owing to the insurer related to one series of the Providian Gateway Master Trust

with an expected final payment date of September 15, 2005. See Note 11 to Consolidated Financial
Statements for further discussion.

Investment securities. Investment securities available-for-sale consist primarily of mortgage-
backed securities and United States Treasury and federal agency bonds and are reported at market
value, with unrealized gains and losses, net-of-taxes, reported as a component of cumulative other
comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity. The estimated market value is based on market
quotations. Realized gains and losses, including other-than-temporary impairments related to
investment securities, are determined using specific identification and are reported in non-interest
income—other in the Company’s consolidated statements of income. Investment security premium
amortization and discount accretion are measured using the interest method through the maturity date
of the securities. Investment securities are regularly reviewed for impairment based on criteria that
include the extent to which cost exceeds market value, the duration of the market decline, the potential
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for recovery of unrealized losses, and the financial health and creditworthiness of the issuer of the
investment security.

Loans held for securitization or sale. Loans held for securitization or sale are carried at the
lower of aggregate cost or market value and include loans that the Company intends to securitize or
sell within three months and otherwise meet the criteria for classification as held for securitization or
sale. The Company considers the held for sale classification criteria prescribed by Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets,” such as the approval and commitment by management to a plan to securitize or sell the assets,
in determining when loans are classified as held for securitization or sale. As of December 31, 2004
and 2003, the Company had no loans classified as loans held for securitization or sale.

Securitizations. The Company sells loans receivable in securitization transactions, which are
reported in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 140, “Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities—a Replacement of FASB
Statement No. 125” (“SFAS No. 140”). In a securitization, the Company transfers ownership of a pool
of loans receivable to an entity created for the securitization, generally a trust, and removes those loans
receivable from its consolidated statement of financial condition. The receivables transferred to the
trust consist of loan principal (credit card purchases and cash advances) and accrued interest and fees.
The trust is a qualifying special-purpose entity and is not consolidated in the Company’s financial
statements. See Note 9 to Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of the Company’s
securitizations.

Allowance for credit losses. The loans receivable portfolio is regularly reviewed in order to
maintain an allowance for credit losses at a level that, in management’s judgment, is adequate to
absorb estimated net credit losses inherent in the existing loans receivable. The amount of the
allowance is determined based on an analysis of historical quantitative risk factors. During 2004, the
Company enhanced its estimation process by including segmentation that more prominently emphasize
customer risk scores and age of accounts, as well as other risk factors, such as Fair Isaac Corporation
(FICO®) credit scores. Additionally, the Company continues to use other historical quantitative risk
factors in its analysis such as delinquency roll rates, principal credit loss rates, bankruptcies, and other
customer characteristics. These factors are used to estimate the likelihood that a loan receivable will
charge off. When evaluating the adequacy of this quantitative analysis, management also takes into
account environmental credit risk factors affecting the portfolio’s credit performance. These include
such factors as the impact of general economic conditions on the borrower’s ability to pay, trends in
loan portfolio volume, seasoning, geographic concentrations, and the impact of modifications to loan
review and underwriting procedures on the credit quality of the loans receivable portfolio. Adjustments
to the allowance are made as appropriate based on this evaluation. The Company also tests the
adequacy of its allowance by comparing the ratio of the allowance for credit losses to total loans
receivable (coverage ratio) to its actual loss experience and to that of other credit card lenders. The
use of estimates is inherent in the Company’s assessment of the adequacy of the allowance for credit
losses, and as a result significant changes in these estimates could impact the adequacy of the allowance
for credit losses.

The Company recognizes credit losses by charging off the principal balance no later than the
last day of the calendar month in which the account becomes 180 days past due under the terms of the
account agreement. Loans that have been restructured under the Company’s consumer debt
management program are charged off no later than 120 days or 180 days after they become
contractually past due, depending on an account’s delinquency status at the time it entered the
consumer debt management program and its subsequent payment history. The Company recognizes
charge-offs for accounts of bankrupt and deceased customers generally within 30 days after notification
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of bankruptcy and 60 days after verification of death. The Company records current period principal
recoveries on previously charged-off loans and proceeds from the sale of previously charged-off loans
as a reduction to net credit losses.

Interest income on loans. Interest income on loans is recognized based on the principal
amount outstanding in accordance with the terms of the applicable account agreement. Interest income
that has been billed to the customer is included in loans receivable or due from securitizations on the
Company’s consolidated statements of financial condition. Accrued interest income that has not yet
been billed to the customer is reported as interest receivable or in due from securitizations on the
Company’s consolidated statements of financial condition. Since 2002, the Company has applied a
suppression methodology for recognizing interest income. Under the suppression methodology, the
interest accrued on loans that the Company estimates will not be collected is not recognized as interest
income or servicing and securitization income on the Company’s consolidated statement of income and
is not included in loans receivable, interest receivable, or due from securitizations on the Company’s
statement of financial condition. In addition, interest income is reduced by the reversal of accrued
interest included in loans receivable, interest receivable, and due from securitizations (to the extent not
previously suppressed) when the principal amount of a loan is charged off.

Credit product fee income. Credit product fee income includes performance fees (late,
overlimit and returned check charges), annual membership fees, cash advance fees, and balance
transfer fees, which are assessed in accordance with the terms of the customer’s account agreement.
Annual membership revenue and balance transfer fee revenue are recognized ratably over the customer
privilege period, which is currently one year. Performance fees and cash advance fees are recognized
when earned.

Credit product fee income also includes revenue from cardholder service products. Cardholder
service product revenue that is billed annually is recognized ratably over the customer privilege period.
Cardholder service product revenue that is billed monthly is recognized in the month it is billed. Credit
product fee income also includes interchange fees received from bankcard associations, which are based
on the purchase activity of the Company’s credit card customers.

Consistent with the suppression methodology of recognizing interest income on loans, credit
product fees that the Company estimates will not be collected are not recognized as credit product fee
income or servicing and securitization income on the Company’s consolidated statement of income and
are not included in loans receivable or due from securitizations on the Company’s consolidated
statement of financial condition. In addition, fee income is reduced by the reversal of accrued fees
included in loans receivable and due from securitizations (to the extent not previously suppressed)
when the principal amount of a loan is charged off.

Credit card fraud losses. The Company experiences fraud losses from the unauthorized use of
credit cards (including credit cards obtained through fraudulent applications). Transactions suspected of
being fraudulent are charged to non-interest expense after an investigation period of up to 90 days.

Premises and equipment. Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense are computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the related assets and, for leasehold
improvements, over the lesser of the remaining term of the leased facility or the estimated useful life of
the improvements. Buildings are depreciated over a useful life of 30 years, and equipment and
furniture are depreciated over a useful life ranging from 3 to 10 years. Maintenance and repairs are
included in non-interest expense, while the cost of improvements is capitalized.




Derivative financial instruments. To manage and reduce interest rate risk, the Company
measures exposure to interest rate changes by analyzing various increasing and decreasing interest rate
scenarios. Based on this analysis, the Company may seek to mitigate this exposure by entering into
interest rate derivative contracts, including interest rate swap and cap agreements, with third parties.
Interest rate swap agreements have the effect of converting assets or liabilities from a fixed rate to a
floating rate or from a floating rate to a fixed rate. Interest rate cap agreements have the effect of
limiting the maximum interest rates payable on the corresponding portions of the Company’s funding.
Payments made or received under interest rate derivative contracts are recorded as a component of net
interest income. The Company does not trade its derivative positions or use derivatives to speculate on
interest rate movements.

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended (“SFAS No. 133”), the Company
designates and documents each derivative contract as one of the following at the time the contract is
executed: a hedge of a recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized firm commitment (a fair value
hedge); a hedge of a forecasted transaction or of the variability of cash flows to be received or paid
related to a recognized asset or liability (a cash flow hedge); a hedge of a net investment in a foreign
operation (a net investment hedge); or a derivative instrument not designated as a hedging instrument
whose change in fair value is recognized as a benefit for protection against changing interest rates (an
undesignated hedge).

For fair value hedges, both the effective and ineffective portions of the change in the fair value
of the derivative, together with the change in fair value of the hedged item that is attributable to the
hedged risk, are reported in earnings. The effective portion of a change in fair value of a fair value
hedge is recognized on the same line in the consolidated statements of income as the hedged item. The
ineffective portion of a change in fair value of a fair value hedge is recognized in non-interest
income—other. If a hedge designation is discontinued, previous adjustments to the carrying value of the
hedged item are recognized in earnings to match the earnings recognition pattern of the hedged item.
If the underlying item being hedged is removed from hedge designation, the derivative will
subsequently be accounted for as an undesignated hedge instrument. During 2004 and 2003, all of the
Company’s derivatives contracts were designated as fair value hedges.

The effective portion of the change in the fair value of a derivative that is designated as a cash
flow hedge is reported in cumulative other comprehensive income. When the cash flows associated with
the hedged item are realized, the gain or loss included in cumulative other comprehensive income is
recognized on the same line in the consolidated statements of income as the hedged item. The
ineffective portion of a change in fair value of a cash flow hedge is reported in non-interest income—
other. During 2004 and 2003, the Company did not designate any derivatives as cash flow hedges.

The effective portion of the change in the fair value of a derivative used as a net investment
hedge of a foreign operation is reported in cumulative other comprehensive income as a foreign
currency translation adjustment. The ineffective portion of the change in the fair value of a net
investment hedge is reported in non-interest income—other. During 2004 and 2003, the Company did
not have any derivatives designated as a net investment hedge of a foreign operation.

For undesignated hedges, changes in fair value are reported in current earnings in non-interest
income—other.

The Company documents its hedge relationships, including identification of the hedging
instruments and the hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and strategies for
undertaking the hedge transaction at the time the derivative contract is executed. Derivatives are




reported in the consolidated statements of financial condition at fair value in other assets and accrued
expenses and other liabilities. The fair value of the Company’s derivative financial instruments is
represented by the estimated unrealized gains or losses as determined by quoted market prices or
dealer quotes and generally approximates the amounts the Company would receive or pay to terminate
the instruments at the reporting date.

Both at inception and at least quarterly thereafter, the Company assesses whether the
derivatives used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in either the fair value
or cash flows of the hedged item. If it is determined that a derivative has ceased to be a highly
effective hedge, the Company will discontinue hedge accounting for such transaction.

Solicitation and advertising and deferred acquisition cost. Solicitation and advertising costs are
expensed as incurred. The Company capitalizes only the direct loan origination costs associated with
successful account acquisition efforts. Direct loan origination costs are deferred and amortized against
non-interest income——credit product fee income on a straight-line basis over the customer privilege
period, which is currently one year. The Company began classifying the amortization of capitalized loan
origination costs as a reduction to credit product fee income effective January 1, 2004. Previously,
amortized loan origination costs were included in non-interest expense—solicitation and advertising. As
outlined below in “Credit card partnership agreements,” payments made to partners for new accounts
acquired and activated are accounted for as incremental direct costs of loan origination and are
deferred and amortized over the customer privilege period. Deferred loan origination costs, which are
included in other assets, were $14.1 million and $10.7 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Credit card partnership agreements. The Company has entered into various credit card
partnership agreements that provide the Company with arrangements to offer and issue credit cards
directly to affinity groups and through co-branding relationships to consumers. Payments due to these
partners for direct acquisition costs and other costs are based on such factors as the number of
activated accounts, revenue sharing, and customer rewards.

Payments due to partners for new accounts acquired and activated represent direct loan
origination costs and are deferred and amortized against non-interest income—redit product fee
income on a straight-line basis over the customer privilege period, which is currently one year.
Payments due to partners for sharing credit card revenue are accrued as earned and are reflected as a
reduction of revenue. Revenue sharing that is based on credit card purchases is deducted from credit
product fee income. Revenue sharing that is based on loans receivable is deducted from interest
income.

Advance payments made to the partners for new account activation or revenue sharing are
capitalized and subsequently recognized as the payments are earned by the partner.

Rewards Program. Cardholders may earn rewards in the form of points, rebates, and in-kind
rewards based on eligible charges, balances, or account activity. Cardholders may redeem points for a
variety of goods and services. Rewards in the form of rebates provide for a specified cash amount to be
paid or credited to cardholders based on levels of eligible charges or balances. In-kind rewards provide
for interest rate and fee reductions or statement credits. The Company accrues estimated costs
associated with the rewards program at levels that reflect estimated redemptions as eligible charges are
incurred, balances are carried, or other actions that give rise to rewards are taken by the cardholder.
The costs associated with the rewards program are recorded as a reduction to non-interest income—
credit product fee income.



Income taxes. Income taxes are accounted for using the liability method, as prescribed by
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under the
liability method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized based on differences between the
carrying amounts for financial reporting and the tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured
using the tax rates currently in effect or expected to be in effect when the differences are settled or
realized.

Stock-based employee compensation. The Company has elected to account for its stock-based
employee compensation plans in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB Opinion No. 25”), and related interpretations, as
permitted by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for Stock Based
Compensation” (“SFAS No. 123”). Accordingly, because the exercise price of the Company’s employee
stock options is the fair market value of the underlying stock on the date of grant, the Company
recognizes no compensation expense at the time of the grant. For grants of restricted shares of
common stock, the market value of restricted shares at the date of grant is amortized over the vesting
period and classified as non-interest expense. For grants of unrestricted shares of common stock, the
market value of unrestricted shares at the date of grant is recognized in the period the shares were
granted and classified as non-interest expense. In addition, the Company does not recognize
compensation expense for its employee stock purchase plan since it qualifies as a non-compensatory
plan under APB Opinion No. 25.

The following table reflects, for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, the stock-
based employee compensation costs arising out of the restricted and unrestricted stock grants that are
included in reported net income. It also reflects on a pro forma basis the Company’s net income and
earnings per common share with and without dilution, as if compensation costs for stock options
(including rights to purchase common stock under the Company’s employee stock purchase plan) had
been recorded based on the fair value at the date of grant under the Company’s stock-based
compensation plans, consistent with the provisions of SFAS No. 123. The pro forma compensation
expense reflects the fair value of the stock options amortized to expense over the vesting period of the
grant, which is generally three years. o
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Stock-Based Employee Compensation Cost and
Pro Forma Net Income and Earnings Per Common Share

' " Year ended December 31,
(dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2004 2003 2002
o As Restated As Restated

Restricted and unrestricted stock amortization, net-of-taxes,

included in net income, as reported(1) ................ $ 5598 $ 4910 §$ 7,246
Net income, asreported .. ... ... ... .. i, 381,244 219,354 179,657
Deduct: Pro forma stock-based employee compensation

expense determined under fair value method,

net-of-taxes(2)(3)(4) . . .o oo 29,517 23,406 39,973
Pro forma net income(1) . ... ... ... ... ... $351,727 § 195948 $ 139,684
Net income per common share:

As reported—basic . ... $ 132 8 076 $ 0.63

As reported—assuming dilution(5) ................... $ 119 § 074 § 0.62
Net income per common share:

Pro forma—basic. ... ......v i $ 122§ 0.68 $ 0.49

Pro forma—assuming dilution(5) .................... $ 110 $ 0.66 $ 0.49

(1) The Company uses the straight-line method for recognizing compensation cost for fixed awards
with pro rata vesting.

(2) The pro forma stock-based employee compensation expenses include the effects of an expense
reduction for unvested stock options that have been forfeited.

(3) The pro forma stock-based employee compensation expense for the year ended December 31, 2004
reflects the modification in the fourth quarter of 2003 of the methodology used in estimating
expected volatility of the Company’s stock price. This modification resuited in the reduction of the
pro forma stock-based employee compensation expense by $1.4 million, net-of-taxes, for the year
ended December 31, 2004. See discussion below for further information regarding this
modification. _ ,

(4) Included in the $29.5 million of 2004 pro forma stock-based employee compensation expense is
$12.9 million of pro forma compensation associated with previously granted stock options held by
the Company’s former Chief Executive Officer that were unvested at the time of his termination in
November 2001. In November 2004, the Company settled a claim in arbitration concerning
severance and other benefits alleged to be due under the former Chief Executive Officer’s
employment agreement. Under the settlement, all outstanding stock options held by him at the
time of his termination were vested and are exercisable through their original expiration dates in
accordance with the terms of the employment agreement. The pro forma compensation expense on
these previously granted stock options, which is based on the Black-Scholes valuation of these
options as computed at the time of the option grants, had not been included in pro forma
compensation expense for prior periods pending resolution of the claim. The impact of the
settlement on 2004 pro forma diluted earnings per share is $0.04 per common share.

(5) Amounts reflect the effect of adopting EITF Issue No. 04-8, “The Effect of Contingently
Convertible Instruments on Diluted Earnings per Share” (“EITF 04-8”) in the third quarter of
2004. See Note 23 to Consolidated Financial Statements.




The fair values of the stock options granted under the Company’s stock incentive plans and the
right to purchase common stock under the employee stock purchase plan were estimated at the grant
date or offering date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and based on weighted average
assumptions for the risk-free interest rate, expected dividend yield, expected volatility, and expected
stock option life. The Black-Scholes option pricing model was developed for use in estimating the fair
value of traded options, which have no vesting restrictions, are fully transferable, and typically have
shorter terms. In addition, the Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input of subjective
assumptions, including the option’s expected life and the expected price volatility of the underlying
stock. Because the Company’s employee stock options and employee stock purchase plan offerings have
characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in the
subjective model assumptions can materially affect the estimate, the Black-Scholes option pricing model
may not provide a reliable measure of the fair value of the Company’s employee stock options and
employee stock purchase plan offerings.

The following table sets forth the Black-Scholes modeling assumptions used for option grants
issued and employee stock purchase plan offerings made during the years ended December 31, 2004
and 2003.

Black-Scholes Modeling Assumptions

For Offerings Under
Employee Stock

For Options Granted Purchase Plan
Year ended December 31, Year ended December 31,
2004 2003 2004 2003
Weighted Average
Assumptions

Risk-free interest rate ...... 2.63% 1.92% 1.56% 1.15%
Expected volatility . . . ...... 46% 93% 42% 110%
Expected dividend yield . . . .. — — — —_
Expected life (in years) ... .. 4 4 1 1

Using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, the weighted average fair values of the
employee stock options granted by the Company during 2004 and 2003 were estimated to be $5.09 and
$4.89 per common share. The weighted average fair values of the rights to purchase stock under the
Company’s employee stock purchase plan during 2004 and 2003 were estimated to be $3.85 and $3.62
per common share. The exercise price of each stock option is based on the market price of the
Company’s common stock on the date of the grant. Expiration dates range from August 9, 2005 to
October 25, 2014 for options outstanding at December 31, 2004.

Expected volatility represents management’s estimate of the Company’s stock price changes
expected to occur over the estimated life of the stock options and stock offerings. Prior to the fourth
quarter of 2003, expected volatility was estimated based on the unadjusted histarical volatility of the
Company’s common stock over a fixed period. During the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company
modified its methodology for estimating expected volatility. The modification was based on the
Company’s assessment that past historical volatility was not indicative of expected future experience
because it did not reflect the significant changes in the Company’s business implemented in 2001 and
2002. The expected volatility is now estimated giving consideration to the expected life of stock options
and the historical volatility of the price of the Company’s common stock as adjusted for unusual,
company-specific fluctuations in the Company’s stock price. Management believes that the modified
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methodology provides a better indicator of the expected volatility. For options granted during 2004, the
- modified methodology had the effect of reducing volatility from 90% to 46% for the year ended
December 31, 2004. This resulted in an aggregate fair value reduction for such options of $7.6 million,
which resulted in a fair value for such options that was 41% lower than if expected volatility had been
based on unadjusted historical volatility. This modification did not result in a material impact to the
volatility for the year ended December 31, 2003, :

Note 3. Restatement of Prior Periods Presented

In February 2005, the Company determined that it would restate its consolidated financial
statements for the years ended December 31, 2000 to December 31, 2003 and each of the quarters of
2003 and the first three quarters of 2004. The determination was made to restate these financial
statements in connection with the Company’s analysis and resulting correction of the methodology and
assumptions relating to the valuation of the Company’s interest-only strips.

In connection with the preparation of its financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2004, the Company determined that certain errors existed in the prior period financial statements with
respect to accounting for securitizations. The conclusion particularly concerned the discounted cash
flow model used by the Company to estimate the value of interest-only strips, including the method
used to estimate the level of principal collections expected to occur when forecasting the repayment of
the securitized receivables in the Company’s securitization trust.

The Company determined that the preferable method of estimating the level of principal
collections involves applying an estimated payment rate to the initial receivables balance sold in order
to derive the dollar amount by which the sold receivables balance is estimated to be reduced in future
periods. This corresponds to the contractual rights the securityholders have to a fixed percentage of
principal collections during the period in which principal collections must be applied to repay the
investor securities. As of December 31, 2001, the Company was using this preferable methodology in
that it was applying an estimated payment rate to the initial receivable balance for purposes of
estimating future reductions in the sold receivables balance. However, the payment rate assumption the
Company applied was based on experience that included not only principal collections but also
collections of finance charges and fees.

In January 2002, the Company changed the fair value calculation of the interest-only strips to a
method that applies an estimated payment rate to the declining sold receivables balance, thereby
partially incorporating the effect of the trust revolving periods into the principal collection estimate.
This change had the effect of lengthening the period of time the sold receivables are estimated to be
outstanding in comparison to the preferable method applied in December 2001. In isolation, this
change significantly increased the total excess servicing assumed to occur over time as well as the
resulting fair value of the interest-only strips receivable.

The Company concluded that under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 20, “Accounting
Changes,” the Company’s implementation of the change in its modeling methodology in January 2002
was incorrect, because it constituted a change to a less preferable method of accounting. The change in
accounting principle would have required certain actions to be taken, including obtaining a preferability
letter from the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, and
disclosure of the change. Since these actions were not taken in 2002, the Company concluded that the
January 2002 accounting change represented an error that needed to be corrected by restating
previously issued financial statements.
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The Company has also determined that certain other assumptions used in 2000, 2001, and 2002
should be treated as errors. These were: (i) the incorporation of certain spread account funding
provisions for the first time in January 2002 cash flow projections, rather than in December 2001 when
such spread account funding provisions were triggered, which had the effect of incorporating a
significant decrease in the value of the interest-only strips receivable (caused by the delayed timing of
receipt of excess spread) in January 2002 instead of December 2001; (ii) the use in periods prior to
December 2001 of certain averaging conventions in cash flow forecasting, which had the effect of
significantly decreasing the fair value of the interest-only strips receivable in such periods; and (iii) the
use in periods prior to December 2002 of total payment assumptions (including finance charges and
fees) rather than principal-only payment assumptions for purposes of forecasting customer loan
payments, which had the effect of significantly decreasing the fair value of the interest-only strips
receivable in such periods.

As a result of the foregoing, the Company has changed its interest-only strips valuation
methodology and assumptions to correct the errors that were identified and the Company’s financial
statements for the years ended December 31, 2000 to December 31, 2003 and its quarterly financial
statements for 2003 and the first three quarters of 2004 are being restated in this Annual Report.
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The following tables present the effects of the restatement for the correction of these errors on the
Company’s financial statements for such prior periods.

Restatement Adjustments for Prior Annual Periods

Cumulative
Adjustment
Year Ended  Year Ended  Year Ended  Year Ended Prior to
(dollars in thousands, except per share December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, January 1,
data) 2003 2002 2001 2000 2000
Unaudited Unaudited  Unaudited
Interest income—other .............. $ (13,735) $ (8,798) $ 11,954 § — 3 —
Net Interest income .. .............. (13,735) (8,798) 11,954 — —
Servicing and securitization income . . . . . . 50,995 (46,465) (162,316) 25,128 103,214
Non-Interest income—other . . .. ....... — (6,667) — — —
Total non-interst income . ............ 50,995 (53,132) (162,316) 25,128 103,214
Net increase (decrease) in income from
continuing operations before income
BAXES . o v 37,260 (61,930) (150,362) 25,128 103,214
Income tax €Xpense . . . .............. 14,091 (23,421) (56,865) 9,503 39,034
Net increase (decrease) in net income . ... $ 23,169 § (38,509) $ (93,497) $ 15625 § 64,180
Net increase (decrease) in earnings per
common share—basic............., $ 008 § 0.14) $ (0.33) $ 0.06
Net increase (decrease) in earnings per
common share—assuming dilution . . . .. $ 008 $ (0.13) 8 (0.32) $ 0.05
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Restatement Adjustments for Prior Quarterly Periods (Unaudited)

2004 Quarters 2004
Three Three Three Nine
Months ~ Months Months Months
(dollars in thousands, except Ended Ended Ended Ended
per share data) March 31, June 30, September 30, September 30,
Interest income—other . ................ $ (2,267) $ (3,300) $ (4,773) $(10,340)
Net Interest income . ................. . (2,267) (3,300) (4,773) (10,340)
Servicing and securitization income ... ... .. (10,647)  (28,382) (20,852) (59,881)
Total non-interest income . .............. (10,647)  (28,382) (20,852) (59,881)
Net increase {decrease) in income from
continuing operations before income taxes . (12,914)  (31,682) (25,625) (70,221)
Income tax expense .............. ... .. (4,847) (11,892) (9,619) (26,358)
Net increase (decrease) in net income . . . ... $ (8,067) $(19,790) $(16,006) $(43,863)
Net increase (decrease) in earnings per
common share—basic . ............... $ (0.03) $ (0.07) $ (0.06) $ (0.15)
Net increase (decrease) in earnings per
common share—assuming dilution . ... ... $ (0.03) $ (0.06) $ (0.05) $ (0.13)
2003 Quarters
Three Three Three Three
Months ~ Months Months Months
(dollars in thousands, except Ended Ended Ended Ended
per share data) March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
Interest income—other .. ............... $(4,087)  $(3,554) $(3,205) $(2,889)
Net Interest income . .................. (4,087) (3,554) (3,205) (2,889)
Servicing and securitization income . ....... 16,249 7,807 15,657 11,282
Total non-interest income . .. ..o, 16,249 7,807 15,657 11,282
Net increase (decrease) in income from
continuing operations before income taxes . 12,162 4,253 12,452 8,393
Income tax expense. ...........coin.. 4,600 1,608 4,709 3,174
Net increase (decrease) in net income . ... .. $ 7,562 $ 2,645 $ 7,743 $ 5,219
Net increase (decrease) in earnings per
common share—basic ................ $ 002 §$ 001 $ 0.02 $ 0.02
Net increase (decrease) in earnings per
common share—assuming dilution ....... $ 002 $ 0.01 $ 0.02 $ 002
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The restatements of the consolidated statement of financial condition as of December 31, 2003
and the consolidated statements of income and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002 are presented in the following tables.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition Restatement (Condensed)

(dollars in thousands) December 31, 2003

As Reported  As Restated

Assets

Due from Securitizations . . . .. ... oottt i e

Deferred taxes

Total assets

Liabilities
Total liabilities

.......................................

Shareholders’ Equity

Retained earnings
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

......................................
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$ 2,377,963
224,505
$ 14,275,347

$ 11,949,898

2,350,446
2,325,449
$ 14,275,347

$ 2,331,273
242,163
§ 14,246,315

$ 11,949,898

2,321,414
2,296,417
$ 14,246,315




Consolidated Statements of Income Restatement (Condensed)

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Year ended December 31,

2003

2002

Interest Income
Other ... .o e
Total interest income . . ..........v..o...

Net interest income ... ..............

Net interest loss after provision for credit
fosses .. ...

Non-Interest Income
Servicing and securitization .. ..........
Other ....... ... . ..
Total non-interest income . . .............

Total non-interest expense . .............
Income from continuing operations before

INCOME 1axXes . . . v v v vvv e e

Income tax expense ...................

Income from continuing operations . . ... ...
Netlncome ........... ... ...,

Earnings per common share—basic
Income from continuing operations . . . ... ..
Earnings per common share—basic ... ...

Earnings per common share—assuming
dilution
Income from continuing operations . .. .. ...
Earnings per common share—assuming
dilution................... ... ...

As Reported As Restated As Reported As Restated

$ 111,515 § 97,780 $ 163,552 $ 154,754
1,106471 1,092,736 1,691,283 1,682,485
472,681 458,946 919,289 910,491
(149,663)  (163,398)  (372,449)  (381,247)
849,283 900,278 618,241 571,776
66,012 66,012 611,065 604,398
1,674937  1,725932 2,381,347  2,328215
1,201,001 1,201,001  1,808882 1,808,882
324,273 361,533 200,016 138,086
128,088 142,179 49,006 25,585
196,185 219,354 151,010 112,501

$ 196185 § 219354 §$ 218166 $ 179,657

$ 0.68 $ 0.76 $ 053 $ 0.39

$ 0.68 $ 0.76 $ 0.77 $ 0.63

$ 0.67 $ 0.74 $ 052 $ 0.39

$ 067 $ 074 $ 075 $ 0.62
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Restatement (Condensed)

Year ended December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2003 2002
As Reported As Restated As Reported As Restated

Operating Activities
NetIncome ..........ccvviinn.o... $ 196,185 $§ 219354 § 218,166 $§ 179,657
Income from continuing operations . . . . ... 196,185 219,354 151,010 112,501

Adjustments to reconcile income from
continuing operations to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Decrease in deferred income tax benefit . . 278,317 292,408 540,727 517,306
Gain from sale of interests in Providian
Master Trust . . . o0 v i ee e — — (428,245) (421,578)
Net cash provided by operating _
ACHIVILIES . oo v oo et 1,271,131 1,328,565 1,353,774 1,289,749

Investing Activities :
Decrease (increase) in due from

SECUritiZations . . .. ......ove v 1,345,419 1,308,159 (1,827,416)  (1,772,153)
Net cash provided by investing activities . 1,252,123 1,216,303 649,292 715,547
Financing Activities _
Net cash used by financing activities . . . (2,322,977)  (2,344,591)  (2,736,563) (2,738,793)
Net cash provided by discontinued operations . — — 628,188 628,188
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash :
Equivalents . ....................... 200,277 200,277 (105,309) (105,309)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
period .. ... 344,277 344,277 449,586 449,586

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ... § 544,554 § 544554 § 344,277 § 344,277

Note 4. Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Stock-Based Compensation. In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the
“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based
Payment” (“SFAS No. 123(R)”), which is a revision of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation.” SFAS No. 123(R) supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees.” Generally, the approach to accounting for stock-based compensation in SFAS No. 123(R)
is similar to the approach described in SFAS No. 123. However, SFAS No. 123(R) requires all costs
related to stock-based compensation to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be
recognized in the financial statements based on the fair value of such compensation, so that pro forma
disclosure is no longer an alternative to financial statement recognition. SFAS No. 123(R) is effective
for the Company beginning July 1, 2005. As permitted by SFAS No. 123(R) for companies transitioning
to the new standard, the Company intends to apply the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) as of July 1,
2005 on a modified prospective basis to both new awards and the unvested portions of past awards
based on their grant date fair values. The Company estimates that the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R)
will increase pre-tax compensation expense in 2005 by approximately $9 million.
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The Effect of Contingently Convertible Debt on Diluted Earnings per Share. In October 2004,
the FASB ratified the consensus of the Emerging Issues Task Force with respect to Issue No. 04-8,
“The Effect of Contingently Convertible Debt on Diluted Earnings per Share” (“EITF 04-8”), which
states that contingently convertible debt instruments should be included in diluted earnings per share
computations if dilutive, regardless of whether the market price trigger or other contingent conversion
features have been met. During the third quarter of 2004, the Company elected to adopt the provisions
of EITF 04-8 and included the dilutive effect of its contingently convertible notes in its diluted earnings
per share calculation from the time of issuance of the notes, in accordance with the if-converted
methodology under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, “Earnings per Share”
(“SFAS No. 128”), in its Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2004. At
the same time, as required by EITF 04-8, the Company restated its diluted earnings per share for prior
periods.

In its effort to converge with international accounting standards, the FASB has issued an
Exposure Draft, “Earnings per Share—an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 128,” which, if adopted,
would require that contracts containing an option to settle in cash or stock be assumed to settle in
stock for purposes of calculating diluted earnings per share. The Company understands that the FASB
plans to issue a final statement on this proposal during the third quarter of 2005. The Company’s zero
coupon convertible senior notes provide such an option to the Company in the event that holders of
the notes exercise certain rights to require the Company to repurchase their notes. See Note 15 to
Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion. The Company has the unilateral right to
amend the indenture supplement governing the zero coupon notes to eliminate the Company’s right to
settle note repurchases in stock and currently intends to enter into such an amendment if the proposal
becomes effective. If the proposal in its current form had been in effect in 2004, it would have
impacted the Company’s diluted earnings per share calculation for the year ended December 31, 2004
by requiring the inclusion of an additional 32,806,702 shares related to these notes, and would have
also required that the Company restate its diluted earnings per share for prior periods for purposes of
comparability. The impact on diluted earnings per share would be partially offset by the add-back of
related debt interest expense to net income under the if-converted method. Given the Company’s intent
to amend the indenture supplement governing the zero coupon notes in the event the proposal
becomes effective, under the terms of the current Exposure Draft the Company would not be required
to include the additional shares in its diluted earnings per share calculation.

Note 5. Interest and Fee Income Recognition

The Company recognizes interest and fee income using a suppression methodology. Under the
suppression methodology, interest and fees that would otherwise accrue on reported loans and other
assets, but that the Company estimates will not be collected (the “suppressed amounts™), are neither
recognized as interest income, credit product fee income, or servicing and securitization income on the
Company’s consolidated statement of income nor included in loans receivable, interest receivable, or
due from securitizations on the Company’s consolidated statement of financial condition. In addition,
interest and fee income is reduced by the reversal of accrued interest and fees included in loans
receivable, interest receivable, and due from securitizations (to the extent not previously suppressed)
when the principal amount of a loan is charged off. Under the suppression methodology, the Company
analyzes projected credit loss rates, delinquency status, and historical loss experience to estimate the
suppressed amounts.
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During the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, the amount of interest and fees not
recognized as income as a result of the suppression of estimated uncollectible interest and fees and
interest and fee income reversals was as follows:

Suppression of Interest and Fee Income

Year ended
December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003
Loaninterestincome . ........... ... .uuu... $ 77,368 $141,881
Credit product feeincome . . .................. 112,839 195,005
Servicing and securitization income . ............. 429,151 567,520
Total ..o - $619,358  $904,406

Note 6. Investment Securities

The Company maintains short-term liquidity through federal funds sold and securities
purchased under resale agreements, available-for-sale investment securities and cash and cash
equivalents.

Federal funds sold totaled $440.0 million and $935.0 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003.
Securities purchased under resale agreements totaled $2.30 billion at December 31, 2003, and no
amounts were outstanding at December 31, 2004.

The Company’s available-for-sale investment securities portfolio is composed of treasury
obligations, government sponsored agency securities, mortgage-backed securities, commercial paper,
and other securities consisting primarily of asset-backed securities. A significant portion of the portfolio
is either issued or backed by a government sponsored agency or a fully government guaranteed agency.
The mortgage-backed securities are in the form of floating rate collateralized mortgage obligations,
adjustable rate pass-through securities, or fixed rate pass-through securities. All of the securities in the
portfolio have an investment grade credit rating, with a large majority having an AAA/Aaa rating.
Fluctuations in general market conditions will translate into fluctuations in the price of the securities.
Reductions in the value of these securities stem from changes in market conditions, not necessarily
from any intrinsic value deterioration. The Company has the ability to hold those securities that
currently have a loss on an ongoing basis until recovery or maturity without any material detriment to
the liquidity of the portfolio. At December 31, 2004, the Company had an unrealized loss of
$2.4 million on investments with an amortized cost of $215.0 million that had a continuous unrealized
loss position for 12 months or more. At December 31, 2003, there were no investments that maintained
a continuous unrealized loss position for 12 months or more.
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Summary of Available-for-Sale Investment Securities

December 31, 2004 " December 31, 2003
Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Gross Losses Losses Gross Gross
(doltars in Amortized Unrealized Less Than 12 Months Market Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
thousands) Cost Gains 12 Months or Longer  Value Cost Gains Losses Value
United States
Treasury and
federal agency
bonds ........ $ 975004 § — § 7,750 $ — § 967,254 $ 118,098 § 109 § 184 § 118,023
Mortgage-backed
securities . . .. .. 444,066 1,213 11 2,447 442,821 1,010,943 638 20,413 991,168
Commercial paper . . 1,210,152 — 1,815 — 1,208,337 699,487 — 382 699,105
Other . ......... 1,454,412 843 972 — 1,454,283 51,579 90 815 50,854
Total investment
securities

available-for-sale $4,083,634 $ 2,056 § 10548 $ 2,447 $4,072,695 $1,880,107 $ 837 § 21,794 $1,859,150

During 2004, investment securities with an amortized cost of $406.4 million were sold at a net
realized loss of $9.0 million, which includes gross gains of $0.4 million and gross losses of $9.4 million.
During 2003, investment securities with an amortized cost of $1.48 billion were sold at a net realized
gain of $4.7 million, which includes gross gains of $11.2 million and gross losses of $6.5 million.
Realized gains and losses were calculated using the specific identification method.

Estimated Maturities of Investment Securities

December 31, 2004

(dollars in thousands) ‘ Amortized Cost Fair Value
Dueinoneyear orJess. . ...oovtin ittt i, $ 2,188,444  $2,185,068
Due after one year through fiveyears .................. ... ... 1,210,866 1,204,351
Due after five years through tenyears . ........................ 55,360 55,336
Due after ten years. ........ e e e e e 628,964 627,940

Total securities available-for-sale ........... ... .. nn.. $ 4,083,634 $4,072,695

Note 7. Loans Receivable

The Company has credit risk on loans to the extent that borrowers fail to repay amounts owed
and such amounts are not recovered through collections procedures. At December 31, 2004, the
Company had no significant regional domestic or foreign concentrations of credit risk.

Loans Held for Securitization or Sale. In connection with the sale in August 2003 of
substantially all of the Providian Bank (“PB”) loans, the Company reclassified such loans and the
related interest receivable to loans held for securitization or sale as of June 30, 2003. The fair value of
these loans was estimated based on the anticipated terms of the sale. The fair value adjustment of
$11.9 million reflects an increase in the allowance for credit losses as a result of the mark to market of
the PB loans receivable. The decrease in the allowance for credit losses of $171.6 million represents the
related portion of the allowance for credit losses that was transferred with the outstanding balances of
the PB loans, as part of the adjustment to the fair value of $667.1 million.
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At March 31, 2002, the Company reclassified certain higher risk loans to loans held for
securitization or sale. The fair value adjustment of $388.2 million in 2002 reflects an increase in the
allowance for credit losses as a result of the mark to market of the higher risk loans receivable. The
decrease in the allowance for credit losses of $985.9 million in 2002 represents the related portion of
the allowance for credit losses that was transferred with the outstanding balances of the reclassified
higher risk loans, as part of the adjustment to the fair value of $1.61 billion.

Allowance for Credit Losses. The following is a summary of changes in the allowance for credit
losses for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002.

Allowance for Credit Losses

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) - 2004 2003 2002
Balance at beginning of period .. ............. ... ...... $ 625,886 $ 1,012,461 $ 1,932,833
Provision for credit losses . ...... ... . . i 517,295 610,469 903,508
Fair value adjustment—loans held for securitization or sale. . . . — 11,875 388,230
Credit 10SSes . . . .. v ittt (643,299)  (1,039,775) (1,387,350)
RECOVEIIES .« o v v vttt e e e e e 99,821 202,462 161,183
Credit losses on loans held for securitization orsale . . ... .. .. — (171,606) (985,943)
Balance atend of period ......... ... ... ... ... $599,703 § 625886 §$ 1,012,461

Note 8. Subsequent Event—Sale of Loans Receivable

On March 1, 2005, the Company completed the sale of a portfolio of non-core, higher risk
credit card loans held by PNB with a carrying value of approximately $400 million at the date of sale,
which resulted in the recognition of a gain during the first quarter of 2005. The related loans receivable
and interest receivable were reclassified to loans held for securitization or sale in January 2005 in
anticipation of the sale. At that time, the related loans receivable and interest receivable were reduced
to their respective fair values based on the estimated net realizable value of the portfolio and estimated
sales costs at the time of the reclassification, with an offsetting reduction to the allowance for credit
losses.

Note 9. Securitization or Sale of Receivables

The Company periodically securitizes pools of its loans receivable and issues asset-backed
securities in underwritten offerings and private placements through trusts or other special-purpose
entities that meet the requirements for sale treatment. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company’s
securitization program had $10.73 billion and $10.33 billion of securityholders’ interests outstanding, of
which $9.29 billion and $8.92 billion were held by third parties. The Company retains the remaining
interests in the loans receivable transferred in its securitizations and includes them on its statement of
financial condition.

The Company’s securitization transactions create undivided interests in the pool of loans and
establish securityholders’ interests (asset-backed securityholders’ certificates and notes), a seller’s
interest, interest-only strips receivable, and spread accounts. Securityholders’ interests consist of various
classes of investor interests ranked by seniority. Certain classes of securityholders’ interests, which are
supported by various forms of credit enhancement and generally include the senior classes, are sold to
third party investors. When the Company enters into a securitization transaction, it receives cash
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proceeds from the sale of securities to third parties, removes the securitized loans and related
allowance for credit losses from its statement of financial condition, and records the retained interests
in the transaction. The Company typically recognizes a net gain on sale from the securitization, due
primarily to the release of the related allowance for credit losses and recognition of an interest-only
strip receivable, which is partially offset by discounts recognized for the retained subordinated interests.

The seller’s interest is composed of senior and subordinated components. The senior seller’s
interest represents the seller’s undivided interest in the trust loans receivable that are not allocated to
the securityholders’ interests. The principal, interest, and fees receivable included in the senior seller’s
interest are classified on the Company’s statement of financial condition as loans receivable, with a
related allowance for credit losses, and as interest receivable. As the amount of the loans in the
securitized pool fluctuates due to customer payments, purchases, cash advances, billed interest and fees,
and credit losses, the amount of the senior seller’s interest will vary. Periodically, the Company
transfers new loans into the securitized pool in order to maintain the seller’s interest above the
minimum required by the securitization documents or in anticipation of issuing new securityholders’
interests.

The subordinated component of the seller’s interest is the accrued interest receivable (“AIR”),
which represents the Company’s interest in outstanding accrued interest and fees that are initially
allocated to the securityholders’ interests. The AIR is included as a financial component of the
securitization transaction in computing the net gain on sale. It is valued at the lower of its previous
carrying amount or allocated carrying value at the time of the sale and is recorded in due from
securitizations on the Company’s statement of financial condition.

The interest-only strip receivable is a retained interest in the interest and fee collections
allocated to the securityholders’ interests. This asset represents the present value of estimated future
excess servicing expected to be generated during the period the securitized loans are projected to be
outstanding. In order to give effect to the gain recognition requirements of SFAS No. 140, this period
is determined by an accounting method that assumes the investor securities will not be in their
revolving periods after the date of valuation and, therefore, that all available future principal collections
will be applied to repay the investor securities. Under this method, which applies only to interest-only
strips receivable valuation and is not used to determine repayment periods for retained subordinated
securityholders’ interests or spread accounts, the Company applies an estimated payment rate to the
initial securitized receivables balance in order to derive the dollar amount by which the securitized
receivables balance is estimated to be reduced in future periods. This corresponds to the contractual
rights the securityholders have to a fixed percentage of principal collections during the period in which
principal collections must be applied to repay the investor securities. Excess servicing represents the net
positive cash flow from interest and fee collections allocated to the securityholders’ interests after
deducting the interest paid on investor certificates, credit losses, contractual servicing fees, and other
expenses. The interest-only strip receivable is recorded at estimated fair value, and is included in due
from securitizations on the Company’s statement of financial condition.

Spread accounts are cash reserve accounts that can be called upon to fund payments to
securitization investors and credit enhancers in the event their share of cash flows is insufficient to
cover the required amounts due. Spread accounts are generally funded through excess cash flows if
cash flows fall below specified levels or other trigger events occur during the term of a securitization.
The cash in a spread account is released to the Company if certain conditions are met or the
securitization terminates with unused amounts remaining in the spread account. The spread accounts
are recorded at estimated fair value in due from securitizations on the Company’s statement of
financial condition.
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The retained securityholders’ interests are securities measured at fair value and included on the
Company’s statement of financial condition in due from securitizations. The retained subordinated
securityholders’ interests consist primarily of non-interest bearing beneficial interests that are repaid
after the related senior classes. At the origination of a securitization, the Company recognizes these
assets at their allocated carrying value. Generally, the allocated carrying value is less than the face
value of the security, and the difference is recorded as a reduction to non-interest income—servicing
and securitization. At the same time, the Company recognizes the fair value of these assets. The
Company’s existing retained securityholders’ interests have been classified as held for trading, and the
difference between their allocated carrying values and their fair values at the time of origination is
recorded in non-interest income—servicing and securitization. The Company measures fair value by
estimating cash flows that are discounted at rates that reflect the level of subordination, the projected
repayment term, and the credit risk of the securitized loans.

When the securityholders’ interests are reduced through amortization or termination, or
through a reduction in the invested amount of the Company’s variable funding series, the seller’s
interest is increased. This results in the recognition of an allowance for credit losses related to the
increase in reported loans receivable. Typically, this increase in the allowance for credit losses is the
only significant earnings impact resulting from such reductions in securityholders’ invested interests.

During 2004, 2003, and 2002, the Company securitized $4.30 billion, $4.92 billion, and
$3.24 billion of loans receivable, which were offset by reductions in securitized loans of $3.90 billion,
$7.02 billion, and $3.10 billion from the repayment of certain series and a reduction in the invested
amount of the variable funding series. The Company typically recognizes a net gain or loss from the
initial sale of investor interests to third party investors from the recognition of a gain from the
interest-only strip receivable, and the recognition of a loss from the discounts recognized on other
retained interests. The Company recognized total losses of $28.8 million, $84.4 million, and
$145.0 million related to its new securitizations during 2004, 2003, and 2002. These losses exclude the
benefit realized from the reduction to the allowance for credit losses recognized at the time of sale.

Adjustments to record the allocated carrying value of new retained securityholders’ interests at
the time of sale during 2004, 2003, and 2002 reduced non-interest income—servicing and securitization
by $221.2 million, $335.6 million, and $322.1 million. At the same time, the impact of adjusting these
assets from allocated carrying value to fair value increased non-interest income—servicing and
securitization by $95.3 million, $221.3 million, and $152.4 million.

The following table presents key economic assumptions used in the initial measurement of the
fair values of the retained subordinated interests for securitizations entered into during the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003.
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Securitization Initial Measurement Assumptions

“Year ended December 31,

2004 2003
As Restated
Payment rate(1) ....... ... i e 7.30% 5.70%
Expected net credit loss rate . ............ e 14.4% 18.0%
Weighted average loans receivable life (in years)(2).............. 0.53 0.60
Discount rate(3) .. ...ttt e 6.6%-20.0% 4.4%-20.0%
Average interest rate margin for third party investors(4) .......... 0.49% 0.96%

(1) This rate is an average of forecasted monthly payment rates for loans receivable in the securitized
pool. The monthly payment rate represents a forecast of principal collections for the month
divided by a forecast of the aggregate amount of principal loans receivable at the beginning of the
month.

(2) The weighted average loans receivable life is used only in the initial measurement of the fair value
of the interest-only strip receivable. It is calculated by multiplying the principal collections expected
in each future period by the number of periods until the balance is paid, summing those products,
and dividing by the initial principal balance. Estimated principal collections are based on the
accounting method used in valuing interest-only strips, which applies the estimated monthly
payment rate to the initial securitized receivable balance in order to derive the dollar amount by
which such balance is estimated to be reduced in future periods.

(3) Discount rate assumptions vary based on the relative risk of cash flows, which includes factors such
as the level of subordination, the projected repayment term, and the credit risk of the securitized
loans. The discount rate assumption used for retained securityholders’ interests and spread
accounts ranged from 6.6% to 9.3% during 2004 and ranged from 4.4% to 8.3% during 2003. The
discount rate assumption used for interest-only strips receivable was 20% during 2004 and 2003.

(4) The interest rates paid to third party investors in a term securitization with variable rates is based
on this margin plus the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). The interest rates paid to third
party investors in the Company’s fixed rate term securitizations are based on this margin plus the
relevant term swap rate at the time of pricing. The interest rate paid to conduit asset-backed
investors that participate in the variable funding series is generally based on a commercial paper
rate. The average interest rate margin decreased in 2004 as a result of more favorable pricing
included in the term securitizations issued by the Company during 2004.

After the initial sale, the Company’s securitizations impact its earnings through sales of
retained interests, changes in the fair values of its retained interests, including the accretion of
discounts on retained interests, the ongoing recognition of interest-only strips receivable, and the
difference in the actual excess servicing received as compared to the amount estimated in calculating
the related interest-only strips receivable.

During the revolving period of a securitization, no principal payments are made to the
investors. Instead, monthly collections of principal allocated to investors, and other amounts treated as
principal collections, are used to fund the purchase of replacement loans receivable, and the Company
recognizes additional interest-only strips receivable when this occurs. In addition, to the extent the
amount of the excess servicing cash flows received in a month differs from the amount estimated in
establishing the related interest-only strip receivable, the Company recognizes servicing and
securitization income or loss.
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The Company continues to service the accounts included in the pool of securitized loans and
earns a monthly servicing fee, which is generally offset by the servicing costs it incurs. The Company
has determined that the contractual servicing fee represents adequate compensation and the Company
therefore does not currently recognize a servicing asset or liability in connection with its securitizations.

At least quarterly, the Company adjusts the valuations of the retained interests to reflect
changes in the amount of the securitized loans outstanding and any changes to the initial assumptions,
estimates, and discount rates. The Company also continues to refine the financial models used to
obtain more accurate measures of the timing and amount of cash flows. These values can, and will,
vary as a result of changes in the level and timing of the cash flows, financial models, and underlying
econonic assumptions. Changes in the estimated fair values of the retained interests are reported as a
component of non-interest income—servicing and securitization on the Company’s statement of income.

After the initial fair value recognition, the Company evaluates its retained securityholders’
interests and recognizes changes in their fair value in non-interest income—servicing and securitization.
The fair value changes reflect the Company’s changes to estimated cash flows and discount rates,
including the impact of changes in the remaining term until repayment. As securityholders’ interests
approach their expected final payment date, their fair values generally approach their face values and
the discounts are accreted, with the amount of such accretion realized in non-interest income—
servicing and securitization. ’
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The following table summarizes the retained subordinated securityholders’ interests in the
Providian Gateway Master Trust as of December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Summary of Retained Subordinated Securityholders’ Interests
in the Providian Gateway Master Trust

December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003
Retained subordinated securityholders’ interests
Face vallle . . ..o oot e e e e $1,437,806 $1,411,738
DISCOUNE . . .ttt e e (186,552)  (235,422)
Fairvalue . ... o0ttt i i e e $1,251,254  $1,176,316
Weighted average remaining term (months) . . ............... 25 22

The changes in net unrealized gains or losses on retained subordinated securityholders’
interests included in earnings consisted of gains of $220.2 million and $211.0 million in 2004 and 2003,
and a loss of $110.4 million in 2002. These unrealized gains or losses are recognized in non-interest
income—servicing and securitization. '

Valuations of retained subordinated securityholders’ interests, interest-only strips receivable,
and spread accounts require the Company to use judgment in selecting discount rates, estimating future
cash flows, assessing current economic conditions, and assuming the outcome of future events.
Generally, we discount retained subordinated securityholders’ interests and spread accounts using a
defined methodology that, to the extent possible, is based on observable market interest rates and
credit spreads that approximate rate on other investments. Retained subordinated securityholders’
interests are discounted at rates that reflect the level of subordination, the projected repayment term
(which in the case of interest-only strips receivable is determined under the accounting method
described above), and the credit risk of the securitized loans. Spread account valuations are determined
through a discounted cash flow analysis based on projected repayments of spread account balances to
the Company.

The following table presents the fair value (carrying value, net of any discounts) of our

retained interests in the securitized loans, which retained interests were reported in due from
securitizations at December 31, 2004 and 2003.
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Due from Securitizations

Year ended
December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003
As Restated
Retained subordinated securityholders’ interests . . . ... ............... $1,251,254 $ 1,176,316
Interest-only strips receivable .......... ... ... .. .. . 299,830 182,166
Spread acCoUntS . . . .o vttt 246,195 403,802
Accrued interest receivable . . . ... ... 352,817 397,951
Other(1) ... e e 116,218 171,038
Total due from securitizations ... ... .. ...t ... $2,266,314 § 2,331,273

(1) Amounts consist primarily of funds deposited in the trust collection account and not yet
distributed.

The key economic assumptions used in valuing retained interests and the sensitivity of the
current fair value of residual cash flows to immediate 10% and 20% adverse changes in those

assumptions at December 31, 2004 are presented in the following table.

Securitization Sensitivities

" Expected
Discount Net Credit Payment
(dollars in thousands) Rate Loss Rate Rate
Current assumptions . . . . ...t .. 5.9%-20.0% 12.8% 8.10%
Impact on fair value of:
10% adverse change ....................... $  (21,496) § (61,428) $(18,742)
20% adverse change . ...................... $  (42,643) $(122,857) $(35,659)

The adverse changes to these key economic assumptions are hypothetical and are presented in
accordance with SFAS No. 140. As the figures above indicate, changes in fair value based on a 10%
variation in assumptions generally cannot be extrapolated because the relationship of the change in
assumption to the change in fair value may not be linear. In addition, the effect of changing one
assumption on the fair value of the retained interests is computed without allowing any other
assumption to change. In reality, changes in one assumption may be accompanied by changes in others.
Furthermore, the sensitivities presented do not reflect actions that management might take to mitigate
the impact of the adverse change. Accordingly, these sensitivities should be used with caution.
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The following table summarizes certain cash flows received from or paid in respect of
securitizations:

Securitization Cash Flows

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Proceeds from new securitizations(1)................... $ 3,594,815 $ 1,834,902 $ 2,030,300
Proceeds from collections allocated to securityholders’

interests(1). . ... oot e 9,151,205 7,692,984 - - 8,722,096
Servicing fees received ... ... ... .. L o i 298,821 326,796 377,222
Net cash flows received on retained interests . . ........... 1,012,672 671,940 123,130
Principal paid in respect of maturing securitizations(1) . . . . .. (3,225,000) (2,772,800) (3,173,920)

(1) Cash flows received from or paid in respect of third party secﬁrityholders’ interests.

The following table presents quantitative information about delinquencies, net credit losses,
and components of securitized loans receivable and other assets managed with them.

Supplemental Loan Delinquency and Credit Loss Information

Delinquent Loans
30 Days or More

Ending Loan Balances Past Due(1) Average Loan Balances ~ Net Credit Losses
' December 31, Year ended December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Reported loans(2) ....... $ 7,522,401 § 6,281,403 $ 346942 § 417,131 $ 6,841,581 § 6,546,748 $ 543,478 § 837312
Add:
Loans securitized(3) . ... 11,013,352 10,653,351 794,535 1,156,096 10,364,872 11,140,680 1,460,906 1,961,130

Total managed loans(2)(4) . . $18,535,753 $16,934,754 $1,141,477 $1,573,227 $17,206,453 $17,687,428 $2,004,384 $2,798,442

(1) Total loans that are 30 days or more past due as of the last day of the period.

(2) The 2003 loans outstanding exclude SFAS No. 133 market value adjustments.

(3) Represents the total amount of the securitized loans, including retained subordinated securityholders’ interests. These
amounts also include AIR reclassified to due from securitizations.

(4) Managed loans represent loans receivable reported on the Company’s statement of financial condition and the amounts
removed or reclassified from loans receivable through its securitizations.

Note 10. Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

In December 2003, the FASB issued a revision of Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 517 (“FIN 46”), which superseded the original
guidance issued in January 2003. Under FIN 46, a company is required to consolidate a variable
interest entity (““VIE”) if its interest in the VIE is such that it will absorb a majority of the VIE’s
expected losses and/or receive a majority of the VIE’s expected residual returns, if any. The Company
has applied FIN 46 to Providian Capital I, its wholly owned trust that issued preferred securities. See
Note 15 to Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

Because the Company’s securitizations are structured using qualifying special-purpose entities,
as defined in SFAS No. 140 and FIN 46, the Company’s securitization trusts are not required to be
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consolidated under FIN 46, The Company has an equity interest in a special-purpose entity related to
one of its securitization transactions and has determined that the entity is a VIE and that the Company
is not the primary beneficiary. As such, the entity does not meet the requirements for consolidation by
the Company under FIN 46. As of December 31, 2004, the Company’s total investment in this entity
was $43.4 million, which represents the Company’s maximum loss exposure, and the estimated total
assets of the entity were approximately $819.3 million.

The Company also has equity interests in various limited partnerships. The Company has
determined that the limited partnerships are VIEs and that the Company is not the primary
beneficiary. As such, these entities do not meet the requirements for consolidation by the Company
under FIN 46. As of December 31, 2004, the Company’s total investment in limited partnerships was
$23.7 million, which, combined with $14.7 million of remaining contractual funding commitments under
these investments, represents the Company’s maximum loss exposure, and the estimated total assets of
these entities were approximately $439.8 million.

Note 11. Commitments, Guarantees and Contingencies

Loan Commitments. A loan commitment is an agreement to lend to a customer up to a
prescribed maximum amount, subject to the customer’s compliance with the account agreement. The
Company can reduce or cancel a credit card commitment by providing the required prior notice to the
customer, or without notice if permitted by law. The unfunded commitment represents the total unused
portion of the line of credit available to the customer. Customers have not borrowed, and the Company
does not anticipate that all of its customers will borrow, the entire line of credit available to them at
the same time. Therefore, the total unfunded commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future
cash requirements. Total unfunded commitments at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were $29.10 billion
and $20.34 billion. ‘

Guarantees. In January 2003, the Company entered into. a pledge agreement with an insurer
with respect to certain obligations owing to the insurer in connection with two series of the Providian
Gateway Master Trust. In exchange for the insurer agreeing to a reduction in the base rate used for
calculating the excess spread early amortization event for the two series, the Company pledged
$30.0 million to be held in a deposit account as security for the payment to the insurer of amounts
owing to it in connection with these transactions. The pledge agreement remains in effect until the
investor certificates and all amounts owing to the insurer with respect to the two series are paid. In
accordance with the pledge agreement, the pledged collateral was reduced when one of the series was
repaid in September 2003. The remaining amount of the pledged collateral at December 31, 2004 was
$13.6 million. The remaining series related to the pledge has an expected final payment date in
September 2005. The Company does not currently expect that performance under this pledge will be
required. ‘

In addition, the Company has entered into interest rate swap arrangements for the
management of its interest rate risk exposure. See Note 17 to Consolidated Financial Statements for
further discussion. In connection with these agreements, the Company pledged collateral totaling
$22.3 million to interest rate swap counterparties at December 31, 2004.

In August 2002, the Company, through a wholly owned limited liability entity, sold its
investment in an alternative energy plant. Through the limited liability entity, the Company had
received certain tax credits and tax deductions. In connection with the sale of the plant to a third party,
the Company guaranteed certain obligations of the limited liability entity under a purchase and sale
agreement. The guarantee covers the limited liability entity’s obligation to indemnify the purchaser
against losses arising out of a breach of the purchase and sale agreement and failure to repurchase the
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assets if tax credits are not available to the purchaser. The Company’s guarantee is capped at the
amount of payments made to the limited liability entity at the time of sale, plus the amounts of
additional payments made, and contingent future payments that may be made, to the limited liability
entity and its affiliates arising from fuel production from the plant. At December 31, 2004, the
maximum guaranteed amount was $27.8 million, based on actual payments made.

The Company is a party to and from time to time enters into agreements that contain general
indemnification provisions, primarily in connection with asset sale agreements and service contracts,
including the purchase and sale agreement referred to in the preceding paragraph. These provisions
typically require the Company to make payments to other parties to indemnify them against losses that
may be incurred due to actions taken by the Company prior to entering into the agreement or due to a
breach of representations, warranties, and covenants made in connection with the agreement or
possible changes in or interpretations of tax law. The Company cannot estimate the potential future
impact of these indemnification provisions, since that would require an assessment of claims not yet
made. Based on historical experience, the Company does not currently expect the risk of loss under
these indemnification provisions to have a material adverse effect on its financial condition or results of
operations, but it cannot give any assurance that they will not have such an effect.

Litigation. The Company is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions, including
actions arising in the ordinary course of business from the conduct of its activities. While the Company
believes that it has substantive defenses and intends to defend the actions vigorously, it cannot predict
the ultimate outcome or the potential future impact on the Company of such actions. The Company
establishes reserves for expected future litigation exposures that are both probable and reasonably
estimable. The Company does not currently expect any of the actions pending or threatened against it
to have a material adverse effect on its financial condition or results of operations, but it cannot give
any assurance that they will not have such an effect.

Note 12. Premises, Equipment, and Lease Commitments

The following table summarizes the Company’s premises and equipment at December 31, 2004
and 2003. ‘

Summary of Premises and Equipment

December 31,

(dollars in thousands) v 2004 2003
PremISES © oottt e e e e $ 41,541 $ 41,522
Equipment and furniture ........... ... . i i 238,218 267,849
Leasehold improvements. . . ...........o ottt 61,261 61,101
Land . . ... . e e e e e 2,723 2,723
343743 373,195
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ................. 291,103 288,997
Premises and equipment, net. . ... ... ... $ 52,640 $ 84,198

Premises primarily include buildings owned and related improvements. The estimated useful
lives of buildings are 30 years. Leasehold improvement lives vary consistent with the shorter of the
asset life or remaining lease term. The useful life of equipment ranges from three to ten years.
Depreciation expense for premises and equipment and furniture for the years ended December 31,
2004, 2003, and 2002 was $22.9 million, $34.0 million, and $67.0 million. Amortization expense for
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leasehold improvements for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 was $12.0 million,
$10.8 million, and $13.0 million.

The Company generally leases office space and equipment under long-term operating leases.
Long-term operating lease agreements have expiration dates ranging from January 28, 2005 through
December 31, 2009. Office space leases typically contain five-year renewal options. Some of these lease
agreements contain rent escalation clauses. Rent includes the pass-through of operating expenses and
property taxes and totaled $36.5 million, $38.4 million, and $83.7 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002.

Future Minimum Rental Payments Under Noncancellable Operating Leases

Amount

(dollars in thousands)
2005 . e e $ - 25,046
2000 ... e e e | 13,357
2007 e e e 1,266
2008 .. e 509
2000 .. e e e 451
Total minimum lease payments ...................... $ 40,629

At December 31, 2004, the Company had accrued approximately $16.7 million for committed
future lease costs associated with property no longer in use.

Note 13. Deposits

The Company accepts time deposits with terms in excess of three months. Time deposits in
amounts of $100,000 or more totaled $7.48 billion and $7.31 billion at December 31, 2004 and 2003. At
December 31, 2004, the Company had $394.8 million of deposits without a contractual maturity. The
following table summarizes the contractual maturities of the Company’s deposits at December 31, 2004.

Summary of Contractual Maturities of Time Deposits

Amount

(dollars in thousands)

2005 L $ 3,033,526
2006 . e e 2,772,578
2007 . e 1,266,071
2008 .. 991,583
2000 . e 478,906
Thereafter .. . ..ot i e 533,568
9,076,232

Deposits without contractual maturity ................. 394,772
Total deposits . . . .ot o i e $ 9,471,004
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Note 14. Short-Term Borrowings
Short-term borrowings consist of convertible senior notes and senior bank notes maturing in
less than one year. The following table summarizes all outstanding short-term borrowings and the

weighted average interest rate on those borrowings as of December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Summary of Short-Term Borrowings

December 31,

2004 2003
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Interest Interest
(dollars in thousands) Balance Rate Balance Rate
3.25% convertible senior notes maturing in 2005 ...... $343,302 325% § — —
6.65% senior bank notes maturing in 2004 . . ......... — —_ 108,8§ 6.65%
343,302 108,848
Less unamortized discount and issuance costs. ........ 1,222 20
Total short-term borrowings .. ................... $342,080 $108,828

Note 15. Long-Term Borrowings

Long-term borrowings consist of borrowings having a remaining maturity of one year or more.
The following table summarizes the Company’s long-term borrowings at December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Summary of Long-Term Borrowings

December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003
3.25% convertible senior notes maturing in 2005(1) ................... $ — § 343,302
Zero coupon convertible senior notes maturing in 2021(2) .............. 460,180 442,310
4.00% convertible senior notes maturing in 2008. . .. ...... ... . ... .... 287,500 287,500
2.75% convertible cash to accreting senior notes maturing in 2016 . . .. ... .. 277,200 —
9.525% junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures maturing in 2027 . 109,281 109,281
1,134,161 1,182,393
Less unamortized ISSUANCE COSES .« v v ittt it it ettt 14,883 18,872
Total long-term DOITOWINGS .« .« v oot vttt e e e e $1,119,278 $1,163,521

(1) Amount at December 31, 2004 of $343.3 million is due in one year or less and has been classified
as a short-term borrowing.
(2) Amounts include the accreted portion of a yield to maturity of 4.00% per year.

Convertible Senior Notes
3.25% Convertible Senior Notes. In August 2000, the Company issued $402.5 million of 3.25%

convertible senior notes due August 15, 2005 with interest payable semiannually on February 15 and
August 15, commencing on February 15, 2001. These notes are convertible at the option of the holders,
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at any time prior to their maturity or their redemption or repurchase by the Company, at the
conversion rate of 14.4892 shares (split adjusted) of the Company’s common stock for each $1,000 of
note. principal (an initial conversion price of $69.02 per share of common stock). The Company will
adjust the conversion rate if certain events occur, as specified in the related indenture supplement, such
as the issuance of dividends payable in the Company’s common stock or the occurrence of a stock split
or combination. The Company has the option to redeem these notes for cash on or after August 20,
2003. Holders may require the Company to purchase their notes for cash following a change of control,
as defined in the related indenture supplement.

Zero Coupon Convertible Senior Notes. In February 2001, the Company issued $884.0 million
principal amount at maturity of zero coupon convertible senior notes due February 15, 2021. The
Company accretes the principal amount of the notes at a rate that provides holders with an aggregate
annual yield to maturity of 4.00% per year, computed on a semiannual bond equivalent basis. These
notes are convertible, at the option of the holders, into shares of the Company’s common stock at a
conversion rate of 6.2240 shares of common stock per note (an initial conversion price of $72.77 per
share of common stock, based on the offering price of $452.89 per note), if specified conditions are
met. These conditions include the satisfaction of a market price condition, such that the price of the
Company’s common stock equals or exceeds 110% of the accreted conversion price for at least 20
trading days of the 30 trading. days prior to conversion. At December 31, 2004, 110% of the accreted
conversion price was $92.62 per share. In addition, holders may surrender the notes for conversion at
any time prior to maturity, but (except in certain specified circumstances) if the conditions for
conversion into common stock have not been met, conversion will instead be settled in cash, in an
amount determined based on the formulas specified in the related indenture supplement. Conversion .
may also be settled in cash, common stock, or other property upon the occurrence of certain corporate
events, as specified in the related indenture supplement. The Company will adjust the conversion rate if
certain events occur, as specified in the related indenture supplement, such as the issuance of dividends
payable in the Company’s common stock or the occurrence of a stock split or combination. The
Company may redeem all or a portion of the convertible notes for cash on or after February 15, 2006.
Holders may also require the Company to purchase their notes on February 15, 2006 at a price per
note of $552.07, on February 15, 2011 at a price per note of $672.97, and on February 15, 2016 at a
price per note of $820.35. The Company has the option to settle these purchases in cash (at the then
current accreted value of the notes) or common stock (at the then current market price of the
Company’s common stock), or using a combination of both. In addition, holders may require the
Company to purchase their notes for cash following a change of control, as defined in the related
indenture supplement, occurring on or before February 15, 2006.

4.00% Convertible Senior Notes. In May 2003, the Company issued $287.5 million of 4.00%
convertible senior notes due May 15, 2008 with interest payable semiannually on May 15 and
November 15, commencing on November 15, 2003. These notes are convertible at the option of the
holders at the conversion rate of 76.8758 shares of the Company’s common stock for each $1,000 of
note principal (an initial conversion price of $13.01 per share of common stock), if specified conditions
are met. These conditions include the satisfaction of a market price condition, such that the price of
the Company’s common stock exceeds $14.31 per share (110% of the conversion price) for at least 20
trading days of the last 30 trading days of the preceding calendar quarter; the satisfaction of a trading
price condition, such that the trading price of the notes falls below a specified level; the occurrence of
certain corporate events, as specified in the related indenture supplement; and the occurrence of a
specified credit rating event, such that the ratings of the notes by certain rating agencies fall below
specified levels. Conversion of the notes will be settled in shares of the Company’s common stock,
except under certain circumstances related to the trading price condition, when conversion may be
settled in cash, common stock, or a combination of both, and upon the occurrence of certain corporate
events, as specified in the related indenture supplement, when conversion may be settled in cash,
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common stock, or other property. The Company will adjust the conversion rate if certain events occur,
as specified in the related indenture supplement, such as the issuance of dividends payable in the
Company’s common stock or the occurrence of a stock split or combination. In addition, contingent
interest is required to be paid to holders if certain conditions are met. The Company may not redeem
the notes prior to their maturity. Holders may require the Company to purchase their notes for cash
following a fundamental change, such as a change in control of the Company, as defined in the related
indenture supplement. :

During the third and fourth quarters of 2004, the specified market price condition for
conversion of the Company’s 4.00% convertible senior notes was satisfied, as the Company’s common
stock price exceeded the conversion trigger price of $14.31 per share for at least 20 trading days of the
last 30 trading days of each quarter. The 4.00% convertible senior notes are convertible dlurmg the
quarter following the period in which the conversion trigger price was exceeded.

2.75% Convertible Cash to Accreting Senior Notes. In March 2004, the Company issued
$277.2 million of 2.75% convertible cash to accreting senior notes due March 15, 2016. After March 15,
2011, the Company will pay interest at a rate of 1.75% per year and will accrete the principal amount
of the notes at a rate that provides holders with an aggregate annual yield to maturity of 2.75% per
year, computed on a semiannual bond equivalent yield basis. The notes are convertible at the option of
the holders at a conversion rate of 58.7941 shares of the Company’s common stock for each $1,000 of
note principal (an initial conversion price of $17.01 per share of common stock) if specified conditions
are met. These conditions include the satisfaction of a market price condition, such that the price of
the Company’s common stock exceeds $20.41 per share (120% of the conversion price) for at least 20
trading days of the last 30 trading days of the preceding quarter; the satisfaction of a trading price
condition, such that the trading price of the notes falls below a specified level; the announcement of a
redemption of the notes by the Company, in which event holders will have the option to convert their
notes prior to redemption; the occurrence of a specified credit rating event, such that the ratings of the
notes by certain rating agencies fall below specified levels; the occurrence of specified corporate
distributions, as defined in the related indenture supplement; and the occurrence of a fundamental
change, as defined in the related indenture supplement. Conversion of the notes will be settled in
shares of the Company’s common stock, except under certain circumstances related to the trading price
condition, when conversion may be settled in cash, common stock, or a combination of both, and upon
the occurrence of certain corporate events, as specified in the related indenture supplement, when
conversion may be settled in cash, common stock, or other property. The Company will adjust the
conversion rate if certain events occur, as specified in the related indenture supplement, such as the
issuance of dividends payable in the Company’s common stock or the occurrence of a stock split or
combination. In addition, contingent interest is required to be paid to holders if certain conditions are
met. If a fundamental change, such as a change in control of the Company, as defined in the related
indenture supplement, occurs on or before March 15, 2011, the Company may also be required to
purchase the notes for cash and pay an additional make whole premium payable in the Company’s
common stock upon the repurchase or conversion of the notes in connection with the fundamental
change. The Company has the option to redeem all or a portion of the notes for cash at any time on
or after March 31, 2011. Holders may require the Company to purchase all or a portion of their notes
for cash on March 15, 2011 or March 15, 2014.

Junior Subordinated Deferrable Interest Debentures
In 1997, through Providian Capital I, a wholly owned subsidiary statutory trust, the Company
issued mandatorily redeemable preferred securities, which accumulate accrued distributions that are

payable semiannually. The Company has the right to defer payment of interest on the preferred
securities at any time and from time to time, for a period not exceeding 10 consecutive semiannual
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periods with respect to each deferral period, provided that no extension period may extend beyond the
stated maturity. During any such extension period, the Company’s ability to pay dividends on its
common stock would be restricted. The Company has the right to cause the redemption of the
preferred securities on or after February 1, 2007, or earlier in the event of certain regulatory changes.
The redemption price depends on several factors, including the date of the redemption, the present
value of the principal and premium payable, and the accumulated but unpaid distributions on the
preferred securities. The sole assets of Providian Capital I are $109.3 million in aggregate principal
amount of the Company’s 9.525% junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures due February 1,
2027 and the right to reimbursement of expenses under a related expense agreement with the
Company. The Company’s obligations under such debentures, together with its other obligations with
respect to the preferred securities, constitute a full and unconditional guarantee.

In accordance with FIN 46 (see Note 10 to Consolidated Financial Statements), the Company
has determined that the Providian Capital 1 trust is a VIE and that the Company is not the primary
beneficiary, as the Company would not absorb a majority of the trust’s expected losses if they were to
occur. The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 46 with respect to the trust effective July 1, 2003.
As a result, the Company deconsolidated the trust and no longer reports the preferred securities on its
statement of financial condition. Effective July 1, 2003, the Company began reporting the related
interest as interest expense and its equity in the earnings of the nonconsolidated trust as non-interest
income—other. At December 31, 2004, the Company reported $109.3 million in junior subordinated
deferrable interest debentures related to the preferred securities in long-term borrowings and the
Company’s equity investment in the trust of $5.0 million in other assets.

Note 16. Income Taxes

The following table presents the components of the Company’s income tax expense related to
continuing operations.

Summary of Income Tax Expense

Year ended December 31,
(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
As Restated As Restated

Current

Federal ........ ... .. . . . . . $ 86,443 § (144,630) $ (474,932)

State. ... (40,224) (6,002) 24,381

Foreign........... ... ... i 12 — —
46,231 (150,632) (450,551)

Deferred

Federal . ......... ... ... . . . . ... 88,665 270,810 518,738

St . . v i e e 24,586 22,001 (42,602)

Foreign.......... ... i 1 — —
113,252 292,811 476,136

Net income tax €Xpense . . . ..o v v vvvnuennsi.. $159,483 $ 142,179 § 25,585

Deferred income taxes reflect the net effects of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax

purposes.
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Summary of Deferred Taxes

December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003
As Restated
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Deferred loan acquisition COSIS .. ........ ... it $ 5478 § 4,209
Loan securitization INCOME . ... ... ...\t nnnrnn.n 22,670 —
Deferred feerevenue .. ... ... ... . i e 91,192 —_
Other . . o e e 62,870 43,757
182,210 47,966
Deferred Tax Assets
Allowance for credit 10SSes . . oo vt it e e 122,103 93,910
Loan securitization INCOME . - . . .o v vttt vttt e et e ee e — 57,007
Deferred fee revenue ... ... e — 34,769
Long-term incentive accruals . ......... .. ... ... ... ... ..., 9,512 7,528
SALE LAXES .« vt vt it e e e e e e e 9,217 7,010
10 1131 67,457 81,428
208,289 281,652
Net deferred tax assets before unrealized losses ............... 26,079 233,686
Unrealized losses on:
Securities available-for-sale .. .......... ... ... .. ... ..., 4,106 8,477
Net deferred tax aSsets . v v v vt e it it e e $ 30,185 § 242,163

The Company has federal income tax loss carryforwards of $12.0 million that expire in 2017
and 2018, and state loss carryforwards of $217.9 million that expire over the period 2005 through 2015.
The Company believes that it will fully realize its total deferred income tax assets as of December 31,
2004, based on the Company’s recoverable taxes, total deferred income tax liabilities, and expected
future levels of operating income.

Reconciliation of Statutory Tax Rate

(percent of pre-tax income) 2004 2003 2002

As Restated As Restated
Statutory federalrate ... .................. 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income tax rate .. ........ ... 4.0 43 5.5
State change in accounting for bad debts . . .. ... — — (21.7)
Taxcredits . ...... ... i 4.9) — —
Tax exposure reassessments . .. .............. (4.5) — —
Other ....... ..o (0.1) — (0.3)
Effective taxrate .. .........c.oveunnnn, 29.5% 39.3% 18.5%
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The Company has tax exposures relating to its assessment of tax liabilities in the ordinary
course of business. The Company periodically assesses its liabilities and contingencies for all years
under potential tax audit based on the latest information available. For those matters where it is
probable that an adjustment will be asserted, the Company has recorded its best estimate of the entire
amount of the tax liability (including related interest charges for such tax liabilities) related to such
matters in its consolidated financial statements. Subsequent periodic assessments that result in an
increase or decrease to the Company’s total assessment of its tax exposures for such tax liabilities are
reflected in current period earnings.

The decrease in the effective tax rate for 2004 is primarily due to tax credits that the Company
expects to utilize based on its estimate of 2004 taxable income and net reductions of previously
established tax reserves. The tax credits, totaling approximately $26.4 million, were primarily generated
from an existing investment in a limited liability entity that operates an alternative energy plant. The
Company was not able to utilize these credits in 2003. During the three months ended December 31,
2004, the Company recorded a reduction of $24.7 million of previously accrued income tax expense and
a reversal of $15.8 million of interest expense related to previously established tax reserves, which had
the effect of increasing net income by $34.5 million in the fourth quarter of 2004, or $0.10 per diluted
share. These net reversals resulted from the finalization of various tax audits and from reassessment of
tax exposures, covering the years 1997 through 2002, that are expected to be more favorably resolved
than previously anticipated. Although the final resolution of these tax exposures is uncertain, based on
current information, in the opinion of the Company’s management the ultimate disposition of these
open tax matters is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial position, liquidity or results of operations.

The decrease in the effective tax rate for 2002 is due to the enactment of a California law in
September 2002 requiring large banks (those with average assets in excess of $500 million) to conform
to federal law with respect to accounting for bad debts. The California law applies to tax years
beginning on or after January 1, 2002. Before the change, ail banks, regardless of size, were eligible to
use the reserve method of accounting for bad debts, which enabled them to take deductions for
anticipated bad debt losses for California tax purposes before the losses were recognized as a
charge-off. As a result of the change, large banks may now deduct only the actual charge-offs, net of
recoveries, in determining their California taxable income, and were required to include in 2002 taxable
income 50 percent of the bad debt reserves existing as of the end of the prior tax year. As a concession
to the banks that became subject to the new law, the State of California waived recapture of the
remaining 50 percent of the reserves. The effect of this concession was to create a permanent tax
benefit for the Company in the amount of $30.0 million. The effective tax rate for 2002 reflects this
benefit. Without the benefit, the effective tax rate for 2002 would have been 40.2%.

Note 17. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company’s principal objective in entering into derivative financial instruments is to reduce
interest rate risk by more closely aligning the repricing characteristics of the Company’s assets and
liabilities. The operations of the Company are subject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the
extent that there is a difference in repricing characteristics as between interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing deposits and other liabilities. The goal is to maintain levels of net interest income while
reducing interest rate risk and facilitating the funding needs of the Company. To achieve that goal, the
Company uses a combination of interest rate risk management instruments, including interest rate swap
agreements, with maturities ranging from 2005 to 2016 as of December 31, 2004.

When interest rate risk management instruments are used to hedge reported assets and
liabilities, the net receipts or payments are recognized as an adjustment to interest income or interest
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expense. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company had $2.37 billion and $288.2 million in
notional amount of interest rate swaps outstanding.

The average effective interest rate on the Company’s interest-bearing liabilities after giving
effect to the swaps was 4.70%, 4.92%, and 5.23% for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and
2002. For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, interest rate swap agreements reduced
interest expense by $19.7 million, $4.5 million, and $1.3 million.

The average effective interest rate on the Company’s interest-earning assets after giving effect
to the swaps was 8.47%, 8.35%, and 11.01% for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002.
For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, interest rate swap agreements increased
interest income by $0.2 million, $0.2 million, and $0.5 million.

Expected Maturities and Weighted Average Interest Rates of Derivative Financial Instruments

Balance at Maturing in
(dollars in thousands) December 31, 2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter
Swaps—Receive Fixed/Pay Variable
Notionalvalue . .. ......... oo, .. $ 2,369,800 $641,500 $645,700 $431,100 $ 651,500
Weighted average pay rate. . . .......... 2.48% 2.35% 2.49% 2.54% 2.58%
Weighted average receive rate .. ........ 3.40% 2.63% 3.22% 3.64% 4.30%

Note: For this summary, variabie rates are held constant for future periods at their effective rates as of
their most recent reset date prior to December 31, 2004.

The following table presents the notional value of the Company’s interest rate swap agreements
that are designated as fair value hedges and the specific assets or liabilities to which they are linked.

Notional Value of Fair Value Hedge Swaps

December 31, 2004

(dollars in thousands) Receive Fixed Pay Fixed Total

Certificates of deposit .. ................ . .. ... $ 2,369,800 $ —  $2,369,800

Total notional value of fair value hedge swaps............ $ 2,369,800 $ —  $2,369,800
December 31, 2003

(dollars in thousands) Receive Fixed Pay Fixed Total

Certificates of deposit . . . ..o vt $ 288,200 § — $ 288,200

Total notional value of fair value hedge swaps............ $ 288200 $  — § 288200

The Company is exposed to market and credit risk associated with its interest rate risk
management instruments. The Company’s exposure to market risk is associated with changes in interest
rates, and the Company’s exposure to credit risk is the risk of loss from a counterparty failing to
perform according to the terms of an agreement. This credit risk is measured as the gross unrealized
gain on the interest rate risk management instruments. The Company controls credit risk in these
instruments by entering into interest rate risk management agreements with nationally recognized
financial institutions and dealers that carry at least investment grade ratings. In addition, the
Company’s policy is to diversify its credit risk exposure across a number of counterparties. On an
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individual counterparty basis, the Company determines the need for collateral or other security to
support financial instruments with credit risk. The Company does not currently anticipate default by
any of its counterparties.

Note 18. Discontinued Operations

"During the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company determined that it would sell its United
Kingdom and Argentina credit card operations. The sales of those operations were completed in the
second quarter of 2002. Pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the Company reclassified the balances relating
to its United Kingdom and Argentina operations on its 2002 and 2001 consolidated financial statements
to reflect the disposition of those operations. The revenues, costs and expenses, and cash flows of those
operations have been segregated in the Company’s consolidated statements of income and consolidated
statements of cash flows for 2002 and 2001 and have been separately reported as “discontinued
operations.”

There were no results from discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2004
and 2003, For the year ended December 31, 2002, income from discontinued operations was
$67.2 million, net of related tax expense of $43.8 million. The sale of the Company’s United Kingdom
operations generated a 2002 pre-tax gain of $95.6 million on proceeds of over $600 million. The sale of.
the Company’s Argentina operations generated a pre-tax gain of $8.0 million in 2002.

Note 19. Asset Sales’

In August 2003, the Company completed the sale of 435,000 credit card accounts with balances
totahng $859.6 million, which comprised substantially all of the credit card loans of PB, and transferred
servicing of the receivables. Effective June 30, 2003, the Company reclassified the PB loans and related
accrued interest receivable to loans held for securitization or sale and recognized a loss of
apprommately $8 million.

In December 2003, the Company completed the sale of certain assets of its subsidiary,
GetSmart.com. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company sold the lender and marketing
agreements, trademarks, intellectual property, and certain fixed assets, but retained the outstanding
receivables generated from fees owed by lenders and other participants offering their products through
GetSmart.com. During the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company recogmzed an after-tax gain of
$6.9 million with respect to the sale.

On March 1, 2005, the Company completed the sale of a portfolio of non-core, higher risk
credit card loans held by PNB. See Note 8 to Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

Note 20. Capital Requirements

PNB is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by its regulators. Under
these requirements, PNB must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of its -
assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting
practices. The capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the
regulators with respect to components, risk weightings, and other factors. Failure to meet minimum
capital requirements can result in mandatory and discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken,
could have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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The quantitative measures under applicable capital adequacy regulatory guidelines require that
PNB maintain minimum ratios of Total and Tier 1 risk-based capital to risk-weighted assets (Total and
Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital Ratios) and of Tier 1 risk-based capital to adjusted average total assets
(Leverage Ratio), as shown on its quarterly Call Reports. PNB met all regulatory capital adequacy
requirements to which it was subject at December 31, 2004 and 2003. As of December 31, 2004, capital
ratios for PNB were above the “well capitalized” levels on a Call Report basis under the regulatory
capital guidelines. PNB has exceeded the “well capitalized” level since March 31, 2002. The applicable
minimum capital requirements on a Call Report basis are set forth in the table below.

Capital Adequacy Guidelines
and PNB Capital Ratios on Call Report Basis

Total Tier 1 Tier 1
Risk-Based Capital  Risk-Based Capital Leverage Ratio

(dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio  Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 2004

PNBActual . ................ ... .... $3,461,618  22.72% $3,133,855  20.57% $3,133,855 23.67%

Minimum adequately capitalized . . . ....... 1,218,687 8.00% 609,344 4.00% 529,641 4.00%

Minimum well capitalized .............. 1,523,359  10.00% 914,016 6.00% 662,051 5.00%
December 31, 2003, as restated

PNBActual . ....................... $3,343,537  21.23% $2,974,722  18.89% $2,974,722 20.73%

Minimum adequately capitalized . . . .. ... .. 1,260,089 8.00% 630,045 4.00% 573915  4.00%

Minimum well capitalized .............. 1,575,111 10.00% 945,067 6.00% 717,393  5.00%

PNB is operating under a Capital Plan that it submitted to its primary regulator in February
2002 and updates quarterly. The Capital Plan provides a comprehensive strategy for maintaining a
strong capital position and a high quality of capital at PNB. Under its Capital Plan, PNB’s capital
ratios, as determined under the regulatory guidance discussed above, are required to be adjusted to
reflect the application of the Expanded Guidance for Subprime Lending Programs issued by the federal
banking regulators (“Subprime Guidance™) to a portion of its reported credit card account loans (see
PNB Capital Ratios table below). Application of the Subprime Guidance results in higher risk
weightings being assigned to accounts that fall within the scope of the guidance than would otherwise
be required by the regulations. Under the methodology utilized in the Capital Plan for determining risk
weightings, PNB has segmented its standard and middle market portfolios into several categories
according to their internal credit scores and historical and projected charge-off rates. As applied by
PNB at December 31, 2004, this methodology resulted in a weighted average risk weighting of 138%
against PNB’s reported standard and middle market segment loans receivable, which totaled
approximately $4.39 billion on such date. These risk weightings are subject to change depending on
conditions of the Company’s loan portfolio and/or changes in regulatory guidance. Managed loans
outstanding to customers in the standard and middle portfolios totaled approximately $15.39 billion as

of December 31, 2004.
As of December 31, 2004, PNB met its Capital Plan commitment to maintain capital ratios

associated with “well capitalized” status after applying the Subprime Guidance risk weightings. This
commitment includes the impact of PNB’s adoption of the AIR guidance (see Note 9 to Consolidated
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Financial Statements for discussion regarding AIR). The following table presents PNB'’s capital ratios
after application of the Subprime Guidance.

PNB Capital Ratios
After Application of Subprime Guidance

Capital Ratio December 31, 2004

Total risk-based .. ... ... ... . . . . e 19.47%
THer 1 o e 17.52%
LeVEIAZE -« v e eoi it e ittt e e e 23.67%

Note 21. Shareholders’ Equity

During 2002, 2003, and 2004, the Company did not declare any dividends on its common stock.
The principal source of funds for the payment of dividends on the Company’s common stock is
dividends received from PNB. Under the Capital Plan and the written agreement between PNB and its
primary regulator, PNB may not declare or pay dividends without first receiving the consent of its
primary regulator. In December 2004, PNB received regulatory approval for, and paid, an in-kind
dividend to the Company of certain retained interests, which had a carrying value of $230.6 million, in
PNB securitization transactions. If PNB seeks to make future dividends it must first obtain regulatory
consent, and there is no assurance that such consent, if sought, could be obtained.

During 2003, the Company modified its dividend reinvestment and direct stock purchase plan
to include a direct stock purchase component for optional cash investments over $10,000. The dividend
reinvestment component of the plan permits the Company’s shareholders to designate all or a portion
of the cash dividends, if any, on their Providian Financial Corporation common stock for reinvestment
in additional shares of such common stock. The direct stock purchase component permits participants
and new investors to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock by making optional cash
investments of $100 to $10,000 per month. The plan also allows participants and new investors to
obtain a waiver from the Company that allows them to make optional cash investments in excess of
$10,000 in a month. Waivers are used to control the amount of stock issuance for any given offering.

The purpose of the plan is to provide the Company’s shareholders and other investors with a
convenient and economical method of purchasing shares of the Company’s common stock and
reinvesting all or a portion of their cash dividends, if any, in additional shares of the Company’s
common stock. To the extent additional shares are purchased directly from the Company, the plan also
provides a means for the Company to raise capital through the direct sale of common stock.

Initially, 14,000,000 shares of common stock were authorized to be issued and registered under
the Securities Act for offering pursuant to the plan. Because the Company expects to continue the plan
indefinitely, the Company expects to authorize and register additional shares from time to time as
necessary for purposes of the plan. Shares issued by the Company would have a dilutive effect. For the
year ended December 31, 2004, all shares purchased under this program were acquired by the program
administrator on the open market rather than issued by the Company.
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Note 22. Cumulative Other Comprehensivé Income

The components of cumulative other comprehensive income, net-of-taxes, for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 are presented in the following table.

Cumulative Other Comprehensive Income Components

Cumulative

Unrealized Foreign Other
Gain (Loss)  Currency  Comprehensive

(dollars in thousands) on Securities Translation Income
Balance at December 31,2001 . .................. $ 10,878 $§ (1,071) $ 9,807
Other comprehensive income . ................. (1,637) 1,771 134
Tax benefit (expense) ............ ... ... 647 (700) (53)
Balance at December 31,2002 ................... $ 9888 $ — 3 9,888
Other comprehensive income .. ................ (36,972) — (36,972)
Taxbenefit. ..........ccviiiiiiiiie.., 14,604 — 14,604
Balance at December 31,2003 .. ................. $  (12,480) $ — 3 (12,480)
Other comprehensive income . ................. 10,018 — 10,018
TAX EXPENSE - - v v e v evv e it e (4,371) — (4,371)
Balance at December 31,2004 . .................. $ (6,833) $ — (6,833)

F-44




Note 23. Earnings Per Common Share

The following table sets forth the computation of both basic and diluted earnings per common

share for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002.

Computation of Earnings Per Common Share

Year ended December 31,

(dollars and number of shares in thousands, except per share data) 2004 2003 2002
‘ As Restated  As Restated

Income from continuing operations . .................. $381,244 $ 219354 $§ 112,501

Discontinued operations, net-of-taxes . ............... — — 67,156
Income for computation of earnings per common

share—basic ... ... .ot e 381,244 219,354 179,657
Interest on convertible senior notes, net-of-taxes(1) ....... 10,900 4,117 —
Income for computation of earnings per common share—

assuming dilution . .......... . ... . i ... $392,144 § 223471 $ 179,657
Weighted average common shares outstanding—basic . . .. .. 288,905 287,125 285,001
Employee stock options . .............. i, 4,749 2,083 225
Restricted stock issued—unvested . . ..... .. ... ... .. .. 1,166 1,523 . - 3,816
Convertible senior notes(1) . ...... ... . 34,882 13,201 —

Dilutive potential common shares. . ................. 40,797 16,807 4,041
Weighted average common shares outstanding—assuming

dilution., . ... .. 329,702 303,932 289,042
Earnings per common share—basic:

Income from continuing operations . ................ $ 132 § 0.76 § 0.39

Discontinued operations, net-of-taxes .. ... .. e — — 0.24
Net income per common share—basic . ................ $ 132 § 076 $ 0.63
Earnings per common share—assuming dilution(1):

Income from continuing operations .. ................ $ 119 § 074 $ 0.39

Discontinued operations, net-of-taxes . ............... — — 0.23
Net income per common share—assuming dilution . . ... ... $ 119 § 074 § 0.62

(1) Amounts related to convertible senior notes reflect the effect of adopting EITF 04-8 in the third
quarter of 2004. The adoption of EITF 04-8 had the effect of reducing the Company’s diluted
earnings per common share by $0.04 and $0.01 for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.
There was no impact on the 2002 diluted earnings per common share because the assumed
conversions of the convertible senior notes were antidilutive and were therefore excluded.

The Company’s convertible senior notes consist of its zero coupon, 4.00%, and 2.75% notes,
which are contingently convertible notes, and its 3.25% notes. See Note 15 to Consolidated Financial
Statements for further discussion. During the third quarter of 2004, the Company elected to adopt the
provisions of EITF 04-8, and as a result included the dilutive effect of its contingently convertible notes
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in its diluted earnings per share calculation from the time of issuance of the notes, in accordance with
the if-converted methodology under SFAS No. 128. As required by EITF 04-8, the Company also
restated its diluted earnings per share for prior periods.

The amounts presented above for 2004 reflect the assumed conversions to common shares of
the Company’s 2.75% and 4.00% convertible senior notes and for 2003 reflect the assumed conversion
to common shares of the Company’s 4.00% convertible senior notes, the impact of which was partially
offset by the add-back of related debt interest expense to net income in accordance with the
if-converted methodology. The Company’s zero coupon and 3.25% convertible senior notes were
excluded from the calculation for all periods presented above because the effect would have been
antidilutive. The interest expense and dilutive potential common shares included in the diluted earnings
per share calculations presented above are as follows:

Year ended
. December 31,

(dollars and number of shares in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
2.75% convertible senior notes E

Interest on notes, net-of-taxes . .................. $3717 $§ — $—

Dilutive potential common shares . ............... 12,780 - —
4,00% convertible senior notes

Interest on notes, net-of-taxes . . ................. § 7,183 §4117 $—

Dilutive potential common shares . ............... 22,102 13200 —

The FASB has issued an Exposure Draft, “Earnings per Share—an Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 128,” which would require that contracts containing an option to settle in cash or stock
be assumed to settle in stock for purposes of calculating diluted earnings per share. See Note 4 to
Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion.

Note 24. Stock-Based Compensation Plans

At December 31, 2004, the Company had three stock-based compensation plans: the. 2000
Stock Incentive Plan, the 1999 Non-Officer Equity Incentive Plan, and the 1997 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan.

2000 Stock Incentive Plan. The 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2000 Plan”) is an amendment,
restatement and combination of the Company’s 1997 Stock Option Plan and Stock Ownership Plan.
The Company’s shareholders approved the combination of the 1997 Stock Option Plan and the Stock
Ownership Plan and the material terms of the 2000 Plan in May 2000. ‘

The 2000 Plan provides for grants of incentive and nonqualified stock options to employees,
non-employee directors, and consultants. Stock options granted under the 2000 Plan have been granted
with an exercise price equal to the market value of the Company’s common stock at the date of grant
and a maximum term of 10 years and are subject to forfeiture during the vesting period. During 2004,
the Company granted nonqualified options to purchase 2,121,202 shares of the Company’s common
stock to employees and non-employee directors under the 2000 Plan.

The 2000 Plan also provides for grants of restricted and unrestricted stock to employees,
non-employee directors, and consultants. Restricted stock granted under the 2000 Plan is subject to
forfeiture during the vesting period. During 2004, the Company granted 890,465 shares of restricted
stock and 14,978 shares of unrestricted stock to employees and non-employee directors under the 2000
Plan. The Company records the market value of restricted stock grants as deferred compensation at the
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time of grant and amortizes such amounts over the applicable vesting period. The market value of
unrestricted stock grants is charged to non-interest expense in the period the grants are issued.

The 2000 Plan permits a maximum of 12,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to be
granted as restricted stock or unrestricted stock, and provides for a combined maximum of 47,812,572
shares of the Company’s common stock to be issued in connection with stock option exercises and
grants of restricted and unrestricted stock. The number of shares available for future awards and the
number of shares covered by each outstanding award under the 2000 Plan are subject to adjustment for
any future stock splits, stock dividends, mergers, combinations, and other changes in capitalization as
described in the 2000 Plan. As of December 31, 2004, the number of common shares available for
future grants under the 2000 Plan was 6,740,497 shares.

1999 Non-Officer Equity Incentive Plan. The Board of Directors of the Company adopted the
1999 Non-Officer Equity Incentive Plan (the “Non-Officer Plan”) in May 1999. The Non-Officer Plan
was not subject to approval by, and has.not been approved by, shareholders. Employees and consultants
of the Company and its affiliates who are not officers or directors of the Company or of any affiliate
are eligible to receive awards under the Non-Officer Plan.

The Non-Officer Plan provides for grants of nonqualified stock options and grants of restricted
and unrestricted stock to eligible employees and consultants. Stock options granted under the
Non-Officer Plan have been granted with an exercise price equal to the market value of the Company’s
common stock at the. date of grant-and a maximum term of 10 years and are subject to forfeiture
during the vesting period. Restncted stock granted under the Non-Officer Plan is subject to forfeiture
during the vesting period. : e

The Non-Officer Plan allows a maximum of 9,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock
to be issued in connection with stock option exercises and grants of restricted or unrestricted stock.
The number of shares available for future awards and the number of shares covered by each
outstanding award under the Non-Officer Plan are subject to adjustment for any future stock splits,
stock dividends, mergers, combinations, and other changes in capitalization as described in the
Non-Officer Plan. During 2004, the Company granted nonqualified options to purchase 75,100 shares
of the Company’s common.stock to employees under the Non-Officer Plan. The Company also granted
898,850 shares of restricted stock to employees under the Non-Officer Plan during 2004. As of
December 31, 2004, the number of common shares available for future grants under the Non-Officer
Plan was 4,859,984 shares.

Summary of Stock Optlons Outstandmg and Exercisable

‘Outstanding Options ' Exercisable Options
Weighted Average

Ranges of Number of Remaining Weighted Average Number of Weighted Average

Exercise Prices - Shares Contractual Life Exercise Price =~ = Shares Exercise Price
$  250-10.00 11,804,370 7.65 $ _6.80 5,933,450 $ 6.47
10.01-15.00 4,061,972 - 592 12.03 - 1,960,406 10.72
15.01-20.00 1,888,000 3.34 19.63 1,888,000 19.63
20.01-35.00 83,568 ' . 4.06 26.61 83,568 26.61
35.01-50.00 = 3,038,488 525 4170 3,038,488 41.70
50.01-65.00 3,260,837 5.58 56.39 3,260,837 56.39
24,137,235 . ... .643 3 : 19.84 16,164,749 $ 25.32
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At December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, options for 16,164,749, 13,809,486, and 12,250,305
shares of common stock were exercisable at a weighted average exercise price of $25.32, $29.20, and
$32.77 per common share.

Summary of Stock Option Activity

2004 : 2003 2002
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding at
beginning of year . . . 25,525,358 § 20.29 22,989593 § 26.18 25244514 § 34.20
Granted .. ....... 2,196,302 13.27 7,559,303 742 8,122,500 6.78
Exercised . ....... (1,630,043) 7.16 (542,179) 724 . (9,596) 6.20
Forfeited ........ (1,954,382) 28.90 (4,481,359) 30.35 (10,367,825) 30.53
Outstanding at end of
year............ 24,137,235 § 19.84 25525358 § 2029 22,989,593 § 26.18

The stock options outstanding at December 31, 2003 and 2002, as shown in the table above,
include options for 5.7 million shares with a weighted average exercise price of $28.77 granted to the
Company’s former Chief Executive Officer from December 1994 through May 2001. These stock
options were subject to a dispute relating to his employment agreement, which was settled in
November 2004. As part of this settlement, the parties agreed that the options outstanding at the time
his employment terminated would remain exercisable through their original expiration dates. The
December 31, 2004 balance in the table above reflects the exercise by the former Chief Executive
Officer of stock options during 2004.

Forfeited activity in the table above includes both forfeited and expired options.

1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The Company’s 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the
“ESPP”) is intended to qualify as an employee stock purchase plan under Section 423 of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Company’s shareholders approved the ESPP in May 1998.

Employees are eligible to participate in the ESPP if they have been employed for at least one
month at the beginning of the applicable offering period and if they are customarily employed by the
Company for at least 20 hours per week and at least five months in a calendar year. Under the ESPP,
eligible employees are permitted to acquire shares of the Company’s common stock through payroll
deductions. Payroll deductions are made at a rate from 1% to 7% of gross pay, as selected by the
employee, for each offering period. Employees are subject to.a maximum purchase limitation.

Under the ESPP, each offering period beginning before January 1, 2005 had a duration of
12 months, and the purchase price of the common stock was the lesser of (a) 85% of the fair market
value of the stock on the first day of the offering period and (b) 85% of the fair market value of the
stock on the last day of the offering period. Effective January 1, 2005, the Company modified the terms
of offerings under the ESPP so that the duration of each offering period will be six months and the
purchase price of the common stock will be 95% of the fair market value of the stock on the date of
purchase (the last day of the offering period).

The ESPP authorizes a maximum of 3,000,000 shares of common stock to be issued to eligible
employees. The number of shares available to be issued under the ESPP is subject to adjustment for
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any future stock splits, stock dividends, mergers, combinations, and other changes in capitalization as
described in the plan documents. During 2004, employees purchased 249,959 shares of the Company’s
common stock at an average price of $8.67 per common share under the ESPP. As of December 31,
2004, the number of shares available for future purchases by employees under the ESPP was 892,753
shares,

Note 25. Defined Contribution 401(k) Plan

The Company sponsors a defined contribution 401(k) plan offering tax deferred investment
opportunities to substantially all of its employees. Employees may elect to make pre-tax contributions
and, for employees aged 50 or older, special “catch-up” contributions, up to the limits set by the
Internal Revenue Service.

Effective January 1, 2004, the Company made certain amendments to the 401(k) plan. The
Company now matches 100% of employee contributions (excluding special “catch-up” contributions
made by employees aged 50 or older), for contributions up to 4% of eligible annual compensation. All
participants actively employed on or after January 1, 2004, are fully vested in all matching contributions
and in the earnings on those contributions, including contributions made prior to January 1, 2004. For
participants actively employed on or after January 1, 2004, the vesting schedule for all past and future
retirement contributions made by the Company (including the earnings on those contributions) is 50%
after three years of service and 100% after four or more years of service. Employees hired on or after
January 1, 2004 are eligible to participate in the 401(k) plan on the first day of the month following
five months of service. The default investment fund for all contributions, in the absence of any
employee election to the contrary, is the Fidelity Balanced Fund. Prior to January 1, 2002, the
Company made all matching contributions in shares of the Company’s common stock. Beginning
January 1, 2002, employees were able to convert the accumulated shares of common stock received in
connection with the Company’s matching contributions and to direct future matching contributions, into
other investments offered under the 401(k) plan. Employee contributions are invested at the direction
of the employee. Up to 25% of an employee’s contributions may be invested, at the employee’s
direction, in the Company’s common stock.

The Company uses matching contributions forfeited by employees when they leave the
Company to offset future employer contributions. As of December 31, 2004, the 401(k) plan held
2,276,654 shares of the Company’s common stock with a market value of $37.5 million. For the year
ended December 31, 2004, the 401(k) plan received no dividends from the Company for shares of
common stock held. Total matching contributions for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and
2002 were $4.8 million, $4.3 million, and $6.0 million. The cost to the Company of making these
matching contributions, net of forfeitures, was $4.5 million, $4.2 million, and $5.7 million for the years
ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002.

The Company makes retirement contributions to the 401(k) plan for employees who are
employed on the last day of the year and who have completed at least one year of employment,
regardless of whether such employees contribute to the 401(k) plan. The Company uses retirement
contributions forfeited by employees when they leave the Company to offset future contributions. The
Company made total retirement contributions of $4.5 million, $5.6 million and $10.5 million for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. The cost, net of forfeitures, to the Company of making
these contributions was $2.4 million, $4.0 million and $7.1 million.

In addition, the Company maintains a supplemental plan to the Company’s 401(k) plan that

provides for employer matching and retirement contributions to be made that otherwise would not be
made for employees receiving annual compensation above a threshold amount specified in Internal
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Revenue Service regulations. As amended in January 2005, the supplemental 401(k) plan specifically
provides that the interest rate for each quarter on account balances under the plan will be the Moady’s
Corporate Bond Yield Average in effect for the month immediately preceding such quarter. This rate
replaces the Prime Rate plus 2% previously in effect. In addition, the supplemental 401(k) plan was
amended in January 2005 to provide that payment of benefits to a participant will be made six months
after the participant’s termination of employment, in order to comply with the requirements of the
American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 applicable to key employees. Participants are paid their
supplemental plan vested account balances from the Company’s general assets.

As a result of the Company’s significant workforce reductions since 2001, a partial plan
termination of the 401(k) plan occurred under the Internal Revenue Code and applicable regulations.
Pursuant to these regulations, the Company’s matching contributions and retirement contributions in
the 401(k) plan accounts of all employees whose employment by the Company was terminated in
connection with the workforce reductions became fully vested. The financial impact of this partial plan
termination is a reduction in future forfeitures that would otherwise be available to offset future
employer contributions. The financial impact to the Company is not considered to be material.

Note 26. Segment Information

The Company derives its income primarily from credit card lending and related activities. The
sale of the Company’s foreign operations was completed in 2002. The Company does not operate
multiple segments.

Note 27. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are disclosed below. In cases
where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates, using present value or
other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used,
including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. In that regard, the derived fair value
estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and, in many cases, might not
be realized in immediate settlement of the instrument. In addition, these values do not consider the
potential income taxes or other expenses that might be incurred upon an actual sale of an asset or
settlement of a liability. In accordance with GAAP, certain financial instruments and all norfinancial
instruments have been excluded. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not
necessarily represent or affect the underlying value of the Company.

The Company uses the following methods and assumptions in estimating its fair value
disclosure for financial instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at an amount that approximates fair
value.

Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements. Federal funds sold and securities
purchased under resale agreements are carried at an amount that approximates fair value, due to the
short-term nature of these assets.

Investment securities. The estimated fair values of investment securities by type are provided in Note 6
to Consolidated Financial Statements. Fair value is based on quoted market prices when available or, if
market prices are unavailable, fair value is estimated using quoted market prices of comparable
instruments.
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Loans receivable. The carrying amount of loans receivable approximates fair value, with the exception of
senior seller’s interest components from securitization transactions, which are recorded at their
allocated carrying values. The Company determines fair value of the senior seller’s interest components
through estimated cash flows discounted at rates that reflect the level of subordination, the projected

repayment term, and the credit risk of the securitized loans. See Note 9 to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Interest receivable and due from securitizations. The carrying amounts reported in the Company’s
consolidated statements of financial condition approximate fair value, with the exception of seller’s
interest components from securitization transactions, which are recorded at their allocated carrying
values. The Company determines fair value of the seller’s interest components through estimated cash
flows discounted at rates that reflect the level of subordination, the projected repayment term, and the
credit risk of the securitized loans. See Note 9 to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Deposits. The fair values disclosed for demand deposits (money market deposit accounts and certain
savings accounts) are equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date (carrying amount).
Fair value for fixed rate certificates of deposit and other fixed rate deposits are estimated using a
discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates at an assumed marginal market funding rate.

Short-term borrowings. The carrying amount of short-term borrowings approximates fair value based on
the short-term nature of these borrowings.

Long-term borrowings. The fair value of the Company’s long-term borrowings is based on the quoted
market prices. In prior years, the fair values were estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation
that applied interest rates at an assumed marginal market funding rate. The December 31, 2003 fair
value amount was restated based on the quoted market prices prevailing at the end of 2003.

Derivative instruments. All derivatives are included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
The fair value of the Company’s derivative instruments (interest rate swaps, interest rate caps, and
lending commitments) is based on valuation models, if material, using discounted cash flows (swaps),
an assessment of current replacement cost (caps), and valuation models as described above for loans
receivable (lending commitments). Credit card lending commitments have been determined to have no
fair value.

F-51




Carrying Values and Estimated Fair Values of the Company’s Financial Instruments

December 31,

2004 2003
Carrying Carrying
(dollars in thousands) Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
- As Restated As Restated

Assets ‘ ‘
Cash and cash equivalents ............. $ 272,397 $ 272,397 § 544554 § 544,554
Federal funds sold and securities purchased :

under resale agreements . ............ 440,351 440,351 3,235,189 3,235,189
Investment securities: -

Available-for-sale .................. 4,072,695 4,072,695 1,859,150 1,859,150
Loans receivable, less allowance for credit C

losses . ..o v iii i e 6,922,698 6,927,942 5,655,071 - 5,659,281
Interest receivable .. ................. 57,807 58,901 44,850 45,507
Due from securitizations. . ............. 2,266,314 2,299,313 2,331,273 2,356,592
Derivative assets . ... ........coveu.... 8,659 8,659 11,458 11,458
Liabilities ' : ‘
Deposits . ......coviiiiiiii. $9,471,004 $9,562,162  $10,101,057 $10,557,789 -
Short-term borrowings ................ 342,080 342,080 108,828 108,828
Long-term borrowings ................ 1,119,278 1,279,978 1,163,521 1,163,012
Derivative liabilities .. ................ 4,870 4,870 — g

Note 28. Parent Company Financial Information
The Company conducts its credit card operations primarily through its banking subsidiary,

PNB. The parent’s investment in subsidiaries represents the total equity of all consolidated subsidiaries,
using the equity method of accounting for investments.
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Providian Financial Corporation (Parent Company Only)
Statements of Financial Condition

‘December 31,

(dolars in thousands) 2004 2003
As Restated
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents(1) .. ......... i, $ 192691 $ 398,097
Investment securities:
Available-for-sale . . ... ... . 542,830 —
Trading(2)(3) .o« oo v e . 224,558 141,287
Loans receivable . . ... i e e 36 35
Investment in subsidiaries . ... ... ... i e 3,131,715 2,978,691
Deferred iNCOME taXES . o« vt v i it it it et ittt et et 30,185 242,163
Due from subsidiaries .. ...t i e 87,055 —
Prepaid expenses and other assets(4) . ............. ... i 207,526 106,275
TOtAl ASSEES &+ v v v v et e e e e e e e e $ 4,416,596 $ 3,866,548
Liabilities
Due to SUDSIAIATIES .+ . o v vttt et it e e e e $ — § 299,749
Short-term borrowings . . ... ... e e e e e 342,080 —_
Long-term bOTTOWINGS . . . oo i vttt i 1,119,278 1,163,521
Income taxes payable........ e e e e e e e 151,642 —
Accrued expenses and other liabilities. . .. .......... ... ... L 94,067 106,861
Total Habilities . . . oo vt e e e e 1,707,067 1,570,131
Shareholders’ Equity
COMMON StOCK .+ v v vt it e ettt et ettt e st 2,940 2,908
Retained €armings . . ... oo v vt iiti it i s 2,735,223 2,321,414
Cumulative other comprehensive income . .............contnn.... (6,833) (12,480)
Common stock held in treasury—at cost: (21,801) (15,425)
Total shareholders’ equity . .. ... e e e 2,709,529 2,296,417
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equlty ........................ $ 4416,596 § 3,866,548

(1) At December 31, 2004 and 2003, cash and cash equivalents included $117 million and $101 million
that were maintained in a money market account with PNB.

(2) In 2003, the Company purchased from PNB retained subordinated securityholders’ interests, which
had a carrying value of $141.3 million at December 31, 2003, in certain series of the Providian
Gateway Master Trust. The intercompany sale of retained subordinated securityholders’ interests is
eliminated and the retained subordinated securityholders’ interests are reported in due from
securitizations in the Company’s consolidated statements of financial condition.

(3) In 2004, the Company purchased from PNB retained subordinated securityholders’ interests, which
had a carrying value of $134.0 million at December 31, 2004, in certain series of the Providian
Gateway Master Trust. In addition, in 2004 the Company received an in-kind dividend from PNB
which included a retained subordinated securityholders’ interest, which had a carrying value of
$90.5 million at December 31, 2004, in a series of the Providian Gateway Master Trust. The
intercompany in-kind dividend and sale of retained subordinated securityholders’ interests is
eliminated and the retained subordinated securityholders’ interests are reported in due from
securitizations in the Company’s consolidated statements of financial condition.
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(4) 1In 2004, the Company received an in-kind dividend from PNB which included spread accounts with
a carrying value of $139.6 million at December 31, 2004 in certain series of the Providian Gateway
Master Trust. The intercompany in-kind dividend of spread accounts is eliminated and the spread
accounts are reported in due from securitizations in the Company’s consolidated statements of
financial condition.

Providian Financial Corporation (Parent Company Only)
Statements of Income

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
As Restated  As Restated

Revenues
Interest income:
INVESIMENtS . ..ottt e $ 6,920 $ 2472 $ . 568
Loans. .........ciieuineunn. e, 5 .21 166
Subsidiaries(1) .. ...... .. .. i 14,029 16,868 3,715
Otherincome . .. ....oo ittt e e 20,676 3,408 30,292
41,630 22,769 34,741
Expenses
Salaries and employee benefits ................. .. 13,858 12,032 17,691
Interest expense: ‘
Borrowings . .. ... ... e 67,001 43,634 27,675
General and administration . . .. .................. 20,059 34,602 (14,925)
100,918 90,268 30,441
(Loss) income before income taxes and equity in
earnings of subsidiaries . . . . .......... ... ... (59,288) (67,499) 4,300
Income tax benefit............... ... ... . ... ... . (50,731) - (21,972) (40,455)
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries ......... 389,801 264,881 134,902
NetIncome . ..........cciviuiininnnen.. $ 381,244 § 219354 $ 179,657

(1) In 2004 and 2003, the Company recognized income of $13.2 million and $15.2 million relating to
retained subordinated securityholders’ interests and spread accounts in certain series of the
Providian Gateway Master Trust that the Company acquired from PNB. This income is reported as
non-interest income—servicing and securitization in the Company’s consolidated statements of
income.
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Providian Financial Corporation (Parent Company Only)

Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2004 2003 2002
As Restated As Restated
Operating Activities
Net Income . .o v it e 381,244 $ 219354 § 179,657
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries ....... (389,801) (264,881) (134,902)
Amortization of prepaid broker fees ............... 9,181 3,249 2,303
Amortization of deferred compensation . . ........... 8,962 8,116 11,977
(Increase) decrease in other assets. ................ (95,298) 268,789 (364,211)
(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses and other
labilities . ... .. ooi i (7,124) 8,783 (38,830)
Decrease in deferred income taxes receivable . ... ... .. 211,978 278,350 519,443
Increase (decrease) in taxes payable ............... 151,642 — (98,254)
Decrease in due to subsidiaries . .................. (386,804) (500,252) (111,879)
Net cash (used) provided by operating activities . . . . . (116,020) 21,508 (34,696)
Investing Activities
Net increase in investment securities . . . .............. (632,055) (133,013) —
Proceeds from sales/maturities of investment securities. . . . — — 170,476
Net decrease in note receivable from subsidiaries ....... — — 100,422
Net decrease (increase) in investment in subsidiaries(1) . . . 242,424 30,931 (240,054)
Net cash (used) provided by investing activities . . . . .. (389,631) (102,082) 30,844
Financing Activities
Proceeds from exercise of stock options . ............. 13,829 6,491 2,453
Purchase of common stock for treasury . . ............. (2,240) (4,188) (3,635)
Repayment of short-term borrowings ................ —_ — (1,195)
Proceeds from issuance of convertible senior notes ...... 288,656 295,630 16,506
Net cash provided by financing activities. . ... ...... 300,245 297,933 14,129
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents . . . (205,406) 217,359 10,277
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ....... 398,097 180,738 170,461
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period . . ... ....... 192,691 $ 398,097 $§ 180,738

(1) In 2004, the Company received from PNB an in-kind dividend consisting of retained subordinated
securityholders’ interests and spread accounts in certain series of the Providian Gateway Master
Trust with a carrying value of $230.6 million at the time of the dividend.
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MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The consolidated financial statements appearing in this Annual Report have been prepared by
management, which is responsible for their preparation, integrity, and fair presentation. The statements
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
and necessarily include some amounts that are based on management’s best estimates and judgments.

Management is responsible for the system of internal controls over financial reporting at
Providian Financial Corporation and its subsidiaries, a system designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the preparation of reliable published financial statements. This system is augmented by
written policies and procedures, including a code of conduct to foster a strong ethical climate, a
program of internal audit, and the selection and training of qualified personnel. Management believes
that the Company’s system of internal controls over financial reporting provides reasonable assurance
that the financial records are reliable for preparing financial statements.

The Audit and Compliance Committee of the Board of Directors, consisting solely of outside
Directors, meets with the independent registered public accounting firm, management, and internal
auditors periodically to discuss internal controls over financial reporting, auditing, and financial
reporting matters. The Committee reviews the scope and results of the audit effort with the
independent registered public accounting firm. The Committee also meets with the Company’s
independent registered public accounting firm and internal auditors without management present to
ensure that these groups have free access to the Committee.

The independent registered public accounting firm is selected by the Audit and Compliance
Committee of the Board of Directors and ratified by the shareholders. Based on its audit of the

consolidated financial statements, the independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young
LLP, has issued its Report of Independent Auditors, which appears on the next page.

oo /o tundlin

Joseph W. Saunders
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

T L

Anthony E Vuoto
Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Providian Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Providian
Financial Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the
related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2004. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of Providian Financial Corporation and subsidiaries at December 31,
2004 and 2003, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has restated its
consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our
report dated March 30, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and an
adverse opinion on the effective operation of, internal control over financial reporting.

St ¥ LLP

San Francisco, California
March 30, 2005
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